City of East Bethel i
City Council Agenda Eag

Regular Council Meeting — 7:30 p.m. G :
‘Bethel |

Date: June 1, 2011

Item

7:30 PM 1.0  Callto Order
7:31 PM 2.0 Pledge of Allegiance
7:32 PM 3.0 Adopt Agenda
7:34 PM 4.0 Presentation

Page 1 A. 2010 AFR and Report by Auditor

Page 2-6 B. Anoka County Sheriff 2012 Contract Proposal
8:10 PM 5.0 Public Forum

8:30 PM 6.0  Consent Agenda
Any item on the consent agenda may be removed for consideration by request of any one
Council Member and put on the regular agenda for discussion and consideration

Page 10-14 A. Approve Bills
Page 15-35 B. Meeting Minutes, May 18, 2011, Regular Meeting
Page 36-50 C. Meeting Minutes, May 12, 2011 Work Meeting
Page 51-58  D. Meeting Minutes, May 17, 2011 Work Meeting
Page 59 E. Ehlers Invoice
Page 60-61 F. Approve Gambling Permit — Bingo — East Bethel Seniors — Booster Day
G. Schedule Work Meeting — June 22, 2011 at 6:30 PM
H. Appoint East Bethel Member to Connect Anoka County Governance Group
I Temporary Appointment of Lieutenant to Fire Department
J. Booster East Fence

New Business
7.0  Commission, Association and Task Force Reports
8:35 PM A. Planning Commission
Page 66-67 1. IUP/Home Occupation - 2740 Viking Blvd NE — Michelle Hess
B. Park Commission (No Report)
C. Road Commission (No Report)

8.0 Department Reports
8:45 PM A. Engineer
Page 68-77 1. Pay Estimate #1 — S.R. Weidema — Phase 1, Project 1 Utility
Improvements & East Bethel Gravity Interceptor & Discharge
B. Attorney (No Report)

8:50 PM C. Finance
Page 78-79 1. Resolution 2011-17 Accepting Annual Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Annual Report
8:55 PM D. Public Works

Page 80-88 1. Class V Bids



9:00 PM

Page 89-99
Page 100-102
Page 103-105
Page 106-115
Page 116
Page 117
Page 118-120
Page 121-122

9.0
9:45 PM
9:50 PM

E.
F.
G

Other
A.
B.

Planning and Inspection/Code Enforcement (No Report)
Fire Department (No Report)

City Administrator

City Administrator Employment Agreement
URRWMO 2012 Proposed Budget
SRWMO 2012 Proposed Budget

Arena Management Contract

Selection of City Attorney

Selection of City Prosecutor

ERU Reduction Policy

Security System

NN E

Council Reports
Other

10:00 PM 10.0 Adjourn
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Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 4.0 A.

EE i S i S i i S I S i i S i i S S S
Agenda Item:

2010 AFR and Report by Auditor

EOE S i S I i i b i I I S I I S i S
Requested Action:

Informational Only

EE i S S i S i S I S i S i i S S i i S i S R i e i
Background Information:

Mr. Jeff Wilson, representing the City’s audit firm of HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., will review
the 2010 Annual Financial Report with you and respond to your questions.

Attachments:

1. Copy of 2010 Annual Financial Report

2. Audit Management Letter

3. State Legal Compliance Report

EOE S b S I i b b i I S S i S b i I I I S S i i i I I I i I I I i i i i I S i
Fiscal Impact:

None

EOE S b S I i b b I S i i b i I i I i I S S I i i I I I I I i i i i I I S S
Recommendation(s):

Informational Only

ECE I i i I S S O i S i i i i i i

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



2010 Audit Review
City of East Bethel, Minnesota

June 1, 2011

Jeff Wilson, CPA

HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd.
651.426.7000
www.hlbtr.com

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.

3 1503592 HLB G 5
Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath. Ltd-. Certfffea‘PubhcAccountants




Reports Issued

e Annual Financial Report
e Audit Management Letter
e State Legal Compliance Report

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. 2 H LB Certified Puba‘chccount;nts



Annual Financial Report

e The financial statements are the
responsibility of city management

e The role of the Independent Auditor is
to report on the fair presentation of
the financial statements

e “Clean opinion” issued on the 2010
financial statements

e MD&A authored by City staff —
intended to provide narrative of
financial statement amounts

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.

Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. 3 H LB Certified Public Accountants



State Legal Compliance Report

e Required by Minnesota Statute §6.65

e (OSA established a task force to
develop audit guide for legal
compliance

e Audit guide covers seven categories
1) contracting and bidding

2) deposits and investments

3) conflicts of interest

4) public indebtedness

5) claims and disbursement

6) other miscellaneous provisions

7) Tax increment provisions

* No findings of noncompliance

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. 4 H LB Certified Public Accountants



Management Letter

* Provides historical perspective and narrative regarding
each fund.

e City received a federal grant “Staffing for Adequate
Fire and Emergency Response” in the amount of
$346,750 in 2009. This is a reimbursement type grant
and the City has until November 6, 2013 to claim
reimbursements.

* The City issued $18,825,000 of G.O. Revenue Bonds in
2010. Itis our understanding that certain portions of
the planned projects may not be performed. We
recommend the City contact its fiscal consultant
and/or bond counsel to determine legal compliance
issues, if any.

e Water Enterprise Fund continues to have losses from
operations.

 The cash deficit decreased in the Ice Arena Fund by
$122,000.

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. 5 H LB Certified Public Accountants



Communication with those

charged with governance

e Audit firm responsibility under U.S.
audit standards.

 Planned scope and timing of the audit.
e Significant accounting policies.
* Accounting estimates.

 No difficulties encountered in
performing the audit.

e Corrected and uncorrected
misstatement

* No disagreements with management.

TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
Copyright ©2011 HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. 6 H LB Certified Puba‘chccount;nts
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
Annual Financial Report
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
CITY COUNCIL AND OFFICIALS
December 31, 2010

CITY COUNCIL

Term Expires

Mayor:
Richard Lawrence : 17172013

Council Members:

Bill Boyer 1/1/2013

Robert DeRouche, Jr. 1/1/2015

Heidi Moegerie 1/1/2015

Steven Voss 1/1/2013
CITY OFFICIALS

Interim City Administrator

& Public Works Manager Jack Davis
Fire Chief Mark DuCharme
City Planner Stephanie Hanson
Building Official Larry Martin
Director of Fiscal & Support Services Rita Pierce
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& TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
88 Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Bast Bethel, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of East Bethel, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010 which
collectively comprise the City of East Bethel, Minnesota’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Bast
Bethel, Minnesota’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. The prior year partial comparative information has
been derived from the City of East Bethel, Minnesota’s 2009 financial statements and, in our
report dated May 10, 2010, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business- type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate rernaining fund information

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of East
Bethel, Minnesota, as of December 31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position
and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

e

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, on pages 9
through 11 and 52 through 54, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

4810 White Bear Parkway White Bear Lake, MN 55120 651.4267000 651.426.5004 fax www.hibtr.com
Equal Opportunity Employer  100-Perceni Employee-Owned

HLB Tautges Redpath, Lid, is an independent member of HLB International, & world-wide organization of professional accounting firms.



Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of East Bethel, Minnesota’s financial staterments as a whole. The
introductory section and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements, The
combining and individual nommajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Hek 2 /Zp/fm«@ 7
HLB TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
White Bear Lake, Minnesota

May 23, 2011



Management's Discussion and Analysis

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of East Bethel, Minnesota, we offer readers of the City's financial

statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal vear
ended December 31, 2010,

Financial and Development Highliohts

The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $37,708,915 (net
assets). Of this amount, $6,227,388 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing
obligations fo citizens and creditors,

The City’s total net assets decreased $630,161. Governmental activities provided for a decrease to net

assets by §976,661 while the City’s business-type activities provided an increase to net assets by
$346,500.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of §20,760,144. an increase of $16,351,834 from the prior fiscal year. Bonds issued for the
construction of water and sewer infrastructure contributed significantly to the increase in fund balance,

At the end of the fiscal year the General Fund had a fund balance of $1,984,749.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other suppiementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to

provide readers with 2 broad overview of the City’s finances in 2 manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and iabilities, with the
difference between the two reporied as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change oceurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave). Both of the government-wide financial
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
mtergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or 2 significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, streets and highways, and

a8



Management's Discussion and Analysis

parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include an arena, wastewater treatment
and water provision.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20 and 21 of this report.

Fund Financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds
and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it 1s useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statement. By domg
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near term financial decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
change in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

For 2010, the City maintains five individual major governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the following major funds:

General Fund

20058 Street Improvement Debt Fund

2010A Revenue Bond Fund

Municipal State Aid Street Improvement Fund
Water Infrastructure Fund

Utilty Infrastructure Fund

Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annually appropriated budget for its General Fund and many of its special revenue
funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance
with these budgets.

10



Management's Discussion and Analysis

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 26 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains three enterprise funds and two internal service funds of the
proprietary fund type. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Internal service funds are used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. Because the Internal service funds
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for its water utility, sewer utility and arena operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,

only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
following funds:

Enterprise funds: Internal Service funds:
Water Utility Fund Compensated Absences Fund
Sewer Utility Fund Equipment Replacement Fund

Ice Arena Fund

The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 29 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential o a full
understanding of the data provided in the government—wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 30 through 50 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major
governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on
budgetary comparisons. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on
pages 56 through 73 of this report.

11



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government-wide Financial Analvsis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial

position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded Habilities by $37,708,915 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year,

The largest portion of the City’s net assets (829,461,334 or 78% percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets {e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment, sewer main lines and storm sewers, and
mnfrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
‘spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of East Bethel, Minnesota's Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Toial
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008

Current and other assets $24,781.955 $7.967.59¢ $31.488 $35,766 $24,813,443 58,003,365

Capital assets 35.627.606 34,052,319 1.616.074 1.375.508 37,243,681 35423827

Total assets $60.409,561 542019914 $1.647.563  §1.400274 362,057,124 343420192

Long-term liabilities ourstanding §22,935,681 $3,938.179 - - $22.935,681 $3.938.179

Other habilities 809243 440 441 603,285 711,496 1,412,528 1.151.937

Total liabilites $23.744.924 $4.378.620 $603.285 $711.496 $24.348 200 $5.090.1 16
Net assets:

mmvested iy capital assets, net of related debt $27,845.259 830,237,319 51616075 31.373,508 $29.461.334  $31.610.827

Restricted 2,020,093 967.133 - 2,020,193 967,133

Unrestricted 6,799,185 6436846 (571,797) (675,730) 6,227.388 3,761,116

Tatal net assets $30.604,637  $37641.29% $1.044.278 $697.778 337708915 538,336,076

A portion of the of the City’s net assets ($2,020,193) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($6,227,388)
may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of

net assets for its governmental activities. The business-type activities have a deficit of unrestricted net
assets.

12



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $976.661. Business type net assets increased
by $346,500. Key elements of the changes in net assets are as follows:

City of East Bethel's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2008 2010 2000 2010 2009
Revenues: '
Program revenues:
Charges for services 305,945 5264477 $406.144 5339127 Friz 08T $603,554
Operating grants and contributions 308,962 260,637 - 30896 260,637
Capital grants and coniributions 880,073 1,727,108 - - 880,073 . 1,727,105
General revenues: - -
Taxes 4,783,434 4,539,151 - . 4,783.434 4,539,151
Unrestricted investrment earnings 16,461 268,233 - 16,46} 28,233
Gain on disposal of capital assets 21.665 9.66% - - 21663 8668
Total revennes 6.31€,538 6. 828218 406,144 - 339127 6,722 687 7,168,345
Expenses:
General government 51,565 287 $1,31237% s - 3 - $1,565,287 $1.312.379
Public safery 1,912,009 1,814,871 - 1,812,006 1814871
Public works 2,824 624 2,741,577 - - 2,824,624 2,741,577
Farics and recreation 428,332 458775 - . 426,332 459 773
Water - - 55,568 48,995 55,568 48,995
Sewer - . 80,651 76,878 80,651 76,878
ice arena - - 293,598 258,394 293 598 298 394
Interest and fees on long-term debt 187,684 146.602 - 187,684 146,602
Totai expenses 6,923 (026 6,675,204 429817 424267 7,352,843 7.080.47
inorease (decrease) in net assets before transfers (606,488} 154 014 (23,673 (85,140) {630,161) 68.874
Transfers (370,173 - 376,173 -
increass {decrease) in net assets (576,661 154,014 346,500 (85,140 {630,161 68,874
Net assets - Janyary ! 37,641,280 37.487.204 607774 782918 38,339,076 38.270,202
WNet assets - December 31 F36.6a4d 65" 33V 64l 2GR SLO&ITE BR07T TR 337,708,915 $38.339.07¢




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Below are specific graphs which provide comparisons of the governmental activities revenues and
expenditures:

Revenues - Governmental Activities

$ - $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000

Expenses - Governmental Activities

Public works
Public safety /3% “
25%
General govemrgént \‘\
21% J
Interest
11%
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Management’'s Discussion and Analysis

Business-Type Activities -

Business-type activities increased net assets by $346,500 including depreciation expenses of $127,606.
The results reflect the continuing start-up mode of the City’s utility services and the continuing
challenges at the City’s Ice Arena. Below are graphs showing the business-type activities revenue and

expense comparisons:

Revenues-Business Type Activities

Charges for services.-
Aren? 73%

Charges for services-

4 i
ewer 17% |_Charges for services-

Water 10%

Expenses - Business Type Activities

ice Arena

/ ’ 68%

Sewer Utility ~ o

19% | Water Utility
13%

15



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Financial Analvsis of the Government's Funds

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $20,760,144. Approximately 92 percent of this total amount ($19,060,373) constitutes
unreserved, undesignated, fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance ($1,699,771) is reserved
because it has aiready been committed to provide for debt service and prepavments.

The Genera! Fund balance increased by $148,222 in 2010, This was a result of the City’s decision to
delay any discretionary spending in light of lower revenues related to depressed building activity and
lower interest earnings by amending the 2010 budget by reducing expenditures to offset the State’s
unallotment of the remaining market value homestead credit aid expected to be received in 2010.

The 20058 Street Improvement Bond Fund increased by $157,239 as special assessment revenue
received in 2010 exceeded debt service expended for the vear,

The 2010A Revenue Bond Fund increased $608.730 by receiving the remaining bond proceeds from the
issuance of these bonds.

The Municipal State Aid Street Improvement Fund decreased $961,518 by expending a large portion of
the construction project funds from intergovernmental revenues that were received in a prior vear.

‘The Water Infrastructure Fund increased $10,757,988 and the Utility Construction Fund increased
$4.302,254 due to receiving bond proceeds that will be used for the construction of water and sewer
infrastructure.

Nonmajor Governmenta! Funds increased by $1,298,919 primarily due to the receipt of bond proceeds
etmbursing the funds for capital outlay expenditures during prior years.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net assets in the respective proprietary funds are water ($113.757), sewer ($193.200)
and ice arena (5264,840). The utility operations began in 2004; as the number of customers continue o
grow, financial results will improve, as fixed costs will not increase appreciably. Unfortumately, 2010
was a year with no new home construction which directiv affects the number of utility customers.
Consequently, net assets of the utility funds did not improve. Dtilitv rates were increased appreciably i
2010 to improve operating results. The ice arenz fund had 2 decresss in net assets in 2010 of $864. The
decrease is due to increased maintenance and repair charges resulting from maintaining an older facility
and maintaining revenues comparable to other facilities in the area.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Budgetary Highlishts

General Fund

The General Fund budget was amended during 2010 by decreasing expenditures by $11,565. Several
different areas were affected by the budget reductions required by City Council when the remaining
portion of the market value homestead credit aid was cut by the State. -

During the year, revenues were less than budgetary estimates by $54,215, and expenditures were less
than budgetary estimates by $202,437. The net result was a $148.222 increase in the General Fund. The
unfavorable revenue budget variance was attributable to the economic downturn which decreased
building permit and building plan review revenues and a decrease in interest earmings.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s, investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities
as of December 31, 2010, amounts to $37,243,681 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery and equipment, sewer main lines, water lines and
wells, storm sewers, and infrastructure.

East Bethel’s Capital Assets
(Net of Accamulated Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

| ' 2010 2009 2010 2009 2014 2005
Land 5887546 $322 335 $30,000 $30,000 $917,546 $352,535
Construetion in progress 3,144.731 635247 - - 3,144.731 635,247
Buildings and structires 3.440.574 3.638.833 §38.506 920.867 4,279.080 4,559,760
Machinery and equipment 1,332,944 94 814 - - 1,332 944 994 614
Park improvements 798 486 800,936 - - 798 486 800.936
Sewer main Hnes and storm sewers 1.358.550 1,423,946 747 569 422 641 2,106,119 1.846 587
Infrastructure 24,664.775 26,236,208 - - 24.664.775 26.236.208

|

; Total capital assets $35.627.606 $34.052.319 51.616.075  $1.373.508% 337243681 $35425827

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt outstanding of
- $22,543,589 an increase of $18,728,589 from 2009, This is primarily due to the issuance of
$17,565,000 in new bonds to finance construction of water and sewer infrastructure.

All debt outstanding at year end is general obligation debt, which are backed by the full faith and credit

of the City. Some of the general obligation bonds have specific revenue sourced pledged other than

property taxes, but in the event those other sources were insufficient, the City would be required to the
he shortfall through property taxes.

City of East Bethel’s Outstanding Debt

The City’s long-term debt at December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
1273172010 12/31/2009
General obligation improvement bonds $3,245,000  $2,100,000
General obligation revenue bonds 19,208,589  1.715.000
Totals $22.543.589  $3,815.000

Moody’s Investor Services maintained the City’s rating of A2 when the City issued bonds during 2010,

State Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a Minnesota city may issue to 3% of total
Estimated Market Value. The current debt limitation for the City 1s §30,473,577. Ofthe City's
outstanding debt, §$1,660,0001s counted within the statufory limitation.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5.
Requests for information. This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances, Questions concerning any of the

mformation provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Finance Department, 2241 221% Avenne N.E., East Bethel, Minnesota 55011,
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2010

Statement 1

Assets:
Cash and invegiments
Cash with escrow agent
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable - net
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory
Prepaid items
Special assessments receivable
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, construction in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities:
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Due to other funds
Accrued inierest payable
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable:
Due within one vear
Due in more than one year
Bonds payable:
Due within one vear
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Net agsets:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Governmentzal Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$22,481,9%4 § - $22,481,984
201,339 - 201,339
291,540 - 201,546
23,444 26,398 490,842
521,798 - 521,798
238,333 - 238,355
- 4,710 4,710
- 380 380
398,657 - 398,657
624,838 - 624,838
887,546 30,000 917,546
3,144.731 - 3,144,731
31,595.329 1,586,075 33,181,404
60,409,561 1,647.563 62,057,124
593,534 27,621 621,155
66,613 1,276 67.889
- 521,798 521,798
107,230 - 107,230
- 52,590 52,590
41,866 - 41,866
93,092 - 93,092
253551 - 253,551
22,589,638 - 22.588.038
23,744 924 603,285 24,348,200
27845259 1.616,075 29461334
2,020,193 - 2,020,163
6,799,183 {571.797) 6.227.388
$36.,664.637 $1.044.278 537,708,913

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

20



CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 2

Functions/Programs

Government activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Interest and fees on long-tersn debt
Total government activities

Business-type activities:
Water
ewer
Ice arena

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Program Revenues

Met {Expense) Revenue and

Operating Capital Changes in Net Agsets
Charges For ~ Granis and Grants and Governmental  Business-Type
Expenses Services  Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
51,569,287 598239 $33,944 $35,945 (%1,401,159) 5 - (51,401,159
1,912,699 198,474 107,487 - (1,606,138 - (1,606,138}
2,824,624 - 167.531 844,128 {1,812,905) - (1.812,965)
419332 9,230 - (420,102) - {420,102)
187,684 {187.684) - (187.684)
6,923,026 305,943 308.962 880,073 (5428048} (5.428.048)
55,568 33,163 - - (22,405 (22,405)
80,651 80,247 - - - {404 (404)
293.598 292,734 - - (864} {864}
429,817 406,144 - - - (23.673) (23,673}
57,352 843 $712.087 $308.952 3880073 (5,428 0483 (23,673 (5451.721)
General revenues:
Taxes and related crediis 4,783,434 - 4,783,434
Unrestricted investiment eamings 16,461 - 16,463
(ato on disposal of capital assets 21,665 - 21,665
Capital Transfer {370,173} 370,173 -
Total general revenues and special items 4451.387 370,173 4,821,560
Change in net assets {976,661} 346,500 (630,181)
Net assets - beginning 37,641,298 691 T8 38.339.076
Net assets - ending $36.664.637 $1.044 278 §37.708.915

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2010

20038 Street 20104
Improvement Revenue
Assets General Debt Fund Bond Fund
Cash and investments $2,192,757 $333,195 $755.091
Taxes receivable 291,544 - -
Special assessments receivable : 5,168 140,422 -
Accounts recejvable 13,766 - -
Due from other governments 3,748 - -
Total assets $2,506,979 $473,617 $759,091
Liabilities, Equity and Other Credits ‘
Liabilities: '
Accounts and contracts payabie $125,737 oo 5 -
Salaries payable 66,613 - -
Due to other funds - - -
Deposits payable 98,509 -
Interfund loan - - 153,361
Deferred revenue 231,371 140,422 -
Total ijabilities 522.230 140,422 150,361
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Debt Service - 333,195 608,730
Unreserved:
Undesignated reported in:
General Fund 1,084,74¢ - -
Special Revenue Funds - - -
Capital Project Funds - - -
Total fund batances : 1,984,740 333,195 608,730
Total liabilities and fund balances 32,506,979 3473617 £759.091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement 3

Municipal State

Aigd Street ' Water - Utility Other Total
Improvernent Infrastrcture Infrastruciure Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

5 - $10,962,621 $4,392.442 ‘ $2.008,080 321,548,186
- - - - 291,540
- . - 253,067 398,657
- - - 1536 15,296
191,461 - - 43,146 238.335
$191,46! 310,962,621 $4.,302 442 33,205,823 $22.,492.034
368,063 $204,633 390,188 $6,404 $495,025
- - - - 66,613
153,157 - - 33,726 206.883
. ' - - - 98,509
. - - 89,639 244,000
- - - 253,067 624.860
221,220 204,633 90,188 402,836 1,731,800
- - . 757,846 1,699,771
- - - - 1,984,740
. - - 727,555 727,555
(29,7593 10,757,988 4,302,254 1.317.586 16.348,060
{29,759) 10,757,988 4,302,254 2,802,987 20,760,144
$101.461 $10,862,621 $4.392,442 $3,205.823 §22.492 034
Fund balance reported above 520,760,144
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statemert of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and
thefefare, are not reported in the funds 34,684,636
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds:
Delinguent property taxes 226,203
Special agsessments not yet due or delinguent 398,657

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds:
Bonds payable
Premium on bonds
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Accrued interest payable

Internal service funds are used by management Lo charge the cost of compensaied
ahsences to individual funds and to set aside funds for capital equipment acquisition.
The assets and ligbilities are included in the governmental statement of net assets

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an miegral part of these financial statements.
p . =3 & h
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(22.543,580)

(299,000)
624.838

(107.230)

2,919,958

$36,664.637




CITY OF ¥AST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

20058 Street 2010A
Improvement Revenue
General Debt Fund Bond Fund
Revenues: : :
General property taxes - 54,583,900 § - $ -
Special assessments - 254,268 .
Licenses and permits . 106,387 - -
Intergovernmental 210,635 - -
Charges for services 88,133 - -
Fines and forfeitures 58,519 - -
Investment income 3,082 664 -
Other 78,905 - -
Total revenues 5,130,465 254,932 -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government , : 1,350,215 - -
Public safety 1,803,345 - -
Public works 750,946 - -
Parks and recreation 314,541 - -
Capital outlay - - -
Debt service:
Principal and debt extinguishment - 45,000 -

Interest and fiscal charges - 12,693
Bond issuance costs

: - - 192,651
Tota) expenditures 4,219,047 57,693 192,651
Revenues over (under) expenditures 011,418 167,239 (192,651}
Other financing sources (uses):
Bonds issued - - 801,381
Premium on bonds issued - - -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (763,196) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (763,156} - 801.381
Net increase (decrease} in fund balance 148,222 167,239 608,730
Fund balance - January } 1,836,527 135,956 -
Fund balance - December 31 ‘ $1.984, 740 $333,195 $608,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Municipal State
Aid Street Water Utility Other

Statement 4

Total
improvement Infrastructure Infrastructure Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

b - ' $ - 3 o- $158,574 $4,742.474

- - - 40,657 264925

- - - - 106,387
205,038 - - 685,516 1,101,193

. - - - 88,133

. - - - 58,519
1,488 125 - 4,322 10,581

- 3 - 19,097 08,005
206,526 128 - 908,166 6,500.217

- - - 91,841 1,442,656

. - - 65,002 1,868,347
99,4652 - - 191,029 1,041,667

- - - 38,024 352,565
1,068,352 843,471 126,007 1,566,876 3,704,796

- - - 120,601 165,601

- - - 128,010 141,703

- 227,105 84,195 120,887 624.838
1,168 044 1,170,576 210,292 2,323,270 $,341,573
(961,518) (1,170,448} (210,292) {1,415,104) {2,841.356)
- 12,573,751 4,778,000 741,058 18,804,190

- 218,209 80,791 - 299,500

- - - 2,615,690 2,615,690
- (863,524) (346.245) (642,725) (2,615,690}

- 11,928,436 4,512,546 2,714,023 16,193,180
(961,518) 10,757,988 4,302,254 1,298,919 16,351,834
931.759 - - 1,504,068 4.408.310
(529.759) 510,757,988 54,302,234 £2,802.687 $20.760,144

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial stafements.
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Arnounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities {statement 2} are different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (statement 4)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Tepreciation '
Capital outlay
Capital asset transfer

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Change in delinquent taxes
Change in deferred and delinguent special assessments

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides cutrent financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
iong-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets, Also
govermental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts
and similar items when debt is first ssued, wereas these armounts are
deferred and amourtized in the statement of activities.

The amounts of these differences are:
Debt issued
Premium on bond issued
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Principal payments on honds payabie

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of

compensated absences and certain capital assets to individual
funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal services funds are
reported with governmental activities:

Investment imcome

(Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfer - net

Consolidation of internal service fund activities with governmental activities

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Expenses are reported in the statement of activities
include the effects of the changes in these expense accruals as follows:

Change m accrued interest payable

Change in net assets of governmental activities (statement 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement 5

2010

$16,251,834

(2,172.317)
3,704,796
(370,173}

40,960
(252,184)

(18,894,190}

(299,000)
624.838
165.601

5.880
21,665

246,700

(105.090)

(45.981)

($976.661}



CITY OF EAST BETHEL. MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS Statement 6
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

December 31, 2010

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
: Activities -
Water Sewer lce Internal
Utility Utility Arena Total Service Funds
Asgets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents g - 5 - 5 - § - $933,798 -

Cash with escrow agent

- - - 201,339
Agcounts receivible 13,560 12,516 a2 26,398 8,148
inventory for resale - - 4,710 4,710 -
Due from other funds - - - - 728,681
Interfundé loan - - - - 240,000

. Prepayments - - 380 380 -
Total current assets 13,560 12,516 5412 31,488 2,111,966
Noncurrent assets;
Capital assets:
Land - - 30,000 30,000 -
Buildings and structures - - 1,480,690 1,480.690 -
Machinery and equipment & - - 25,600 23,000 1,214,906
Utility infrastructure 665,847 691,511 - 1,357.358 -
Total capital assets 665,847 691,511 1,535,690 2,893,048 1,214,906
Less: accumulated depreciation (235,022 (370,765) {667,186} (1,276,973) {271,936}
Net capital assets 426,825 320,746 868,504 1.616,075 942 950
Total noncurrent assets 426,825 320,746 868,504 1.616,075 942,930
Total assets 440,385 333,262 873,916 1,647,563 3.054.916
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Due to other funds $125,543 $203.321 $162,934 §521,798 3 -
Accounts payable 1,136 1,757 24,728 27,621 -
Salaries payable 638 638 - 1,276 -
Compensated absences - current portion - - - - 41,866
Deferred revenue - - 52,590 52,590 -
Total current Habilities 127.317 205,716 270,252 603,285 41,866

Noncwrrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable - noncurrent portion - - - - 93,092
Total noncurrent Habilities - - - - 93,092
Total liabilities 127.317 205,716 270,252 603,285 134,958

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 426,825 320,746 868,504 1,616,075 Q42 950
Unrestricted (113,157} (193,200} (264,840) (571,797) 1,977,008
Total net assets $313.068 $3127.546 $603,664 51,044 278 - $2,919.958

The accompanying notes are an mregral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 201G

Statement 7

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmerital
Activities -
Water " Sewer Ice . Internal
. Utility Utility Arena Total Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Ice rentals and related revenue 5 - & - $21¢,742 $210,742 § .
Rentals, signs, lockers and fower - g - 42,953 42,053 -
Drv floor events - - 4.596 4.596 -
Concession revenue - - 19,143 19,143 -
Customer charges 33,163 80,247 - 113,410 264,599
Donations/refunds - - 15,300 15,300 -
Total operating revenues 33,163 80,247 202,734 406,144 264 599
Operating expenses:
Wages and fringe 18,651 18,560 - 37211 17,899
Maintenance and repairs 633 1,304 37,352 39309 -
Utilities 6,808 10,512 63,080 80,400 -
Professional services 3,370 8,692 85,898 97,960 -
Supplies 3,503 16,288 22,67 42,462 -
Other 1,577 1,329 2806 -
Depreciation ‘ 22,195 23,050 82,361 127,606 145,090
Total operating expenses 55,180 76,983 292,691 427,854 122,989
Operating incorme (Joss) {22,017y 264 43 (21,710} 141,610
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Sale of fixed asset - - - - 21,665
Interest (388) (668) (907) {1,963) 5,880
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) - (388) (668) {807} (1.963) 27,545
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 22,405 (404} {864} (23,673) 169,155
Capital contribution 370,173 - - 370,173 -
Change in net assets 347,768 {404} (R64) 346,500 169,155
Net assets - January i (34,700) 127,950 604,528 697,778 2,750,803
Net assets ~ December 31 $313,068 $127,546 8603664 51,044,278 $2,919,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 8

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
-Receipis from other funds
Pavment to suppliers
Payment to employees
Payment to other funds
Advances to other funds
Miscellaneous revene
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Internal loan
Internal interest expense
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
" Net cash flows from capital and refated financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment mcome

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents - January 1
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31

Reconciliation of operating income {ioss} te net cash
provided (used)} by operating activities:

Operating income {Joss)

Adjusiments w reconcile operating income {ioss}
to net cash flows from operating actvities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilites;

Decrease (increase) in receivables and inventory
Diecrease {increase) in due from other funds
Increase (decrease} in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in sataries payable
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenus

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contribution of Capital Assets from the Municpality

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Water Sewer leg Internal
Utiliy Utiliry Arens Touml Service Funds
531,378 $81.345 $321.309 $434,032 $264.,599
1,693 - - 1,693 -
(14.039} (37,963) (213,670} (265,674} (21.486)
(18.644) {18,353} - 37,167 -
- (24,159 (122,032) {146,191) -
- - - - (728.681)
- . 15,300 15,300 -
188 668 907 1,963 {485.568)
. - - - {203,668}
(388) {668} {907} {1,563} -
(388) {668} {907y (1,963} (203,668
- - - (518071}
- - - - 21,665
\ . - - (496 406)
- - - - 5.880
. - - (1,179.762)
- - - - 2,113,560
5 - i - § - 5. $933.794
($22.017) 5264 343 (521710 141,610
22,193 23.050 82,361 127,606 105,090
(1.785) 1.098 4,965 4278 6,120
- . - - (728,681}
295 408 (1,522} 819y {9.707)
7 7 - 14 -
1.69% (24,159 (122032 (144,458} -
- - 37,092 37.092 -
22,405 404 864 23673 (627,178}
F388 3668 $067 51,963 (5485.568)
370,173 - 370173

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of East Bethel was incorporated in 1958 and has operated under the State of Minnssota Statutory Plan A
form of government since 1974. The governing body consists of a five-member council slected by voters of the
City. '

The financial statements of the City of East Bethel have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles as applied o governmental units by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include
those of the City of East Bethel {the primary government) and its component units, entities which the City is
considered 1o be financial accountable.

The City has two component units -- the Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) and the Econotnic
Development Authority (EDA). The HRA and EDA are considered component units because the governing boards
are the same as that of the City and because the City will be in a relationship of financial benefit with each of the
entities.

The financial position and results of operations of the HRA component unit is presented using the blended method.
This biended component unit, although legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the City’s operations. The
component unit include Governmental Funds using the modified accrual basis of accounting, and as such is reported
&s a Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements for the IR A are not prepared. The EDA component uni:
is not currently active.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.c., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assels) report information on ail of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its compenent units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmenial activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reéported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or business-type
activity 1s offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or business-type activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicanis who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requiremeants of a particular function
or business-type activity. Taxes and other items not inciuded among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even

though the jatter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
and masor mdividual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the vear for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are coliectibie within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers all revenues,
except reimbursement grants, ic be available if they are coliected within 60 days of the end of the current fisca)
period. Reimbursement grants are considered available if they are collected within one year of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
BHowever, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
Judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, special assessments, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible o acorual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscai period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and availabie only when cash is received by the government.

The government reports the foliowing major govemnmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the genera)
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The 20058 207" dvenue Service Road Debt Service Fund accounts for debt service for bonds issued 1o finance a
service road adjacent to Highway 65, the major arterial running through the City, Special assessments to henefiting
properties support the debt.

The 20104 Revenue Bond Fund accounts for debt service for bonds issued to finance water infrastructure, including
wells, waier tower, and a water treatment plant. Special assessments, connection fees and user fees will be

collected from properties benefiting from the improvements.

The Municipal State Aid Street Improvement Fund is maintamed according to state statutes for the construction of
municipal state aid street projects throughout the City.

The Warer Infrastructure Fund is used to account for the bond proceeds that will be used to finance water
infrastructure improvements.

The Usility Infrastruciure Fund is used 1o account for the bond proceeds that will be used to finance water and sewer
infrastructure improvements. -

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water Utility Fund accounts for water service activities to operate the water utility systemm.

The Sewer Urility Fund accounts for sewer service activities w operate the sanitary sewer system.
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The Ice Arena Fynd accounts for operations of the City's ice arena.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

Internal service funds are used to account for the costs associated with employees’ compensated absences and to
account for the funding of major equipment necessary for City operations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1. 1989, generally are
foliowed in both the government-wide and proprietary-fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject 10 this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or
expenses if they involved external organizations, such as buying goods and services or payments in kieu of taxes, are
similarly treated when they involve other funds of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various fanctions concerned.

Amounis reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and coniributions; including special
assessments. Internaliy dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as Program revenues,
Likewise, general revenues inciude all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongeing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water, sewer, and arena
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. A1l revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenuses and expenses. When both restricied and unrestricted
resources are available for an allowable use, 1t is the govermment’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
upresiricted resources as they are needed.

b. BUDGETS

Budgets are legally adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Annual
appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and special revenue funds. Budgeted expenditure
appropriations lapse at year end. Debt service funds’ financial activities are governed by bond covenants. Capital
projects funds’ expenditures are approved by the City Council before projects are undertaker.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditare of
monies are recorded in order 1o reserve that portion of the appropriation, is not employed by the City because it is at
present not considered necessary to assure effective budgetary control or to facilitate effective cash management.

E. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. The City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following January 1. The operating budget inciudes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. The City Council reviews the proposed budget and makes appropriate changes.
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3. Public meetings are conducted o obtain taxpayer comments.

4. The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resclution on a departmenta) basis for the General Fund and on
a fund basis for other funds and can be expended by each deparument (or fund) based upon detailed budget estimates
for individual expenditure accounts.

5. Interdepartmental, intradeparimental or interfund appropriations and deletions are authorized by the City Council
with fund coatingency reserves or additional revenues.

6. Formal budgetary integration 1s employed as a management control device during the vear for ali funds. Legal
debt obligation indentures determine the appropriation level of debt service tax levies for the Debt Service Funds.
Amounts annually budgeied for capital funds are consistent with the reievant five-vear capital improvement

program. A capital improvement program is reviewed annuaity by the City Council for the Capital Project Funds.

7. The legal level of budgetary control is at the depariment level for the General Fund and the fund level for other
funds. Monitoring of budgets is maintained at the expenditure category level (i.e., personal services; materials and
supplies; contractual services; and capital outlay) within each program, All amounts over budget were approved by
the City Counci} through the dishursement process.

8. The City Council may authorize transfer of budgeted amounts between City funds. The City Council made no
supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the vear.

F.CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investment balances from all funds are pooled and invested to the extent available in authorized
investments, Investment income (expense) is aliocated to individual funds on the basis of the fund's equity in the
cash and investment poel. Funds with negative balances are shown by cash overdrafts as fund liabilities. These
overdrafts are eliminated on the government-wide financial statements. Investments are stated at fair value, based
upon quoted market prices. Investment income is accrued at the balance sheet date.

For purpeses of the statement of cash flows the City considers all highly liguid investments with 2 maturity of three
months or less when purchased 1o be cash equivalents.

G. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Property taxes and specia) assessments have been reported net of astimated uncollectible accounts. (See Note | H. T
and M} Because utility bills are considered liens on property. no estimated uncoilectible amounts are established.
Uncollectible amounts are not material for other receivables and have not been reported.

K. PROPERTY TAX REVENUE RECOGNITION

The City Council annually adopts 2 tax levy and certifies it to the County in December {levy/assessment date) of
each year for collection in the following vear. The County is responsible for bifling and coliecting all property taxes
for 1tself, the City, the local School District and other taxing authorities. Such taxes become a lien on January 1 and
are recorded as receivables by the City at that date. Real property taxes are payable (by property owners) on May 15
and October 15 of each calendar vear. Personal property taxes are pavable by taxpayers on February 28 and June 30
of each vear. These taxes are collected by the County and remitted to the City on or before July 7 and December 2 of
the same year. Delinquent coliections for November and December are received the following January. The City has
ne ability to enforce payment of property taxes by property owners. The County pessesses this authority.
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- GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The City recoznizes property tax revenue in the period for which the taxes were levied. Uncollectible property taxes
are not material and have not been reported.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City recognizes property tax revenue when it becomes both measurable and avaiiable to finance expenditures of
the current period. In practice, current and delinquent taxes and State credits received by the City in July, December
and January are recognized as revenue for the current year. Taxes collected by the County by December 31 and
remitted to the City the following January are shown as unremitied taxes. Taxes and credits not received at vear end
are classified as delinquent taxes receivable, The portion of delinguent taxes not collected by the City 1s fully offset
by deferred revenue because they are not available to finance current expenditures.

I. MARKET VALUE HOMESTEAD CREDIT

Property taxes on residential agricultural homestead property {as defined by State Statutes) are partially reduced by
the market value homestead credit (MVHC). This credit is paid to the City by the State in lieu of taxes levied
against homestead property; it is remitted through two instaliments each year. Since these amounts received by the
City from the State are for taxes levied, the credit is recognized as property tax revenue by the Ciry at the time of
collection. In past vears, the State has chosen not o remit a portion of the MVHC back to the City. In effect, the
State nsed City resources to fund a State tax reduction. Consequently, for the years 2003 through 2006, the City was
precluded from collecting a portion of its levy amount. In 2007, the State remitted the full MVHC to the City, In
2008 the City received 50% of the credit, in 2009 the City received 28% of the credit and in 2010 received nothing,

J. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE RECOGNITION

Special assessments are levied against benefited properties for the cost or a portion of the cost of special assessment
improvement projects in accordance with Siate Stanies. These assessments are collectibie by the City over a term
of years usuaily consistent with the term of the related bond issue. Collection of annual installments {including
interest) is handled by the County Auditor in the same manner as properiy taxes. Property owners are allowed 1o
{and often do) prepay future instaliments without interest or prepayment penalties. Once a special assessment roll is
adopted, the amount attributed t¢ sach parcel is a lien apon that property until full payment is made or the amount 15
detarmined to be excessive by the City Council or court action. If special assessments are allowed to go delinguent,
the property is subject to tax forfeit sale, Proceeds of safes from tax forfeit properties are allocated first to the
County's costs of administering all tax forfeit properties. Pursuant to State Statutes, a property shall be subject 1o a
tax forfeit sale afier three years unless it is bomesteaded, agricultural or seasonal recreational land in which event the
property is subject to such sale after five years.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The City recognizes special assessment revenue in the period that the assessment rol] was adoptad by the City
Council. Uncollectible special assessmertts are not material and have not been reporied.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue from special assessments is recognized by the City when it becomes measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current fiscal period. In practice, current and delinguent special assessments received by the
City are recognized as revenue for the current vear. Special assessments that are collected by the County by
December 31 and remitied to the City the following January (unremitted {axes) are also recognized as revenue for
~ the current year. Special assessments due to be coliected in fumure vears are classified as deferred assessments
receivable. All remainmg delinquent, deferred and special deferred assessments receivable in governmental funds
are completely offset by deferred revenues.
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K. PREPAID ITEMS

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial starements.

L. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets. e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and similar items, are reported in the applicabie governmental or business type activities columns in the
government-wice financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful lfe in excess of one vear. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed, Donated capital assets are recorded at the
estimated fair market value at the date of donation, Pursuant to GASB Statement 34, in the case of the initial
capitalization of general infrastructure assets, i.e., those reported by governmental activities, the City chose to
include all such items regardless of their acquisition date. These assets are reporied at historical cost. The City
estimated historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back trending - estimating the current
replacement cost and utilizing an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year. As the City
consiructs or acquires additional infrastructure assets each period, they wilt be capitalized and reported at historical
cost,

The costs of normal maintentance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or maierially extend assers
Isves are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
capitalized to the value of the assets constructed. For the year ended December 31, 2010, no interest was capitalized
n conmection with construction in progress. Property, plant and equipment are depreciaied using the straighi-line
method over the following estimated useful lives and are capitalized according to the following taresholds:

Assets Life

Miscellaneous office equipment, copiers, computer hardware, light trucks,
mowers, attachments, other light equipment 5 years

Loaders, dump trucks, graders, trailers, other heavy equipment, telephone
and radic sysiems, pumps, generators 10 years

Fire rigs, playground equipment, irrigation systems 20 years

Buildings, park shelters, fences, paved streets, sidewalks, parking lots,
signs 25 vears

Water trunks, mains, towers; sewer trunks, mains, 1ift stations; storm

drainage trunks, mains, ponds 3G years

Asset Cateoory Value Threshold
All assets not referenced 1n this schedule $35.000
Parking lots, sidewalks, fencing, park shelters, land improvements 325,000
Buiidings and building improvements ' $50,000
Infrastructure improvements; water, sewer, storm drainage, sireeis $100.000
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M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

it 1s the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate sarned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. At year
end, each employee’s accrued obligation is expensed to their home department and revenue is recognized in the
Compensated Absences Internal Service Fund to fund the City's obligaticn. It is assumed that these amounts will be
payabie only upon employees’ severance from employment. Vacation and sick leave used during employees’ tenure
with the City is assumed to closely match the leave earned during that year. In accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is
recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights fo receive sick pay benefits. A Iiability is recognized in the internal
service fund for that portion of accumuiating sick leave benefits that is vested as severance pay.

N. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-tertn debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as Habilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary funds statement of net assets, Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
immaterial and are expensed in the vear of bond issuance.

In the fund financtal statements, governmenial funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuancs costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reporied as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reporied as debt service expenditures.

O. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts not
appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent
tentative plans for future use of financial rescurces.

P. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are property applicable ic
another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.  All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers,

Q. FUND EQUITY AND RESTRICTED ASSETS

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts not
appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Debt fund assets are restricted for deht
service,

R. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accouniing principles (GAAP)

requires management to make estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial statements during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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5. INVENTORIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The originai costs of materials and supplies have been recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. These
finds do not maintain material amounts of mmventories.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Inventories of the Proprietary Funds are stated at cost, which approximates market, using the firsi-in, first-out
(FIFQ) valuation methodology.

Note 2 DEPOSTTS AND INVESTMENTS

DEPOSITS

In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the City maintains deposits at those depository banks authorized by the City
Council, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System. Minnesota Statutes require that all City deposits
be protected by insurance, surety bond, or collateral. The market valus of collateral pledged must equal 110% of the
deposits not covered by insurance or bonds. Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as collateral be held
 safekeeping by the City Treasurer or in a financial institution other than that furnishing the collateral. Authorized
collateral includes the following:

a) United States government treasury bills, treasury notes, treasury bonds;

b) Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry quotation
service available to the government entity;

¢} General obligation securities of any state or Jocal government with taxing powers which is rated “A” or better by
a national bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers
which is rated “AA™ or better by a national bond rating service;

d) Unrated general obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral
against funds deposited by that same local government entity,

e) Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by
written evidence that the bank’s pubiic debt is rated “AA™ or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or Standard
& Poor's Corporation; and

1} Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency.

At December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was msured by FDIC
insurance or protected by coliateral provided by the financial institution.

INVESTMENTS
Minnesota Statutes authorize the City to imvest in the following:

a) Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies, its instrumentalities or
organizations creaied by ap act of congress, excluding mortgage-backed securities defined as high risk,
b) Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and whoese only
investments are 1 securities described in (a) above, general obligation tax-exempt securities. or repurchase or
reverse repurchase agreements.
¢} Obligations of the State of Minnesota or any of its municipalities as follows:

1) any security which is a general obligation of any state or local government with taxing

powers which is rated “A” or better by a national bond rating service;

2) any security which is 2 revenue obligation of arty state or local government with taxing
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poewers which is rated “AA™ or better by a national bond rating service; and

3) a genera!l obligation of the Mmnesota housing finance agency which is a moral obligation of

the State of Minnesota and is rated “A” or better by a national bond rating agency.
d) Bankers acceptance of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.
¢) Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of the highest quality. and
maturing in 270 days or less.
1) Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System with
capitalization exceeding $10,000,000; a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government securities te the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York; certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers; or, a bank qualified as a depositor,
g) General obligation temporary bonds of the same governmentaj entity issued under section 429.091, subdivision 7;
469.178, subdivision 5; or 475.61, subdivision 6.
Balances at December 31, 2010;

Investment matuyities (in years)

Fair less than between Between
Investment Type Value 1 vear I and 5 yrs. 6 and 10 yrs.
External investment pool - 4M Fund  $21,738.945 821,738,045 $- $-
Total investments $21,738,945
Deposits 742,239
Petty cash ' 800
Total cash and investments £22.481 984

INVESTMENT RISK

The City's investment policy is to follow Minnesota State Statutes as described above which reduces the
City’s exposure to credit, custodial credit, and interest rate risks. Spectfic risk information for the City is as
follows: :

Interest rate risk ~ The City’s investment policy requires the City to diversify its investment portfolio to
eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity. The policy also
states the City’s mvestment portfolto will remain sufficiently Jiquid to enable the City to meet all operating
requirements which might be reasonably anticipased.

Credit risk — As of December 31, 2010, the City’s exiernal investment pool investment is with the 4M fund
which is regulated by Minnesota Stanites and the Board of Directors of the League of Minnesota Cities,
The 4M fimd is an unrated 2a7-like pool and the fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the
value of pool shares.

Concentration of eredit risk - The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.
57% of the City’s cash and investments are with the 4M fund.

Custodial credit risk — For investments in securities, custodial credit is the risk that in the event of a failure
of the counterparty, the City will not be able 1o recover the value of its investments that are in the
possession of an outside party. As of December 31, 2010, all investments of the Crity were insured,
.registered and held by City or its agent in the City’s name. Investments in mutual funds are not evidenced
by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. and therefore are not subject to custodial credit rigk.
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Note 3 RECETVABLES

Significant receivables balances not expected 1o be collected within one year of December 31, 2010 are as
follows:

Major Funds
20058 Debt Nonmajor
Generzl Service Fund Funds Total
Special assessments receivable 3 - 393,155 $223.107 $316.262
Delinquent Property Taxes 04 400 - - 94 400
564 400 $93,153 $223.107 $410.,662

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivabies for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liguidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds aiso defer revenus recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not vet earned. The City has no unearned revenues as of

December 31, 2010. At the end of the current fiscal year, deferred revenue reporied in the governmental funds was
ax follows:

Unavailable
Delinguent property taxes receivable (General fund) §226.204
Delinguent special assessments (20058 Debt Service Fund) 28,125
Delinguent special assessments {Nonmajor Funds) 1,680
Special Assessments not yet due {Genesal fund) 5,168
Special Assessments nat yet due (20058 Debt Service Fund) 112,297
Special Assessments not vet due (Nonmajor Funds) 251,386
Total deferred revenue for governmental funds 3624860
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Note 4 CAPITAL ASSETS

In accordance with GASE Statement Neo. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including infrastructure in the

government wide statement of net assets. Capital asset activity for the year ended Decermber 31, 2010 was as
follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decrease ‘Transfers Balance
Governmental activities: '
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $322,535 $565.011 5 - F - $887.546
Construction i progress 635247 3,002,365 (122,708) (370,173) 3,144,731
Total capitel assets, not being depreciated 457.782 31.567.376 {122 708} (390,173) 4.632.2717
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 5384775 - - 5,384,775
Park improvements 1,167,357 56,544 - - 1,224,101
Departmental equipment 2,528,561 S18,071 (143,718 - 2,902,913
Sireets 46,395,010 203,584 - - 46,598,594
Storm sewers 2012 144 - - - 2012 144
Total capital asseis, bemng depreciated 57.488.047 778.19¢ (143,719 - S8122,527
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 1,745,942 198,259 1,544.201
Fark improvements 366,621 38904 - 425,615
Departmental equipment 1.533.947 179,741 (143.719) - - 1,569.969
Streets 20,158,802 1,775.017 - 21933819
Storm sewers 388,198 65,396 - 633,594
Total accumulated depreciation 24.383 510 2.277.4G7 143719 - 26527198
Total capital assefs being depreciated - net 33.094,53% (1,496,208} - - 31,595,329
Governmental activities capital assets - net 534.052.319 $2,068,168 {$122.708) ($370.17%) $35.627.606
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Diecrease Transfers Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $30.000 § 3 F - $30.000
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 30.000 - - - 30.000
Capital assets. being depreciated:
Buildngs and inprovements 1 A80,690 1 480,650
Department squipment 25,000 - - 25,000
Utility infrastructure 987.185 - - 370,173 1.357.358
Total capital assefs, being depreciated 2492 875 - - 370,173 2.863.048
L.ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 559823 82.361 - - 642,184
Departiment equipment 25,000 - - - 25,000
Utility infrastructure 564.544 45.245 - - 609,788
Total accumulated depreciation 1.149.367 127,606 - 1276973
Total capital assets being depreciated - net 14587738 {127.606) - 370,173 1,586,073
Business-type activities capital assets - net 51488775 (5127.606) 5§ - $370.173 51.616.075

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/ programs of the Citv as foliows:
P p g 3

Govemnmental activities:

General government $ 127,803

Public safety 133,624

Public works 1,827,551

Parks and recreation 83,339
Depreciation on capital assets held by governmental internal service

activities charged to each function based on use 105.090

Total depreciation expense — governmenta! activities $2.277.407

Business-type activities:

Water utility $ 22195
Sewer utility 23,050
Arena 82,361

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 3§ 127606
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Note 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Ciry issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital items.

All of the reporting entity’s long-term debt is to be repaid from governmental activities.

A. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Governmenial Activities:

2005 A Public Safety Bonds
2005B GO Improvement Bonds
2010C Taxable GO Bonds

Total GO Improvement Bonds
2008A GO Sewer Revenue Bonds
2010 GO Water Revenue Note
2010A Taxable GO Water Revenue Bonds
20108 Taxable GO Utility Revenue Bonds

Total GO Revenue Bonds

Total Bonds Payables
Bond Issuance Premiurn
Tetal City Indebtedness -

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Issue Maturity Interest Origimal Payable
Date Date Rate Issue 12/31/10
9/15/2005 20172026 2.85-430% 1,900,600 1,660,000
9/15/2003 2/1/2016  2.95-3.80% 495 000 323,600
12/15/2010  2/1/2017  3.20-3.45% 1,260,000 1,260,000
3,655,000 3,245,000
3/1/2008 27372029 3.00 - 4.70% 1,715,000 1,665,000
2/17/2010  8/20/2029 1.00% 69,190 68,589
12/15/2010  2/3/2040 4.50-7.00% 11,465,000 11,465,000
1271572010 2/1/2040  3.10 - 7.00% 6,100,000 6,100,000
19,349,190 19,298 580
23,004,190 22,543 589
269,000 294,000
$23,303,190 $22.,842 586

Governmental Activities

Year Ending GO Improvement Bonds GO Revenue Bonds & Notes

December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 125,000 101.044 118,000 777,637
2012 125,000 112,390 123,600 1,199,801
2013 135,000 107,902 148,000 1,195,615
2614 140,000 103.020 153,000 1,194,791
2015 140,000 97,910 158,000 1,185,805
2016 £45.000 81,350 228.000 1,179,498
2017 660,600 55805 263000 1,170,811
2018 100,000 42280 369,060 1,158,761
2010 105,000 38,256 394,000 1,143,586
2020 103,000 34,083 514,000 1,124,433
2021-2023 625,000 97,706 1,960,000 3,320,724
2026-2030 140,000 3,010 3,280,589 4,569 981
2031-2035 - - 5,390,000 3,118,375
2036-2040 - - £,200,000 1.119.300
Total 53,245,000 5874756 £19,298.589 $25433,14%8
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B. CHANGE IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term Jiability activity for the vear ended December 31, 2610, was as follows:

Beginning - Ending Due Within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities;
Bonds Payable:
GO improvement bonds $2,100.000 $1.260,000 115,000 $3,245,600 $125,000
GO revenue bonds & notes 1,715,000 17,634,190 50,601 19,208 589 118,006
Deferred amount:
Issuance premium - 209,000 - 269,000 10,551
Total bonds payable 3,815,000 19,193,190 165,601 22,842,589 253,551
Compensated absences 123,179 11,779 . 134,958 41,866
Total governmental activity
long-term debt $3.938,179  $19,204 969 $165.601 $22,977.547 3205417
€. REVENUES PLEDGED
Revenue Pledged 5 Current Year %
‘ Percent of | ‘Term Remaining Principal Pledged
Use of : Total of Principal and Interest Revenue
Bond Issue Proceeds Tyne Debt Service | Pledge | and Interest Paid Received
G.O. Improvement, 20058 Street
-~ mprovement, improvernents Special assessments : 0% 2006- §361.813 357,693 5254 268
‘ { {2015 !
! ]
) ) Acquisition of i
G.O. Sewer Revenue, 20084 Sewer System Utility Revenues 86% 2000- | $2.065725 | S1:1.97 | §19.500
Special assessments 14% 2028
G.0. Water Revenue Note, 2010 i ;nﬁ‘a.stmcmre ) i
mprovements Utility Revenues 100% 2010- 573,799 $68¢ 5700
2029
. . infrastructure
G.0. Water Revenue, 20104 improvements Utility Rovenes 70% 2012- | §20983114 | 5 - 5 -
(Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds) Federal credit 27% 2040
G.O. Utility Revenue. 20108 ‘infrasuucmre )
mprovements Utility Revenues ; 80% 2012- 513.629.09¢ g S -
{Build America Bonds) " Federal credit 17% 2040
G.O.. 20100 Infrastmomre
LDPrOVEmEnts Utibity Revenues 88Y% 2013 $1,493 487 5 - 5 -
2017
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Note 6 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS-STATEWIDE
AL Plan Description

All full-iime and certain part-time employees of the City of East Bethel are covered by defined benefit plans
administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota {PERA). PER A administers the Public
Empioyees Retirement Fund (PERF), the Public Emplovyees Police and Fire Fund (PEPFT), and the Local
Government Correctional Service Retirement Fund, called the Public Employvees Correctional Fand (PECF), which
are cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement plans. These plans are established and administered in accordance
with Minnesota. Statutes, Chapters 353 and 356.

PERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by
Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan. All
police officers, fire-fighters and peace officers whoe qualify for membership by statute are covered by the PEPFF.
Members who are employed in a county correctiona! institution as a correctional guard or officer, & jomt
Jailer/dispatcher, or as a supervisor of correctional guards or officers or of joint jailers/dispatchers and are directly
responsible for the direct security, custody, and control of the county correctional institution and its inmates are
covered by the PECFE.

PERA provides retirement benefiis as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon death of
eligible members. Benefits are established by state statute, and vest after three vears of credited service. The defined
retirement benafits are based on a member's highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable
service, age, and years of credit at fermination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The retiring member
recetves the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level acerual formuia (Method 2, Under
Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10
years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining vear. The annuity acerual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is
1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7 percent for each remaining vear. Under Method 2,
the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average saiary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated
Plan members for each year of service. For PEPFF members, the annuity accrual rate is 3.0 percent for each vear of
service. The annuity accrual rate is 1.9 percent for each year of service for PECF members. For all PEPFF members,
PECF members, and PERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose annuity 1s calculated using Method 1, & full
armuity is available when age plus vears of service equal 90. Nommal retirement age is 55 for PEPFF and PECF
members and 65 for Basic and Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. Normal retirement age is the age
for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated members hired on or after July 1, 1989, A
reduced retirement annuity is also available o eligible members seeking early retirement.

There are different typss of annuities available to members upon retirement, A single-life annuity is a lifetime
annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree--no survivor annuity is payable, There are also various types of joint
and survivor anauity eptions avaiiable which will be payable over joint Tlives. Members may also leave their
contributions in the fund upon termination of public service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement
age. Refunds of contributions are available at any time to members who leave public service, but before retirement
benefits begin.

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active
plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them vet are bound
by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.
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PERA 1ssues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for PERF, PEPFF, and PECF. That report may be obtained on the Internet ar wwiw . mnpera.ore, by
writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive #200, St. Paul. Minnesota, 55103-2088 or by calling (631) 256-7460 or 1-800-
652-9026.

B. Funding Policy

Minnesota Siaiures Chapter 353 seis the rates for employer and empioyee contributions, These statuies are
established and amended by the state legislawre. The City makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to
the amount required by state statutes. PERF Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were reguired to
contribute 9.10% and 6.0%, respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2010, Contribution rates m the
Coordinated Plan will increase to 6.25% for 2011, PEPFF members were required to contribute 9.4% of their
anmual covered salary in 2010, That rate will increase to $.6% for 2011, PECF members are required to contribute
5.83% of their annual covered salary. The City of East Bethel is required to contribute the following percentages of
annual covered payroll: 11.78% for Basic Plan PERF members, 7.0% for Coordinated Plan PERF members.
14.1.9% for PEPFF members, and 8.75% for PECF members. Employer contribution rates for the Coordinated Plan
increase to 7.25% and 14.4% for PEPFF members effective January 1, 2011, The City’s contributions to the Public
Employees Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$85,451.37, $85,856.77, §78.519, $66,576, $57,141, and §4G 257, respectively. The C,lty s contributions were equal
to the contractually requ1red contributions for each year as set by state statute.

C. Defined Contributior Plan

Two council members of the City of East Bethel are covered by the Public Emplovess Defined Contribution Plan
(PEDCP}, & multipie-empliover deferred compensation plan administered by the Public Emplovees Retirement
Associatien of Minnesota (PERA}. The PEDCP is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenae
Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal.

Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative
expenses. Minnesota Statuies, Chapter 353D.03, specifies the employee and empioyer contribution rates for those
qualified personne! who elect to participate. An eligible elected official who decides to participate conributes 5
percettt of salary which is maiched by the eiected official's employer. For ambulance service personnel. emplover
contributions are determined by the employer, and for salaried employees must be a fixed percentage of salary.
Employer contributions for volunteer personnel may be & unit value for each call or period of alert duty, Employees
who are paid for their services may elect to make member contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer
share. Empicyer and employee contributions are combined and used (o purchase shares in one or more of the seven
accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives 2 percent of
employer conributions and twenty-five hundredths of one percent of the assets in each member's account annually.

Total contributions made by the City of East Bethel during fiscal vear 2010 were:

Contribution Amount Purcemasze of Covered Pavrol Req::xi;ewgi
Empiovee Empiover Emp]ovee Empioyer . Rate<
§576 $576 5.0% 5% o s0%
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D. PENSION PLAN - EAST BETHEL FIRE DEPARTMENT RELIEF ASSOCIATION

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The City contributes to the East Bethel Fire Department Relief Association (the Association) which is the
administrator of a single employer retirement system to provide a defined benefit retirement pian (the Plan) to paid

on-call firefighters of the City who are members of the Association. The Association issues a financial report which
1s available at City offices.

FUNDING POLICY

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 69.772 set the minimum contribution requirement for the City and State Aid on an
annuai basis. These statites are established and amended by the state legislature. The Association is comprised of
paid on-call City employees; therefore, members have no contribution requirements. The City receives the State aid
contribution and is required by state statutes o pass this through as payment to the Association. This transaction, in
the amount of $40,985. is recorded as a revenue and an expenditure in the City’s financial statements. A mandatory
contribution for $39.103, as required by state statutes, was made in 2010. The City’s annual pension cost for the
current year and relation information for the plan is as follows;

Annual pension cost 579,206

Contributions Made:

State Aid $40,983
Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2609
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar ciosed

Remaining amortization period:

Normal cost 20 vears
Prior service cost 10 years
Asset valuation method Market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 5%

Projected salary increases N/A
Inflation rate N/A
Cost of living adjustments None
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Three Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage
Year Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
‘Ending {APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/2008 55,355 100% h
12/31/2009 40,103 100% $
12/31/2010 79,206 100% b3

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Agseis in Pension

Excess of Benefit

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial {(Unfunded} Per year
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded of

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Service

12/31/2007 $1,161,782 085,140 176,642 117.93% 3.400

12/31/2008 $718,747 024,416 {205.669) T7.75% 3,400

12/31/2009 8844 452 075,280 (30,828) 06.84% 3.400

Note 7 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES. TRANSFERS AND LOANS

Interfund payabies and receivables are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements to cover deficit cash

balances at the end of the fiscal year. Interfund receivables and payables of the City are as follows:

Due From/Due To:
Major Funds:
Mumicipal State Aid Street Improverment
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Recycling Fund
SAFER Grant Fund
Capital Project Fund:
Improvements of 2003 Fund
Proprietary Funds:
Water
Sewer
Ice Arena
internal Service Fund:
Equipment Replacement

Interfund Interfund
Receivabies Payables
- $153,157
- 1.621
- 27,028
- 25,077
- 125,543
- 203,321
- 192,934
728,681 -
5728681 £728.681
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Interfund transfers allow the City to allocate financial resources betwesn funds. Interfund transfers were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Out
Governmental Activities:
Governimental funds:
Major Funds:
General Fund . 3 - £763,196
Water Infrastructure ' - §63,524
Utility Infrasturcture - - 346,245
Nonmajor Funds 2,615,690 642,725
Total governmental funds 2,613,690 2,615,690
Total governmental activities 2,615,600 2,615,680
Total interfund transfers 52,615,690 $2.,615,600

On December 31, 2010, one interfund loan is outstanding. In 2010, the 2010A Revenue Bond Fund and the 20108
Utitity Revenue Bond Fund borrowed $150,361 and $89,636, respectively from the Equipment Replacement Fund to
finance bond issuance costs, In accordance with Resolution 2010-74, the loan will be paid back in 10 years with
future utility revenues. No interest wil! be charged.

Note 8 DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS

The City has deficit fund balances/net assets at December 3 1. 2010 as follows:

Fund Amount

Governmental activities:
Municipal State Aid Street Improvement Fund ~ $29,75¢
Improvements of 2003 Fund 25,147

Note $ CONTINGENCIES

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to varicus risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Workers compensation coverage is provided through a
pooled self-insurance program through the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust {IMCIT). The City pavs an
annual premium to the LMCIT. The City is subject to supplemental assessments if deemed necessary by the
LMCIT. The LMCIT reinsures through Workers Compensation Reinsurance Association {WCRA) as required by
law. For workers compensation, the City has no deductible. The City has selected the regular premium opiion for its
coverage. Under this option, the City’s premium is calculated based on City payroll, by class. The premium is
adjusted by an experience modification factor, which reflects the City’s previous loss experience. This option is a
“fully insured” option; premium payments are the City's only habilsty. Property, casualty, and antomobile insurance
coverage are also provided through a pooled self insurance program through the LMCIT. The City pays an annual
premium to the LMCIT. The City is subject to supplemental assessments if deemed necessary by the LMCIT. The
LMCIT remsures through commercial companies for claims in excess of various amounts. The City retains risk for
the deductible portions. These deductibles are considered immaterial to the financial statements. The City
continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, inciuding employee health and disability

48



CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
NOTES 7O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

msurance. There were no significant reductions i insurance from the previous year or setfiements in excess of
msurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal vears.

B. LITIGATION

The City attorney has indicated that existing and pending lawsuiis, claims and other actions in which the Citvisa
defendant are etther covered by msurance; of an immaterial amount; or, in the judgment of the City attorney,
remotely recoverable by plaintiffs.

The City was required to post 2 bond with the Anoka County District Court as a surety relating to a case against the
Anoka County Housing and Redevelopment Authority. The City deposited $201,33% with Anoka County District
Court on December 2, 2009. Shounid the City prevail the deposit, plus interest, will be returned o the City. Should
the County prevail in this tawsuit, the City would forfeit the bond.

C. FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS

The City receives financial assistance from county and state governmental agencies primarily in the form of grants.
The disbursement of funds received under these programs generatly requires compliance with the terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disaliowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the applicable fund. However, in the opinion of management,
any such disallowed clatms will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements included herein or on
the overall financial position of the City at December 31, 2010.

. CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The City has entered mto several contractual commitments that are in process at year end for the water and sewer
infrastructure project.

Note 10 DEFERRED AD VALOREM TAX LEVIES - BONDED DERT

General obligation bond issues sold by the City are financed by ad valorem tax levies and special assessment bond
issues soid by the City are partiaily financed by ad vatorem tax-levies in addition to special assessments levied
against the benefiting properties. When a bond issue to be financed partialty or completely by ad valorem ax Jevies
is sold, specific annual amounts of such tax levies are stated in the bond resolution and the County Auditor is
notified and instructed to levy these iaxes over the appropriate vears. The future tax levies are subject to
canceljation when and if the City has provided alternative sources of financing. The City Council 1s required to levy
any additional taxes found necessary for full payment of principal and mterest. These furure scheduled tax levies
are not shown as assets in the accompanying financial statements at December 31, 2010, Future scheduled tax
levies for all bonds outstanding at December 31, 2010 totaled $2,323.071.
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Note 11 DESIGNATIONS AND RESERVATIONS OF FUND EQUITY

At December 31, 2010, the City had reserved portions of its various fund equities as follows:

Governmental activities:
Major Funds:

20058 Street Improvement Fund reserved for debt service $333,1053
2010A Revenue Bond Fund reserved for debt service 608,730
Nen major Funds: :
2005A Public Safety Bond Fun reserved for debt service 160,173
2008A Sewer Revenue Bond Fund reserved for debt service 46,672
2010 Water Revenue Note reserved for debt service 28
20108 Utility Revenue Bond reserved for debt service 358,753
2010C Bond reserved for debt service 192 228
Total reservations of govermmental activities funds 81699771

Note 12 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In accordance with State Stamute, the City provides the opportunity for retired employees te maintain insurance
coverage with the City until age 65. The retired employee is responsible for 100% of the cost. The City does not
pool insurance costs among employees; all insurance premiums are age-rated. No cross subsidy exists hetween
different age groupings. Consequently, the City has no liability for post employment bensfits. No reporting activity
is necessary for the City with regard to GASB Statement No. 43 Financial Reporting for Post Employment Benefit

Plans Other Than Pension Plans or GASB Statement No. 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by Emplovers for
Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Plans.

Note 13 RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The City implemented GASB 51, dccounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets effective January 1,
2010, which required the City to capital and amortize mtangible assets. Pursuant to GASB Statement 51, in the case
of initial capitalization of intangible assets, the City chose not to retroactively report permanent easements. The City
had already accounted for temporary easement and computer software at historical cost and therefore refroactive
reporting was not necessary. The amounts of these assets are not material to the financial statements and therefore,

have not been reported separately from other capital assets. The City acquired no intangible assets for the year
ending December 31, 2010,
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULF - GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement ¥

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Page 1 of 3
Revenue:
Taxes 54,612,647 $4.601,082 $4,583.900 {817,182)
Licenses and permits 142,356 142,350 106,387 {35,963)
Intergovernmental:

Other aid 212278 212,278 210,639 (1,639
Charges for services ) 87,370 87,370 88,133 763
Fines and forfeitures 58,100 58,100 58,519 419
Investment income 20,000 20,000 3,882 (16,018}
Franchise fess 28,000 28,000 35,945 4 7,943
Refunds and reimbursements 33,500 35,500 42,960 7460

Total revenue 3,196,245 5,184,680 5,130,465 {54,215}
Expenditures:
" General government:
Mayor and council:
Current;
Persconal services 33,427 33,427 31,275 2,152
Other charges 41,433 42,433 37,539 4,854
Total mayor and counci! 74,860 75,860 68,814 7.046
Elections:
Current:
Matertals and supplies ' 200 200 144 54
Contractual services 11,140 10,940 9412 1,528
Total elections 11.340 11,140 0.556 1,584
Planning and zoning:
Current:
Personal services 187,982 187,982 184,253 3,729
Mazerials and supplies 11,028 11,028 8,759 2,269
Contractual services 7,990 7.340 4,439 2,93
Total planning and zoning 207,000 206,350 197,451 8.859
Administration/Support:
Current:
Personal services 572,760 572,760 573,240 (480)
Materials and supplies 500 Q00 385 515
Contractual services 34,975 33,870 32,058 1,812
Total administration/support 608,635 607,530 603,683 1,847
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
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Statement 9

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Page 2 of 3
Expenditures: (continued)
General government buildings:

Current: . :
Materials and supplies $4.300 $4.300 82,503 81,797
Contractual services 4G 200 49.200 30,203 18,997

Total general government buildings 53,500 33,500 32,706 20,794
Miscellaneous: .
Current:
Contractual services 243 000 243,000 230,953 12,047
Total general government 1,198,335 1,197,380 1,145,163 52217
Public safety:
Fire protection:
Current:
Personal services 330,585 330,585 320,754 9,831
Materials and supplies 37,100 37,100 ' 32,828 4272
Contractual services 204,250 200,550 183,459 17,091
Total current 571,935 568,235 337,041 31194
“Capital outlay - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Total fire protection 581,933 578,235 537,041 41,194
Police protection:

Current:

Contractual services 1,019,790 1,019,790 1,014,037 5,753
Total police protection 1,019,790 1,019,750 1,014,037 5,753
Building inspectior:

Current;

Personal services 249,622 248622 244,168 5,454

Materials and supplies 2,850 2,800 3,047 (247)

Contractual services 8,275 5,975 5,052 923
Total building inspection 260,747 258,397 252,287 6,130
Total public safety 1,862,472 1.856.422 1,803,345 53,077
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FLIND
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Statement ¢

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Page 3 0f 3
Expenditures: (continued}
Public works:
Street maintenance:
Current:
Personal services $420,903 $5420,903 $417.618 53,285
Materiats and supplies 117,560 117,460 115,786 1,674
Contractual services 240,930 240,130 217,547 22,588
Total street maintenance 779,393 778,493 750,946 27.547
Parks and recreation:
Current:
Personal services 288,131 267,063 223,899 43,164
Materials and supplies 41,700 41,400 33,189 8,211
Contractual services 66,790 69,600 57,453 12,147
Total parks and recreation 396.621 378,063 314,541 63,522
Other expenditures:
Current:
Materials and supplies 9,500 9,500 10,026 (526)
Coniractual services 178,986 176,626 170,648 5,978
Total other expenditures 188,486 186,126 180,674 5,452
Contingency 7,742 25,000 24,378 622
Total expenditures 4,433,049 4,421 484 4.219,0647 202.437
Revenue over (under) expenditires 763,196 763,196 911,418 148,222
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (763,196) {763.196) {763.196) -
Total other financing sources (uses) - {763.196) (763.196} {763,196}
Net increase {decrease) in fund batance & - 3 - 148,222 5148227
Fund balance - January 1 1.836.527
Fund balance - December 31
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Statement 10

Assels
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Special assessmentis receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to other funds
Internal loans
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities

Fund balances;
Reserved
Unreserved:
Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Total
Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Govemnmental
Revenue Service Project Funds
$716,076 $847,520 51,344 484 52,908,080
- - 1,330 1,330
43,146 - - 43,146
- ' 180,000 73,067 253.067
$759,222 11,627,520 $1.419,081 $3,205,823
§3,018 §35 53,351 56,404
28,649 - 25,077 53,726
- %9639 - 86,639
- 180,000 73,067 253,067
31.667 269,674 101,495 402.836
- 757,846 - 757,846
727,555 - 1,317,586 2,045,141
727,553 757.846 1.317,586 2,802,087
$759,222 $1,027,520 51,419,081 33,205,823
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 11

Revenues:
General property taxes
Special assessments
intergovernmental
investment income
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

Revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net increase {decrease) in fund balance
Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

Total
Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Project Funds

5 - 3158574 & - $158,574

- 19,500 21,157 40,657

395,844 - 286,672 685,516

69 408 3,843 4,322

14,341 - 4,756 19,097

410,254 178,482 316,430 908,166

91,841 - - 01,841

65.002 - - 65,002

- - 191,029 191,029

- - 38,024 38,024

869,664 - 697,212 1,566,876

- 120,601 - 120,601

- 128,909 101 129,010

- 120,887 - 120,887

1.026,507 370,397 026,366 2,323,270
(616,253) (191.815) (606,936) (141510643

- 671,868 69,150 741,058

1,877,851 700 037,139 2,615,650
(642,025 - (700} (642,725)

1,335,826 672,568 705,629 2,714,023

719,573 480,653 08,693 1,298,919

7,982 277,193 1,218,893 1.504 068

$727.555 $757,846 $1,317,586 52,802,987
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SUBCOMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAZJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Staterment 12

Miscelianeous Totals
Grants/ SAFER Nonmajor
Recycling Donations Grant HRA Special Revenue
Assets Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Cash and investments $ - $4,586 § - $711.490 §$716,076
Diue from other governments 14,540 - 28,606 - 43.146
Total assets $14.540 $4,586 $28,606 $711,490 £756.222
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Acgounts and contracts pavable $1,026 £ - §1,578 3414 $3,018
Due to other funds 1,621 - 27,028 - 28,649
Total Habilities 2,647 - 28,606 414 31,667
Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Undesignated 11,893 4,586 - 711,076 727.555
Total fund balances 11,893 4.586 - 711,076 727,555
Total liabilities and fund balances 314,540 $4.586 $28,606 $711.490 $759,222
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 13

Totals
Miscellaneous Nonmajor
Grants/ SAFER HRA Special
Recyeling Donations Grant Grant HRA Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $30,721 g - $63,202 §301,921 h) - $395,844
Other 4,941 4,400 - - 14,341
Interest Income - - . - 69 69
Total revenues 44,662 4.400 63,202 301,921 69 410,254
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 33,768 9G7 - - 57,676 91.841
Pablic safety - 1,800 63,202 - - 65,002
Caprtal outlay - - - 869.664 - 869 664
Total expenditures 33,768 2,797 63,202 869,664 57.076 1.026.507
Revenues over {under) expendimures ) 6,894 1,603 {567,743) (57,007 {616,253)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - 1,209,768 768,383 1,977,851
Transfers out - - - - {642,025} - (642,025)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 567.743 768,083 1.335.826
Net increase {decrease} ip fund balance 6,894 1,603 - - 711,076 719,573
Fund balance - Jenuary 1 4,959 2,983 - - T.O82
Fund balence - December 31 $11.893 $4 586 % - by - §711,076 $727,555
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA.
SUBCOMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAIJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Statement 14

2005 Pubiic 20084 Sewer 2010 Water 20108 Utility ' Totals
Safety Bonds Revenue Revenue Revenue 20100 Debt Service
Assets Fund Bond Fund Note Bond Bond Funds
Cash and investments $1460,173 $46,707 820 $448.392 - 162228 $847.520
Special assessments receivable:
Deferred - 188,000 - - - 180006
Total assets $166,173 $226,707 20 5448392 $192.224 $1.027.520
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Laabilities:
Accounts payabie 5 - $35 § - 5 - § - 333
internal toan - - - 89,639 $89.639
Deferred revenue - 180000 - - - 180,000
Total liabilities - 180,035 - 89.634 - 269 674
Fund balances:
Reserved 160,173 46,672 20 358,753 192,228 757,846
Unreserved:
Undesignated - - - - - -
Total fund balances 164,173 46,672 20 358,753 192,228 757.846
Total abilities and fund balances ) $160,173 $226,707 $20 5448 392 3192228 $1,027.520
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR DEBRT SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 15

Totals
2005 Public 2008 A Sewer 2010 Water 20108 Utility Debi
Safety Bonds Revenue Revenue Revenue 2010C Service
Fund Bond Fund Note Bond Bond Funds
Revenues: o
Property taxes $147.354 $11,220 8 - 5 - 5 - $158.574
Special assessments - 19,500 - - [ 19,500
Investment income 244 164 - - - 408
Total revenues 147598 30.884 - - - 178 ARz
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 70,000 30,000 641 - 12,601
Interest and fiscal charges 66,850 61,970 79 - - 128,909
Bond issugnce costs - - - 111.115 6,772 120,887
Total expenditures 136,860 111,970 630 111,115 9,772 370,397
Revenues over expenditures 10.738 (81.086) {680 {111,115} (9,772) (191,615}
Other finaneing sources (wses):
Bond proceeds B - - 469,868 202,000 671,868
Transfers in - - 760 - - 700
Total other financing sources (uses) - 700 469 868 202,000 HTL568
Net increase {decrease) in fund balance 10,738 (81,086} 20 358,753 192,228 480,653
Fund batance - January 1 149,435 127758 - - - 277.193
Fund balance - December 31 $160,173 546,672 $20 5358753 $192,228 $757.846
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAIJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Park Park Improvemenis
Acquisition Trails Minard Street of 2063
. Fund Fund Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and mvestments §32,649 $124 419 $17.637 & -
Accounts receivable - B - .
Special assessments receivable:
Delinquent - - - a27
Deferred - - - 37.207
Total assets $32.640 $124,419 517,637 $38,134
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts payable : 201 - - 76
Due to other funds . - - 25,077
Deferred revenue - - - 38,134
Total habilities 201 - - 63281
Fund balances:
Unreserved: '
Undesignated 32,448 124,419 17,637 {25,147}
Total fund balances 32,448 124 419 17,637 (25,147
Total liabilities and fund balances $32.649 $124.419 $17.637 $38.134
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Statement 16

Totals
Nonmajor

Street Park Utility Lunde/Jewell Capital

Capital Capital Improvement Building Street Project

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$1,041,765 518,606 $22,776 $56,297 $30,335 51,344 484
- - 1.530 - - 1,530
715 - - - 38 1,680
15,626 - 530 - 15,024 71,387
$1.061,106 518,606 524,836 556,297 $45.307 51,419,081
383 2,662 - - 35 3,351
- - - - - 25077
16,341 - 530 - 15,062 73,067
19,724 2,662 530 - 15,097 101,493
1,041,382 15944 24,306 56.297 30,300 1,317,586
1,041,382 15,944 24,306 36,267 - 30,300 1,317.586
51,061,106 318,606 $324.836 $56,297 $45.397 $1.419.081
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
SUBCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJBCT FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Park Improvements Street
Acquisition Park Trails Minard Street of 2003 Captial
Fund Fund Fund Fand Fund
Revenues:
Special assessments h) $ 5§ - $10.344 356,277
Intergovernmental _ - - - - -
Investment income 149 229 54 - 3,099
Other - - - -
Total revenues 149 229 54 10,344 9376
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works . - - 70 190,924
Parks and recreation 8,660 160 - - -
Capital outlay 13,637 - - 255,397
Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 1] -
Total expenditures 22,297 160 171 446,321
Revenues over (under) expenditures (22148} 69 54 10,173 (436,943
Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds - - - - -
Transfers in - 62,139 - - 425,000
‘ransfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 62,139 - 423,000
Net increase {decrease) in fund balance (22,148 62,208 54 10,173 (11,945)
Fund balance - January } 34,596 62.211 17,583 (35,3200 1,053,327
Fund balance - December 31 $32,448 $124.419 517,637 (325,147 $1.041,382
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Staiement 17

Totals

Nonmajor

Whispering Park Utility Lunde/Jewell Capital

Aspen Well Capital Improvement Building Street Project

Fung Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
5 - 5§ - F - b - 34,536 $21,157
289,672 - - - - 289,672
- 118 64 51 §1 3,845
- - 4,756 - - 4736
289,672 118 4,820 51 4,617 319,430
- - . - 35 191,029
- 29,204 - - - 38,024
317.439 110,719 - - - 697,212
- - - 101
317,459 139,923 - 35 926,366
(27,787} {139,805} 4,820 51 4,582 (606,936)
69,190 - - - - 69,150
100,000 - 50,000 - 637,139
- - {700y - - {7003
69,150 100,000 (700) 50,000 - 705,629
41,403 {39.805) 4,120 50,051 4,582 98,693
(41.403) 55,749 20,186 6,246 25,718 1,218,893
5 - $15,944 $24,306 $56,207 $30,300 $1,317.586
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RECYCLING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 1§

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (MNegative)
Revenue: _ :
Intergovernmental $30,000 £30,000 §30,721 $721
~ Miscellaneous revenues 10,000 16,000 9941 (59}
Total revenue 40,000 : 40000 40,662 6462
Expenditures:
Current:
Community services 33612 33,612 33,768 (156)
Total expenditures 33,612 33,612 33,768 (156)
Revenue over (under) expenditurss 6,388 6.388 6,894 506
Net change in fund balance $6,388 $6.388 6,894 3306
Fund balance - January 1 4,599
Fund balance - December 31 $11,893
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - MISCELLANEOUS GRANTS/DONATIONS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 19

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue:
Donations b - - 54,400 $4,400
Total revenue - - 4,400 4,400
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 997 (997)
Public Safety - - 1,800 {1.800)
Total expenditures - - 2,797 {2,797)
Revenue over (under) expenditures - - 1.603 1,603
Net change in fand balance 5 - - 1,603 $1.603
Fund baiance --January 1 2,983
Fund balance - December 31 $4.586
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SAFER GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2610

Statement 20

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovemmental | $8E,300 $88.500 363,202 ($25,298)
Total revenue 88,500 88.500 63,202 (25,298)
Expenditures:
Current:
Pablic safety 88,500 88.500 63,202 25.298
Total expenditures 88,500 88,500 63,202 25298
Revenue over (under) expenditures . - - -
Net change in fund balance § - 5 - 5 -
Fund balance - January | -
Fund balance - December 31 ]
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HRA GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 21

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgsted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental F - 5o $301,921 5301921
Total revenue - - 301,921 301,921
Expenditures:
Capital outlay - - 869,664 (860.604)
Total expenditures - - 869,664 (869.664)
Revenue over [under) expenditures - - {567.743) (567,743}
Other financing sources (uses);
Transfers in 1,209,768 1,209,768
Transfers out - - {642,025) {642,(25)
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 i 567,743 567,743
Net change in fund balance 5 - § - - b

Fund balance - January

Fund balance - December 31 $
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HRA FUND Statement 22
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Ammmts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenue:
Interest Income 5 - ¥ - £60 $69
Total revenue - . 69 64
Expenditures: .
General Government 32,500 72,500 57,076 15,424
Total expenditures 32,500 72.500 57,076 15,424
Revenue over (under) expenditures {32,506) {72,500} (57,007) 15,453
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 126,058 126,058 768,083 642,025
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (nses) 126,058 126,058 768,083 642,025
Net change in fund balance 93,558 £53,358 711076 3657.518

Fund balance - January 1

Fund balanice - December 31 $711.076
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2030

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with escrow agent
Accounts receivabie
Due from other funds
Interfund loan
Total current assets
Nongurrent assets:
Capital asseis;
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
Liabiitties:
Current Habilities:
Compensaied absences - current porton
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent itabilities:
Compensated absences pavable - noncurrent portion
Total noncurrent habilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets. net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Statement 23

: Total
Compensated Equipment Internal
Absences Replacement Service Funds
$126,810 $806,988 $933,798
- 201,339 201,339
8,148 - £.148
- 728,681 728,681
240,000 240,000
134,958 1,977,008 2,111,966
- 1,214,806 1,214,906
- 1,214,906 1,214,506
- {271,956) {271,956
- 642,950 942,950
- 942,950 542,950
134,958 2,919 958 3,054,916
41.866 41.866
41,866 - 41,866
©3.092 - 93092
83,001 - 83,092
134,038 - 134 95§
- 042,950 942 050
- 1,977,008 1,977,008
s - $2,919,958 52,010 058
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Statement 24

: Totals
Compensated Equipment Internal
Absences Replacement Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Departmentai billings : $17.899 $246.700 $264,599
Total operating revenues 17,899 246,700 264,599
Operating expenses:
Wages and fringe 17,89¢ - ‘ 17,850
Depreciation - 103,090 105.090
Total operating expenses 17,89¢ 105,090 122,989
Operating income (loss) - 141,610 141,610
Nonoperating revenues (expenses);
Sale of capital assets - 21,665 21,665
Investment income . - 5,880 5,880
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - 27.545 27.545
Income (1oss) before contributions and transfers - 169,153 169,135
Change in net assets - 169,155 169,155
Net assets - January 1 - 2,750,803 2,750,803
Net assets - Decemnber 31 5 - $2,919.958 $2,919.958
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CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2010

Statement 25

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payment to suppliers
Advances w0 other funds

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Internal loan

Net cash flows from nencapital financing activities

Cash fiows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital equipment sales
Capital equipment purchase
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
Investiment income

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - January 1

Cash and cash equivaients - December 31

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided {used) by operaiing activities:

Operating income (loss}

Adjustments te reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in receivables

Decrease (increase) in due from other funds

increase (decrease) in accounts pavable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used) operating activities

Total
Compensated Equipment Internal
Absences Replacement Service Funds
$17.89% $246,700 $264,599
- {21,486} (21,486)
(728.681) (728,681}
17.899 (505.467) {485 568)
- {203.668) (203,668)
- {203,668) (203,668}
- 21,663 21,665
- (518.671) {518.071%
- (496.406) {496,406}
- 5,880 5,880
17.86¢ (1,197,661) (1,179,762}
108,011 2.004.649 2,113.560
$126.810 $806,988 $933,798
¥ - $141.610 $141,610
- 105,050 105,060
6,120 - 6,120
- (728,681) (728,681%
11,779 (21.486) (9,707
17,899 {64507 (627.178)
$17.899 (8503 .467) {$485 368}
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HLB TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.

Certified Public Accountants

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of East Bethel, Minnesota

We have completed the 2010 audit of the City of East Bethel, Minnesota and have
issued our report thereon. Our Independent Auditor’s Report is included in the City’s
Annual Financial Report.

This Audit Management Letter provides a summary of audit results along with

comparisons and trend analysis of financial results.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the City. We are available to discuss this report

with you.

—
el Tantyon Bpet?, o/

HLB TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.

White Bear Lake, Minnesota

May 23, 2011

4810 White Bear Parkway White Bear Lake, MN 55110 651.426.7000 651.426.5004 fax www.hlbtr.com
Equal Opportunity Employer 100-Percent Employee-Owned

HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. is an independent member of HLB International, a world-wide organization of professional accounting firms.



City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Financial Statement Analysis

FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

The basic financial statements of the City of East Bethel are presented in Statements 1
through 8 of the 2010 Annual Financial Report. The following comments relate to these

financial statements.

Summary of Financial Activity

The schedule below presents a condensed summary of all funds:

Increase
Revenue Expenditures (Decrease) in Fund Balance/
and Other and Other Transfers Fund Balance/ Net Assets
Fund Sources Uses (Net) Net Assets 12/31/10
General $5,130,465 $4,219,047 ($763,196) $148,222 $1,984,749
Special Revenue:
Recycling 40,662 33,768 - 6,894 11,893
Miscellaneous Grants/Donations 4,400 2,797 - 1,603 4,586
SAFER Grant Fund 63,202 63,202 - - -
HRA Grant Fund 301,921 869,664 567,743 - -
HRA Fund 69 57,076 768,083 711,076 711,076
Debt Service:
2005B Street Improvement 254,932 57,693 - 197,239 333,195
2005 Public Safety Bonds 147,598 136,860 - 10,738 160,173
2008A Sewer Revenue Bond 30,884 111,970 - (81,086) 46,672
2010A Revenue Bond 801,381 192,651 - 608,730 608,730
2010 Water Revenue Note - 680 700 20 20
2010B Utility Revenue Bond 469,868 111,115 - 358,753 358,753
2010C Revenue Bond 202,000 9,772 - 192,228 192,228
Capital Projects: -
Park Acquisition 149 22,297 - (22,148) 32,448
Park Trails 229 160 62,139 62,208 124,419
Minard Street 54 - - 54 17,637
Improvements of 2003 10,344 171 - 10,173 (25,147)
Street Capital 9,376 446,321 425,000 (11,945) 1,041,382
Whispering Aspen Well 358,862 317,459 - 41,403 -
Park Capital 118 139,923 100,000 (39,805) 15,944
Utility Improvement 4,820 - (700) 4,120 24,306
Building Capital 51 - 50,000 50,051 56,297
Lunde/Jewell Street 4,617 35 - 4,582 30,300
MSA Street Improvements 206,526 1,168,044 - (961,518) (29,759)
Water Infrastructure 12,792,088 1,170,576 (863,524) 10,757,988 10,757,988
Utility Infrastructure 4,858,791 210,292 (346,245) 4,302,254 4,302,254
Enterprise Funds:
Water Utility 403,336 55,568 - 347,768 313,068
Sewer Utility 80,247 80,651 - (404) 127,546
Ice Arena 292,734 293,598 - (864) 603,664
Internal Service Funds:
Compensated Absences 17,899 17,899 - - -
Equipment Replacement 274,245 105,090 - 169,155 2,919,958
Total $26,761,868 $9,894,379 $0 $16,867,489 $24,724,380




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Financial Statement Analysis

Property Taxes

Property taxes receivable consist of taxes levied in the previous seven years by the City

but not yet collected by the County and remitted to the City. A summary of the activity for

2010 is as follows:

Tax levy

Less market value homestead credit
Net tax levy

Less current collections
Balance transferred to delinquent

Delinquent tax receivable - January 1, 2010
Less delinquent tax collections
Subtotal
Add 2010 uncollected amounts
Less adjustments/unallotment
Delinquent tax receivable - December 31, 2010

Collection rate

Property Tax State
Portion Portion
$5,021,373 $ -
(242,919) 242,919
4,778,454 242,919
(4,613,854) -
$164,600 $242,919
$176,032 $ -
(106,247) -
69,785 0
164,720 242,919
(8,301) (242,919)
$226,204 $0
97% 0%




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Financial Statement Analysis

Cash Overdrafts

Several funds had an interfund loan balance at December 31, 2010. These funds with
interfund loan balances have in effect “borrowed” from funds with positive cash balances. A

schedule of cash balances for all funds is as follows:

Positive Net
Cash Interfund Cash
Fund Balances Loan Balance
General $2,192,757 $ - $2,192,757
Special Revenue:
Recycling - (1,621) (1,621)
Miscellaneous Grants/Donations 4,586 - 4,586
SAFER Grant Fund - (27,028) (27,028)
HRA Grant Fund - - -
HRA Fund 711,490 - 711,490
Debt Service: -
2005B Street Improvement 333,195 - 333,195
2005 Public Safety Bonds 160,173 - 160,173
2008A Sewer Revenue Bond 46,707 - 46,707
2010A Revenue Bond 759,091 - 759,091
2010 Water Revenue Note 20 - 20
2010B Utility Revenue Bond 448,392 - 448,392
2010C Revenue Bond 192,228 - 192,228
Capital Projects: -
Park Acquisition 32,649 - 32,649
Park Trails 124,419 - 124,419
Minard Street 17,637 - 17,637
Improvements of 2003 - (25,077) (25,077)
Street Capital 1,041,765 - 1,041,765
Park Capital 18,606 - 18,606
Utility Improvement 22,776 - 22,776
Building Capital Fund 56,297 - 56,297
Lunde/Jewell Street 30,335 - 30,335
MSA Street Improvements - (153,157) (153,157)
Water Infrastructure 10,962,621 - 10,962,621
Utility Infrastructure 4,392,442 - 4,392,442
Enterprise Funds:
Water Utility - (125,543) (125,543)
Sewer Utility - (203,321) (203,321)
Ice Arena - (192,934) (192,934)
Internal Service Funds: .
Compensated Absences 126,810 - 126,810
Equipment Replacement 1,008,327 728,681 1,737,008
Total $22,683,323 $0 $22,683,323




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Financial Statement Analysis

Several of these interfund loans are long-term in nature. We recommend the City
determine if these interfund loans will be repaid. If the interfund loan will not be repaid, we

recommend the City determine a funding source and authorize an interfund transfer.

Funds with interfund loan balances at December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Fund Amount Comments
Recycling $1,621 Temporary deficit
SAFER Grant 27,028 Future revenues will eliminate the deficit
Improvements of 2003 25,077  Future assessment collections will eliminate the deficit
MSA Street Improvements 153,157 Future MSA allotments will eliminate the defecit
Water Utility 125,543  Primarily due to start-up
Sewer Utility 203,321 Primarily due to start-up
Ice Arena 192,934  Future revenues will eliminate the deficit
Total $728,681




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

General Fund

GENERAL FunND

The General Fund of a city is maintained to account for current operating and capital

outlay expenditures common to all cities. These basic services include (but are not limited

to) public safety, public works, parks and recreation and general government.

The fund balance of the General Fund increased by $148,222 in 2010 as follows:

Final
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Property taxes $4,601,082 $4,583,900 ($17,182)
Licenses and permits 142,350 106,387 (35,963)
Intergovernmental 212,278 210,639 (1,639)
Charges for services 87,370 88,133 763
Fines and forfeitures 58,100 58,519 419
Investment income 20,000 3,982 (16,018)
Franchise fees 28,000 35,945 7,945
Miscellaneous 35,500 42,960 7,460
Total revenues 5,184,680 5,130,465 (54,215)
Expenditures:
General government 1,197,380 1,145,163 52,217
Public safety 1,856,422 1,803,345 53,077
Street maintenance 778,493 750,946 27,547
Parks and recreation 378,063 314,541 63,522
Other 186,126 180,674 5,452
Contingency 25,000 24,378 622
Total expenditures 4,421,484 4,219,047 202,437
Revenues over (under) expenditures 763,196 911,418 148,222
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (763,196) (763,196) -
Net change in fund balance $0 $148,222 $148,222




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

General Fund

The City's December 31, 2010 General Fund balance totaled $1,984,749. The General
Fund balance has been as follows for 2000 through 2010:

Year End Fund Balance
Increase

Year Amount (Decrease)
2000 $828,921

2001 963,522 $134,601
2002 1,153,580 190,058
2003 1,146,352 (7,228)
2004 1,105,026 (41,326)
2005 1,119,341 14,315
2006 1,389,152 269,811
2007 1,389,372 220
2008 1,710,083 320,711
2009 1,836,527 126,444
2010 1,984,749 148,222

General Fund reserve balances are an important component of City financial management.

When evaluating the adequacy of reserve balances, there are a number of important factors to

consider. Several areas to consider are illustrated as follows:

Need for Reserve Balances

Cash Flow Timing
Difference

G

Intergovernmental
Revenue Cutbacks

Capital Outlay
Replacement

Emergency or
Unanticipated
Expenditures

Special
Projects

Benefits of Reserve Balances

Favorable bond rating
indicator

Supplements revenues
with investment income

\
\
\I

Avoids temporary
overdrafts prior to major
receipts

Provides resources for

minor projects or —> <«
feasibility reports

) 4 ) O —_

—

Avoids overburdening
of annual budgets for
certain capital outlay

Provides the City
greater options to deal
with unexpected events
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The City approved a General Fund unreserved balance policy in 2008 (Resolution
2008-31). The policy is to maintain a balance at 35% of the subsequent year’s General Fund

tax levy. The required fund balance reserve at December 31, 2010 using the 2008 policy is

as follows:
$4,935,601 2011 General Fund tax levy
X 35%
1,727,460 Calculated 2010 reserve
$1,984,749 2010 General Fund balance
$257,289 Amount of fund balance exceeding policy requirements
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds are a classification of funds to account for revenues (and
expenditures thereto) segregated by City policy, federal law, or state statutes for specific

purposes. The City maintained the following Special Revenue Funds during 2009 and 2010:

Fund Balance
December 31, Increase
Fund 2009 2010 (Decrease)
Recycling $4,999 $11,893 $6,894
Miscellaneous Grants/Donations 2,983 4,586 1,603
SAFER Grant Fund - - -
HRA Grant Fund - - -
HRA Fund - 711,076 711,076
$7,982 $727,555 $719,573




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Special Revenue Funds

Recycling Fund (226)
This fund was established to account for the collection and disposal of recyclable

waste. A schedule of activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues and transfers:
Intergovernmental grants $30,321 $36,153 $30,721
Other 10,297 10,649 9,941
Interest income - 3 -
Total revenues and transfers 40,618 46,805 40,662
Expenditures:
Recycling 30,817 34,803 33,768
Capital outlay - 12,501 -
Interest expense 221 - -
Total expenditures 31,038 47,304 33,768
Net change in fund balance 9,580 (499) 6,894
Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 (4,082) 5,498 4,999
Fund balance - December 31 $5,498 $4,999 $11,893
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Miscellaneous Grants/Donations Fund (227)

This fund was established to account for miscellaneous grant monies received and

expended. A schedule of activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Intergovernmental grants $4,800 $3,700 $ -
Other 2,806 2,550 4,400
Total revenues 7,606 6,250 4,400
Expenditures:
General government 3,696 700 997
Public safety 2,000 6,022 1,800
Parks and recreation 455 - -
Total expenditures 6,151 6,722 2,797
Net change in fund balance 1,455 (472) 1,603
Fund balance - January 1 2,000 3,455 2,983
Fund balance - December 31 $3,455 $2,983 $4,586
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SAFER Grant Fund (231)

This fund was established to account for a four-year grant agreement with the

Department of Homeland Security. The grant, Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) is a 100% federal funded grant in the amount of $346,750. A schedule

of the activity for 2009 and 2010 is as follows:

2009 2010
Revenues:

Intergovernmental grants $13,901 $63,202
Expenditures:

Public safety 13,901 63,202
Net change in fund balance 0 0
Fund balance - January 1
Fund balance - December 31 $0 $0

The funds for the grant are available to be spent by November 6, 2013. We recommend

that the City review the budgeted expenditures for the grant so that all expenditures are in

accordance with the agreement.
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HRA Grant Fund (220)
This fund was established to account for grant monies received from the Anoka County
HRA. A schedule of the activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues and transfers:
Intergovernmental grants $180,607 $159,496 $301,921
Transfer in - - 1,209,768
Total revenues and transfers 180,607 159,496 1,511,689
Expenditures and transfers:
Capital outlay 180,607 159,496 869,664
Transfer out - - 642,025
Total expenditures and transfers 180,607 159,496 1,511,689
Net change in fund balance 0 0 0
Fund balance - January 1 - - -
Fund balance - December 31 $0 $0 $0

Anoka County HRA reimbursed the City for expenditures related to Public Utilities
Planning. Total costs reimbursed for the past three years amounted to $642,000. Total
project costs incurred through 2010 amounted to $1,209,768 and were reimbursed by a
transfer from the Water and Utility Infrastructure Funds in 2010. The HRA revenues
received of $642,000 were transferred to the HRA Fund in 2010.
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HRA Fund (230)
This fund was established to account for activities of the City’s HRA. A schedule of

the activity for 2010 is as follows:

2010
Revenues and transfers:
Interest income $69
Transfer in 768,083
Total revenues and transfers 768,152
Expenditures:

General government 57,076
Net change in fund balance 711,076
Fund balance - January 1 -
Fund balance - December 31 $711,076

The transfers in above were from the City’s General Fund of $126,058, and the HRA
Grant Fund of $642,025.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are a type of governmental fund to account for the accumulation of

resources for the payment of interest and principal on debt (other than Enterprise Fund debt).

Current governmental reporting standards do not provide for the matching of long-term

debt with its related financing sources. Although this information can be found in the City’s

financial statements, it is located in several separate sections of the financial statements. The

following schedule extracts information from these sections of the 2010 Annual Financial

Report to provide an overview analysis of long-term debt and its related funding.

Wpeferred revenue primarily consists of uncollected special assessments.
(Z)Funding for these bonds will be from future connection charges.

Assets Pledged for Debt Retirement Scheduled Final
Fund Deferred Outstanding Property Maturity
Fund Description Balance Revenue®™ Totals Principal Taxes Date
G.0. Bonds:
Public Safety Bonds of 2005A (301) $160,173 $ - $160,173 $1,660,000  $2,264,622 02/01/26
(2) Sewer Revenue Bonds 2008A (308) 46,672 180,000 226,672 1,665,000 56,492 02/01/29
Total G.O. Bonds 206,845 180,000 386,845 3,325,000 2,321,114
G.O. Special Assessment Bonds:
Improvement Bonds of 2005B (303) 333,195 140,422 473,617 325,000 - 02/01/16
Total G.O. Special Assessment Bonds 333,195 140,422 473,617 325,000 0
G.O. Revenue Bonds:
(2) Revenue Bonds of 2010A 608,730 - 608,730 11,465,000 02/01/40
(2) Revenue Bonds of 2010B 358,753 - 358,753 6,100,000 02/01/40
(2) Revenue Bonds of 2010C 192,228 - 192,228 1,260,000 - 02/01/17
Total G.O. Revenue Bonds 1,159,711 0 1,159,711 18,825,000 0
Total - All Debt Service Funds $1,699,751 $320,422 $2,020,173 $22,475,000  $2,321,114
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

The fund balances of the Capital Project Funds were as follows at December 31, 2009
and 2010:

Fund Balance
December 31, Increase
Fund 2009 2010 (Decrease)
MSA Street Improvement $931,759 ($29,759) ($961,518)
Park Acquisition 54,596 32,448 (22,148)
Park Trails 62,211 124,419 62,208
Minard Street 17,583 17,637 54
Improvements of 2003 (35,320) (25,147) 10,173
Street Capital 1,053,327 1,041,382 (11,945)
Whispering Aspen Well Fund (41,403) - 41,403
Park Capital 55,749 15,944 (39,805)
Utility Improvement 20,186 24,306 4,120
Building 6,246 56,297 50,051
Lunde/Jewell Street 25,718 30,300 4,582
Water Infrastructure - 10,757,988 10,757,988
Utility Infrastructure - 4,302,254 4,302,254
Total $2,150,652 $16,348,069 $14,197,417
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Street Capital Fund (406)

This fund was established to account for street improvement projects including

reconditioning and overlay. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

Revenues and transfers:
Special assessments
Investment income
Other
Transfers in

Total revenues and transfers

Expenditures and transfers:
Public works
Capital outlay
Transfers out

Total expenditures and transfers

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

2008 2009 2010
$6,992 $7,714 $6,277
18,780 5,364 3,099

377 - -

415,288 334,712 425,000

441,437 347,790 434,376
70,926 138,185 190,924

103,791 56,539 255,397
48,138 - -

222,855 194,724 446,321

218,582 153,066 (11,945)

681,679 900,261 1,053,327

$900,261 $1,053,327 $1,041,382
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MSA Street Improvement Fund (402)

This fund was established to account for street projects funded by Municipal State Aid.

Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
MSA construction

Other
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Projects:
Klondike first 1/2 mile
207th to 209th
187th Lane Condemnation
Jackson Street
Davenport/241st overlay
Wild Rice Drive
Aberdeen Street
Bataan Street
Other

Interest

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

MN DOT cooperative agreement

2008 2009 2010
$553,737  $1,103,073 $205,038

- 306,710 -

- 27 1,488

553,737 1,409,810 206,526
33,468 - -

105,566 28,614 10,261
296 - -
22,166 - -
332,144 102,325 -

26,812 116,121 1,025,774

- 259,612 -

- - 84,605
1,235 - 47,404
3,429 - -

525,116 506,672 1,168,044
28,621 903,138 (961,518)

- 28,621 931,759

$28,621 $931,759 ($29,759)

The Municipal State Aid funds received in 2009 were for the Wild Rice Drive Project

which was completed in 2010.
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Park Acquisition Fund (404)

This fund was established to account for funds received from developers used for the

acquisition/development of major park facilities. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is

as follows:
2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Investment income $611 $172 $149
Parks fees 12,500 41,313 -
Total revenues 13,111 41,485 149
Expenditures:

Parks and recreation - - 22,297
Net change in fund balance 13,111 41,485 (22,148)
Fund balance - January 1 - 13,111 54,596
Fund balance - December 31 $13,111 $54,596 $32,448
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Park Trails Fund (410)

This fund was established in 2004 to account for trail dedication fees designated

specifically for park trails. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues and transfers:

Investment income $46 $70 $229

Park trail fees 2,500 8,263 -
Transfers in - 62,139 62,139
Total revenues and transfers 2,546 70,472 62,368
Expenditures - 10,807 160
Net change in fund balance 2,546 59,665 62,208
Fund balance - January 1 - 2,546 62,211
Fund balance - December 31 $2,546 $62,211 $124,419

This fund will remain open pending future development.
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Minard Street Fund (411)

This fund was established to account for street improvements in the Whispering Aspen

subdivision. Funding is provided by a fee charged on each building permit issued ($2,000

per permit). Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

Revenues:
Investment income
Street improvement fee
Total revenues
Expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

2008 2009 2010
$469 $105 $54
-469 -105 - 54
469 105 54
17,009 17,478 17,583
$17,478 $17,583 $17,637
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Improvements of 2003 Fund (506/587/588)

This fund was established to account for special assessments related to street projects.

Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Special assessments $11,277 $11,404 $10,344
Investment income - - -
Total revenues 11,277 11,404 10,344
Expenditures and transfers:
Projects:

Other 692 85 70
Interest 1,479 266 101
Transfers out 3,771 - -

Total expenditures and transfers 5,942 351 171
Net change in fund balance 5,335 11,053 10,173
Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 (51,708) (46,373) (35,320)
Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 ($46,373) ($35,320) ($25,147)

The above deficit is anticipated to be funded by future special assessment collections.

The assessment receivable balance was $10,344 at December 31, 2010.
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Whispering Aspen Well Fund (432)

This fund was established in 2009 to account for a new well at Whispering Aspen. The
well replacement at Whispering Aspen was financed by a grant from the Minnesota Public
Facility Authority and also a low interest loan. The project was completed and the Fund was
closed in 2010.

2009 2010
Revenues and transfers $ - $358,862
Expenditures 41,403 317,459
Net change in fund balance (41,403) 41,403
Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 - (41,403)
Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 ($41,403) $0
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Park Capital Fund (407)

This fund was established to account for replacement of park improvements as part of

the City’s five-year plan. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

Revenues and transfers:
Investment income
Transfers in
Total revenues and transfers

Expenditures:
Cedar Creek
Maynard Peterson Park/Booster Trail
Hidden Haven
Whipering Aspen tennis court repair
Booster Park parking lot
Other
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

2008 2009 2010
$2,212 $462 $118
112,000 100,000 100,000
114,212 100,462 100,118
6,679 9,585 39,450

82,554 10,984 -

- 44,479 -

- 21,870 -
- - 84,199
3,557 39,282 16,274
92,790 126,200 139,923
21,422 (25,738) (39,805)
60,065 81,487 55,749
$81,487 $55,749 $15,944

This fund has been financed primarily by transfers from the General Fund.
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Utility Improvement Fund (408/409)

This fund was established to account for SAC and WAC charges to provide for future

improvements to the utility system. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Investment income $388 $99 $64
SAC charges - - -
WAC charges 3,644 4,170 4,756
Total revenues 4,032 4,269 4,820
Expenditures and other uses:
Other 1,623 48 -
Transfers out 311,047 - 700
Total expenditures and other uses 312,670 48 700
Net change in fund balance (308,638) 4,221 4,120
Fund balance - January 1 324,603 15,965 20,186
Fund balance - December 31 $15,965 $20,186 $24,306

Future SAC revenues will be recorded in the 2008 bond fund. Expenditures in 2007
and 2008 relate to the radium issues in the Whispering Aspen development. The transfer out
in 2008 was to the 2007 Temporary Bond Fund.
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Building Fund (401)

This fund was established to account for general capital projects involving City

facilities. Financial activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues and transfers:
Investment income $ - $ - $51
Other 4,288 - -
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 50,000
Total revenues and transfers 54,288 50,000 50,051
Expenditures:
General government 4,788 - -
Capital outlay:
City Hall - - -
Interest expense 2,184 211 -
Total expenditures 6,972 211 0
Net change in fund balance 47,316 49,789 50,051
Fund balance (deficit) - January 1 (90,859) (43,543) 6,246
Fund balance (deficit) - December 31 ($43,543) $6,246 $56,297

The deficit in this fund was financed by a transfer from the General Fund in 2009 and
2010.
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Lunde/Jewell Street Fund (502)

This fund was established to account for the Lunde/Jewell Street projects. Financial

activity for 2008 through 2010 is as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Revenues:
Special assessments $6,598 $7,052 $4,536
Interest 355 123 81
Total revenues 6,953 7,175 4,617
Expenditures:

Streets and highways 61 78 35
Net change in fund balance 6,892 7,097 4,582
Fund balance - January 1 11,729 18,621 25,718
Fund balance - December 31 $18,621 $25,718 $30,300

The assessment receivable balance was $15,062 at December 31, 2010.
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Water Infrastructure Fund (433)

This fund was established to account for the water infrastructure. Financial activity for

2010 is as follows:

Revenues:
Investment income
Bond proceeds

Total revenues

Expenditures and other uses:
Project costs
Bond issuance costs
Transfers out
Total expenditures and other uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

2010

$128
12,791,960

12,792,088

943,471
227,105
863,524

2,034,100

10,757,988

$10,757,988
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Utility Infrastructure Fund (434)

This fund was established to account for the sewer infrastructure. Financial activity for

2010 is as follows:

Revenues:
Bond proceeds

Expenditures and other uses:
Project costs
Bond issuance costs
Transfers out
Total expenditures and other uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31

2010

_$4.858,791

126,097
84,195
346,245

556,537

4,302,254

$4,302,254
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains three Enterprise Funds. A summary of each fund is as follows:

Water Utility Fund
This fund was established in 2004.

Water Utility Fund
2008 2009 2010
Operating revenues $34,951 $30,536 $33,163
Operating expenses (41,478) (48,265) (55,180)
Net income (loss) from operations (6,527) (17,729) (22,017)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Capital contribution - - 370,173
Interest expense (3,246) (730) (388)
Change in net assets ($9,773) ($18,459) $347,768
Sewer Utility Fund
This fund was established in 2004.
Sewer Utility Fund
2008 2009 2010
Operating revenues $58,687 $59,859 $80,247
Operating expenses (117,638) (75,514) (79,983)
Net income (loss) from operations (58,951) (15,655) 264
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest expense (5,265) (1,364) (668)
Change in net assets ($64,216) ($17,019) ($404)
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Ice Arena Fund (615)

A comparison of operations for the prior three years is as follows:

Ice Arena Fund
2008 2009 2010
Operating revenues $252,029 $248,732 $292,734
Operating expenses (265,999) (296,378) (292,691)
Net income (loss) from operations (13,970) (47,646) 43
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest expense (9,666) (2,016) (907)
Insurance recovery/loss on sale 75,498 - -
Change in net assets $51,862 ($49,662) ($864)
A summary of cash flow is as follows:
2008 2009 2010
Operating activities $55,387 ($15,321) $122,939
Internal interest expense (9,666) (2,016) (907)
Sales of capital asset 2,500 - -
Subtotal (7,166) (2,016) (907)
Net cash flow $48,221 ($17,337) $122,032

As shown above the Arena had positive cash flows for 2008 and 2010. The negative

cash flow in 2009 was mainly related to maintenance and repairs.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing on a cost reimbursement

basis of goods or services provided by one department to another department within the City.

During 2010, the City maintained the following Internal Service Funds.

Cash Balance
December 31,

Fund 2008 2009 2010
Equipment Replacement $2,018,467 $2,004,649 $806,988 *
Compensated Absences 101,245 108,911 126,810
Total $2,119,712 $2,113,560 $933,798

* The equipment replacement fund also has a cash balance held with escrow
agent in the amount of $201,339 not included in this balance for 2009 and 2010.
**In addition for 2010, the fund has outstanding loans to other funds of $728,681.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of East
Bethel, Minnesota (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 23, 2011. Professional standards require that we provide

you with the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Results

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting
policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The City
implemented GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets in 2010. GASB No. 51 had no affect on the financial statements. We noted no
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the

financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was management’s estimation

on the depreciation of capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
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develop the depreciation of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the

financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and

completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the

appropriate level of management. We proposed no correcting entries for 2010.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with
management as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved
to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the

management representation letter dated May 23, 2011.
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about
auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain
situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the
governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our

knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional

relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

GASB Statement No.54 is effective for the year ending December 31, 2011. This
standard changes the reporting of fund balance from the current categories of reserved,
designated and unreserved/undesignated to five categories based on the constraint imposed
on the use of the resources. We recommend that the City prepare for implementation of this
standard by reviewing the current fund balance policy to ensure that the following are

addressed:

e Minimum fund balance
e Flow assumptions
e Delegation of authority to assign

e Fund balance commitment
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Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has
not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial

statements or to the financial statements themselves.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) recently approved the
following statements which were not implemented for these financial statements, but may

affect the City in future years:

Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.
The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods

beginning after June 15, 2010.

Statement No. 57 OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements

for periods beginning after June 15, 2011.

Statement No. 59 Financial Instrument Omnibus. The provisions of this Statement are

effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.
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Statement No. 60 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements

for periods beginning after June 15, 2011.

Statement No. 61 The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus — An Amendment of GASB
No. 14 and No. 34. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial

statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.

Statement No. 62 Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 15, 2011.

The effect these standards may have on future financial statements is not determinable

at this time.

Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2010, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does

not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned




City of East Bethel, Minnesota
Audit Management Letter

Communication with those Charged with Governance

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will

not be prevented, detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that
all such deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal

control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Closing
This information is intended solely for the information and use of management and

members of the City of East Bethel, Minnesota’s City Council, and is not intended to be, and

should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.




H LB TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH MINNESOTA LEGAL
COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE FOR POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of East Bethel, Minnesota

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of East Bethel, Minnesota, as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated
May 23, 2011. L

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit
Guide for Political Subdivisions promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota
Statutes Section 6.65. Accordingly, the audit included such tests of the accounting records
and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Political Subdivisions covers six
categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and investments,
conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements and miscellaneous
provisions. Our study included all of the listed categories.

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the City of East Bethel, Minnesota
complied with the material terms and conditions of applicable legal provisions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and members of the
City of East Bethel, Minnesota’s City Council and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

014 Tatsn Coanty /1.

HLB TAUTGES REDPATH, LTD.
White Bear Lake, Minnesota

May 23, 2011

4810 White Bear Parkway White Bear Lake, MN 55110 651.426.7000 651.426.5004 fax www.hlbtr.com
Equal Opportunity Employer 100-Percent Employee-Owned

HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd. is an independent member of HLB International, a world-wide organization of professional accounting firms.



City of East Bethel
City Council
Agenda Information

e
”ﬁast |
""Bethel \

Rk i I I

Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item4.0B

EE I S S i i i S S S i i S
Agenda Item:

Anoka County Sheriff 2012 Contract Proposal

EE S i S i i i b b i i i i i i i i
Requested Action:

Information Item

EE I S S i S S S i S S S i S S i S S i i
Background Information:

The City’s current contract with the Anoka County Sheriff’s Department (ACSD) for law
enforcement services for 2011 is $1,029,218. The attached proposal for a District Concept
agreement could result in significant savings over our current contract with the ACSD. Staff will
be seeking direction from Council regarding options for the 2012 ACSD contract.
Attachment(s):

ACSD District Concept Proposal for law enforcement services for 2012

EE i S S i S i S I S i i S S i i S i i i S
Fiscal Impact:

To be determined

EE S i b i i i b b i i i S i I i i i I i i I I S i i b i i I i i i i i i i i
Recommendation(s):

Discussion only at this time

R i e i i i i i e S S i i i i i i i S i i i S e SR i e e e i e i e i e i e i i i e e I

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



Office of the Sheriff

Anoka County
Sheriff James Stuart

13301 Hanson Boulevard NW, Andover, MN 55304-4009 (763)323-5000 Fax (763)422-7503

May 16, 2011

Jack Davis, Administrator Doris Nivala, Administrator
City of East Bethel City of Ham Lake

2241 - 221st Ave NE 15544 Central Ave NE

East Bethel, MN 55011 Ham Lake, MN 55304

Mark Korin, Mayor/Administrator
City of Oak Grove

1600 Sims Road

Oak Grove, MN 55011

Re: 2012 Law Enforcement Contract
Dear Administrators Davis, Nivala, and Korin:

As your Sheriff, I have expressed my commitment to providing premium services to our
communities while remaining cognizant of the financial challenges faced by us all.

As was previously discussed, the Anoka County Sheriff’s Office has reviewed our processes,
pricing and overall services with the goal being to provide improved efficiency and better
services. I assigned four of our Command Staff members to a task force to conduct this
review. The team’s assigned task was to analyze options and potential modifications for
our cities 2012 contracts. They were specifically to identify potential improvements that
may serve to better meet the needs of our contract cities while being mindful of our
economic climate. They compared metro sheriff’s office’s methods and pricing for
contracted services. They also compared numerous local police departments that were
comparably sized to our individual communities.

The team'’s findings were significant. We found that the Anoka County Sheriff’s Office
provides:

1) More personalized services including assigned city liaisons, Deputies
and Investigators etc,;

2) Better overall value and;

Affirmative Action / Egual Opportunity Employer



City Administrators Davis, Nivala, and Korin
May 16, 2011
Page 2

3) An ability to ensure that calls for service are handled more efficiently
through economy of scale (especially when compared to police
departments).

Although our study found that we provided excellent services at an excellent price, we still
put our team to the task and pushed for improvements. We identified one final potential
cost saving option that we are referring to as “District” coverage.

The “District” Concept

The concept behind the district coverage is expanded collaboration and cost sharing
methods while not deviating from our public safety standards. This can be accomplished
through the sharing of resources by two or more cities that are able to see flexibility in
coverage based on current staffing levels. The overall partnership MUST maintain an
average of minimum coverage standards for public safety as set forth by our office.

Unfortunately, at this time not all cities that contract services through the Anoka County
Sheriff’s Office have flexibility in their current coverage in order to be eligible for this
partnership. Based on our review, the cities of East Bethel, Oak Grove and Ham Lake
possessed the flexibility in coverage to consider entering into a “District partnership”. We
began discussing the implementation viability with these cities.

The “District” provides many benefits including improved collaboration and overlap of
resources which results in a reduction in overall expense. Additionally, as future growth
needs develop, this allows participant cities to share the cost of necessary expansion rather
than each city needing to absorb the brunt of the cost on its own.

We recognize that the expense apportionment will vary for participating cities depending
on the cost sharing model selected by the participant cities. We provided examples based
on current coverage, calls for service, population etc. We also recognize that there will
likely need to be separate contracts for Community Service Officer coverage in the event
that not all participating cities desire this type of coverage.

As with many compromises, there are negative factors to be considered. Specifically, there
will be a reduction of self sufficiency and personalized services for each city. However, it
will continue to be our goal to meet the needs of our contract cities to the best of our
ability. Itis important to note that the Anoka County Sheriff’s Office will maintain all
operational management and responsibility for scheduling, coverage, and role assignment,
etc.

[ want to express to you that | appreciate the cooperation and effort put forth during my
meetings with the representatives of East Bethel, Oak Grove and Ham Lake. I firmly believe
that open communication is necessary for us to find successful outcomes that will continue
to benefit everyone involved, especially the citizens that we all serve.

As of this date, it is my understanding that the three cities have had a chance to further
discuss the “District” concept that we have proposed, and that it was seen as a viable, and



City Administrators Davis, Nivala, and Korin
May 16, 2011
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acceptable way to meet everyone’s needs. | am writing to you to seek your confirmation
that your city has come to an agreement related to contract services provided by my office.

The total 2012 district coverage for the East Bethel, Oak Grove and Ham Lake District is in
the amount of $2,156,919. The participant cities have the flexibility to decide amongst
themselves how the total is apportioned for payment to the county. Please see the attached
contract proposal for your review. We will be forwarding formal contracts for your
signatures upon receipt of participation and financial obligation amounts being confirmed
by each city.

Please do not hesitate to contact my office should you have any questions or if you need
any clarification. Thank you again for your commitment to public safety.

Sincerely,
6art ‘

Sheriff

JS/klh

Enclosures



Three City Coverage
January 2012 - December 2012

365 DAYS/YEAR

l. PERSONNEL
A. Sworn Deputy Sheriff
1.) 17.00 Deputies at $5,316 /month
2) 7 Overtime (Average hours/month per Deputy)
B. Non-Sworn C.S.0.
C. Benefits for Sworn and Non-Sworn Personnel
P.E.R.A. (Sworn) 165,613
P.E.R.A. (Non-Sworn) 0
FICA 0
Medicare 16,676
Severance Allowance 29,279
Unemployment Compensation 1,725
Life Insurance 714
Health Insurance 238,187
Dental Insurance 8,109
Long Term Disability Insurance 2,530
Worker's Compensation 17,366
Uniforms 16,150
Total Benefits
TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS
ll. VEHICLE
A. Police Equipped Vehicles 5 Squads
B. C.S.0. Venhicle 0 Vehicle
C. Maintenance Costs
1.) Vehicle 163,200
2.) Emergency & Communications Equipment & replc/maint fees 14,360
3.) Emergency Vehicle Equipment replc. Fee 2,500
4)) Insurance 13,500
5.) Cellular Telephone 6,300
Total Maintenance Costs
TOTAL VEHICLE COSTS

lll. Administrative Costs
Administrative, Clerical,+ substation computer lines charges, Etc.

IV. TOTAL COST TO CONTRACTING MUNICIPALITY
*Less Amount Received From State for Police State Aid
NET COST TO CONTRACTING MUNICIPALITY

1,084,403
65,690

0

496,350
$1,646,443

142,500
0

199,860

$342,360

$168,116

$2,156,919
115,140

$2,041,779

*This figure is determined by the State and is subject to fluctuation.

The latest estimate is $5,700 per Deputy. Revenue received is for previous year Deputy hours hired prior to August 1

State aid would be reduced next year due to reduction in FTE



East
"'Bethel

Payments for Council Approval June 1, 2011

Bills to be Approved for Payment $831,567.29
Ehlers Invoice Held From 5/18/11 Mtg for Review $1,757.50
Electronic Payments $25,500.60
Payroll City Council - May 26, 2011 $1,361.07
Payroll City Staff - May 26, 2011 $36,986.90
[Total to be Approved for Payment | $897,173.36




City of East Bethel

June 1, 2011
Payment Summary

Department Description Invoice Vendor Fund Dept Amount
215-221st East 65 Service Rd  |Architect/Engineering Fees 27949 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 402 43125 8,089.25
Arena Operations Auto/Misc Licensing Fees/Taxes 413731 MN Dept of Health 615 49851 35.00
Arena Operations Gas Utilities 282525761 Xcel Energy 615 49851 899.26
Arena Operations Refuse Removal 1436464 Walters Recycling, Inc. 615 49851 28.11
Arena Operations Refuse Removal 1436461 Walters Recycling, Inc. 615 49851 156.31
Bataan Street Project Architect/Engineering Fees 27948 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 402 43124 945.40
Building Inspection Motor Fuels 1908514 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 42410 379.69
Building Inspection Telephone 332373310-114 |Nextel Communications 101 42410 17.52
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 563046507001 | Office Depot 101 48150 48.14
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 564444131001  Office Depot 101 48150 17.70
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 564026931001  Office Depot 101 48150 12.38
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 563046531001  Office Depot 101 48150 28.42
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 563188617001  Office Depot 101 48150 24.57
Central Services/Supplies Office Supplies 563046530001 | Office Depot 101 48150 21.31
Central Services/Supplies Telephone 8315558 Integra Telecom 101 48150 221.32
Civic Events Professional Services Fees 3074 Mosquito Productions 227 45311 635.91
Civic Events Professional Services Fees RG 0945627 Swank Motion Pictures,Inc. 227 45311 343.87
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 180.00
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27947 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 374.08
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 540.00
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 89.76
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 141.70
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 142.50
Engineering Architect/Engineering Fees 27950 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 101 43110 180.00
Finance Dues and Subscriptions 134845 Gov't. Finance Officers Assn. 101 41520 190.00
Fire Department Gas Utilities 282525761 Xcel Energy 101 42210 830.36
Fire Department Motor Fuels 1887053 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 42210 513.93
Fire Department Motor Fuels 1908514 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 42210 604.03
Fire Department Motor Fuels 1908513 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 42210 505.82
Fire Department Personnel/Labor Relations 186994 LexisNexis Occ Health Solution 101 42210 339.00
Fire Department Refuse Removal 1436462 Walters Recycling, Inc. 101 42210 39.83
Fire Department Repairs/Maint Machinery/Equip  |95626 Ready Watt Electric 101 42210 4,905.82
Fire Department Telephone 8315558 Integra Telecom 101 142210 138.35
Fire Department Telephone 332373310-114 | Nextel Communications 101 42210 103.62
General Govt Buildings/Plant Gas Utilities 282525761 Xcel Energy 101 41940 307.28
General Govt Buildings/Plant Refuse Removal 1436465 Walters Recycling, Inc. 101 41940 28.11
Mayor/City Council Professional Services Fees -638868 North Suburban Access Corp 101 41110 120.00
Park Maintenance Clothing & Personal Equipment 470644090 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43201 48.35
Park Maintenance Clothing & Personal Equipment 470647528 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43201 41.40
Park Maintenance Equipment Parts 228746 S & S Industrial Supply 101 43201 3.90
Park Maintenance Equipment Parts 0124208 Turfwerks 101 43201 267.14
Park Maintenance General Operating Supplies 307716 Ham Lake Hardware 101 43201 21.27
Park Maintenance Lubricants and Additives 03 3046698 Isanti County Equipment 101 43201 12.81
Park Maintenance Motor Fuels 1908513 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43201 972.73
Park Maintenance Motor Fuels 1887053 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43201 988.34
Park Maintenance Motor Fuels 1908514 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43201 517.74
Park Maintenance Motor Vehicles Parts 03 3046706 Isanti County Equipment 101 43201 114.79
Park Maintenance Other Equipment Rentals 44529 Jimmy's Johnnys, Inc. 101 43201 52.87
Park Maintenance Park/Landscaping Materials 34970 Menards Cambridge 101 43201 179.98
Park Maintenance Small Tools and Minor Equip 411218-IN Beacon Athletics 101 43201 78.00
Park Maintenance Telephone 8315558 Integra Telecom 101 43201 50.71
Park Maintenance Telephone 332373310-114 |Nextel Communications 101 43201 70.08




City of East Bethel

June 1, 2011
Payment Summary

Department Description Invoice Vendor Fund Dept Amount
Payroll Insurance Premium 4621461 Delta Dental 101 925.35
Payroll Insurance Premium 24145020 Medica Health Plans 101 7,161.25
Planning and Zoning Architect/Engineering Fees 27947 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 927 1,189.72
Planning and Zoning Architect/Engineering Fees 27947 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 862 340.00
Planning and Zoning Filing Fees 2021866 Anoka County Property Records 101 141910 46.00
Planning and Zoning Filing Fees 2021590 Anoka County Property Records 101 141910 46.00
Planning and Zoning Legal Notices 1Q 01784947 ECM Publishers, Inc. 101 141910 46.13
Planning and Zoning Office Supplies 564444131001 | Office Depot 101 41910 156.27
Planning and Zoning Professional Services Fees 209772 Anoka County Treasury Dept 101 41910 1,614.60
Planning and Zoning Telephone 332373310-114 | Nextel Communications 101 41910 17.52
Recycling Operations Gas Utilities 282525761 Xcel Energy 226 |43235 89.06
Recycling Operations Other Equipment Rentals 44529 Jimmy's Johnnys, Inc. 226 43235 52.86
Recycling Operations Refuse Removal 1436463 Walters Recycling, Inc. 226 43235 270.74
Risk Management Automotive Ins 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 11,982.00
Risk Management Bonding Insurance 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 426.00
Risk Management General Liability Ins 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 30,587.00
Risk Management General Liability Ins 36767 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 10,199.00
Risk Management Machinery Breakdown 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 1,789.00
Risk Management Property Ins 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 29,175.00
Risk Management Property Ins 36766 League of MN Cities Ins Trust 101 48140 4,901.00
Sewer Operations Architect/Engineering Fees 27955 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 434 49451 7,328.78
Street Maintenance Bldgs/Facilities Repair/Maint 470644090 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43220 26.50
Street Maintenance Bldgs/Facilities Repair/Maint 470647528 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43220 26.50
Street Maintenance Clothing & Personal Equipment 470647528 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43220 46.24
Street Maintenance Clothing & Personal Equipment 470644090 Cintas Corporation #470 101 43220 46.24
Street Maintenance Gas Utilities 282525761 Xcel Energy 101 143220 281.02
Street Maintenance Motor Fuels 1887053 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43220 2,451.10
Street Maintenance Motor Fuels 1908513 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43220 2,412.38
Street Maintenance Motor Fuels 1908514 Lubricant Technologies, Inc. 101 43220 224.35
Street Maintenance Motor Vehicles Parts 1539-469070 O'Reilly Auto Parts 101 43220 17.06
Street Maintenance Motor Vehicles Parts 1539-469275 O'Reilly Auto Parts 101 143220 68.83
Street Maintenance Motor Vehicles Parts 1539-469046 O'Reilly Auto Parts 101 43220 109.95
Street Maintenance Personnel Advertising 1Q 01784818 ECM Publishers, Inc. 101 43220 80.00
Street Maintenance Refuse Removal 1421489 Walters Recycling, Inc. 101 43220 305.84
Street Maintenance Repairs/Maint Machinery/Equip  |R241031787 | State Truck Inc. 101 43220 292.50
Street Maintenance Street Maint Materials 118300 City of St. Paul 101 43220 1,420.91
Street Maintenance Street Maint Materials 38164 Menards Cambridge 101 143220 201.30
Street Maintenance Telephone 8315558 Integra Telecom 101 43220 50.71
Street Maintenance Telephone 332373310-114 | Nextel Communications 101 43220 136.99
Water Utility Capital Projects Auto/Misc Licensing Fees/Taxes 303323140007 |Anoka County Property Tax 433 49405 273.59
Water Utility Capital Projects Architect/Engineering Fees 27955 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 433 49405 7,328.79
Water Utility Capital Projects Improvements other than Bldgs | Pay Est #1 S. R. Weidema 433 49405 50,473.59
Water Utility Operations Gas Utilities 51611 CenterPoint Energy 601 49401 94.69
Sewer Utility Capital Projects Improvements other than Bldgs | Pay Est #1 S. R. Weidema 434 149455 69,994.94
Sewer Utility Capital Projects Due From MCES Pay Est #1 S. R. Weidema 434 552,866.91
Whispering Aspen Well Project |Architect/Engineering Fees 27956 Hakanson Anderson Assoc. Inc. 432 143200 8,394.62

$831,567.29




City of East Bethel

June 1, 2011
Payment Summary

Department Description Invoice Vendor Fund Dept Amount
Electronic Payments
PERA $5,587.47
Federal Withholding $6,141.63
Medicare Withholding $1,666.50
FICA Tax Withholding $5,976.45
State Withholding $2,469.18
MSRS $3,659.37

$25,500.60




City of East Bethel

June 1, 2011

Supplemental Payment Summary

Department

Description

Invoice

Vendor

Fund

Dept

Amount

Mayor/City Council

Professional Services Fees

342567

Ehlers

101

41110

1,757.50

$1,757.50
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Agenda Item Number:
Item 6.0 A-J
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Agenda Item:
Consent Agenda
EE S i b S i i b b i i i i i S i i b b i i I I i i i i i i
Requested Action:
Consider approving Consent Agenda as presented
A XA XA XA XA AXAAXAAXAAXAAXAAAAAAIAAIAAAAFAAIAA A A AT A AT A A A I AR R R R * X XK
Background Information:
Item A
Bills/Claims

Item B

Meeting Minutes, May 18, 2011 Regular City Council
Meeting minutes from the May 18, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting are attached for your
review and approval.

Item C

Meeting Minutes, May 12, 2011 Work Meeting
Meeting minutes from the May 12, 2011 Work Meeting are attached for your review and
approval.

Item D

Meeting Minutes, May 17, 2011 Work Meeting
Meeting minutes from the May 17, 2011 Work Meeting are attached for your review and
approval.

Item E

Ehlers Invoice
Attached is an invoice from Ehlers in the amount of $1,757.50 for approval for payment. Ehlers
provided a second opinion of the defeasance costs for the Landform Project | Phase 1 Feasibility
Study. Also attached is the letter of engagement for the defeasance analysis.

Item F

Approve Gambling Permit — Bingo — East Bethel Seniors — Booster Day
The East Bethel Seniors have applied for a one day permit to conduct excluded bingo on July 16,
2011, Booster Day at the Community Center. The application form has been submitted and is
complete. Staff is recommending Council approve the one day permit for the East Bethel



Seniors to conduct excluded bingo on July 16, 2011 at the East Bethel Community/Senior
Center.

Item G

Schedule Work Meeting — Wednesday, June 22, 2011 at 6:30 PM
Staff is recommending City Council schedule a work meeting for Wednesday, June 22, 2011 at
6:30 PM to review the Great River Energy CUP.

Item H

Appoint East Bethel Member to Connect Anoka County Governance Group
Based on interest expressed from a number of the organizations in the Connect Anoka County
Project, the county has formed a Governance Group. The county formally authorized the
Governance Group in Anoka County Resolution #2011-36 An initial meeting has been
scheduled Thursday, June 16, 2011, at 10:00 a.m. in Master Conference Room #772, at the
Anoka County Government Center, 2100 3rd Ave., Anoka, MN. The first meeting will consist
of a project update and include a discussion about the role of the Governance Group.
Each organization that has at least one site as part of the Connect Anoka County Project can have
one member serve on the Governance Group. The member can be an elected person, appointed
person, or a staff member. 1f no Council member is interested in serving on this group, it is
recommended that Wendy Warren be designated the City’s representative.

Item |

Temporary Appointment of Lieutenant to Fire Department
Lieutenant Bill Hunt was appointed to his Officer position effective January 1, 2011. Lieutenant
Hunt was forced to take a six month personal leave of absence on March 1, 2011 due to working
out of town. Lieutenant Hunt’s absence has left a void in the structure of the Fire Department.
Fire Fighter Adam Arneson, who was a candidate and the runner-up for the original position, has
demonstrated an ongoing interest in a leadership position within the Fire Department. After
review of his qualifications, experience, and training the Fire Chief is recommending, with the
assistance of the Station One Officers, that Fire Fighter Arneson be appointed acting Lieutenant
of Station One until the return of the permanent appointee.

Item J

Booster East Trail Fence
As part of the Booster East Trail Connection to 224th Avenue Project the City was obligated to
install fencing along the trail per the easement agreement with Tim Oney. Due to an increased
work load within the Puiblic Works Department, City personnel will not have the time to install
this fence in a timely manner. Three bids were obtained for this project and Top Notch Fence
was the low bidder with a price of $10,900 for labor and materials. Staff is recommending the
award of this bid to Top Notch Fence to expedite this project.

Fiscal Impact:

As noted above.

E R I i S S i S S i
Recommendation(s):

Recommend approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.

R S e S i S e i e S SR i i i i i i S i i i e i i i I S AR B e e e i e i e i e i i i e i e i i

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:




Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



EAST BETHEL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
May 18, 2011

The East Bethel City Council met on May 18, 2011 at 7:30 PM for their regular meeting at City Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bill Boyer Bob DeRoche Richard Lawrence
Heidi Moegerle Steve Voss (7:35 PM)
ALSO PRESENT: Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator

Call to Order

Adopt Agenda

Sheriff’s
Report

Mark Vierling, City Attorney
Craig Jochum, City Engineer

The May 18, 2011 City Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Lawrence at
7:30 PM.

Boyer made a motion to adopt the May 18, 2011 City Council agenda. DeRoche
seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Lieutenant Orlando gave the April 2011 report as follows:

DUI Arrests:

DWI Arrests: There were four DWI arrests for the month of April. One DWI arrest came as
a result of a suspicious vehicle being called in by a citizen. This arrest was at 12:05 p.m. and
the male reported having to drink Crown Royal, at his doctor’s request for a sore throat.

One DWI arrest was a result of a neighbor hitting another neighbor’s car on his way home,
and not stopping but continuing into his house. Deputies arrived and the neighbor who had
struck the other neighbor’s car was found to be intoxicated.

Thefts:

There were 8 theft from vehicle reports for the month. One vehicle was parked at a local
business and had an iPod stolen. The rest of the vehicles were parked in driveways and the
thefts occurred overnight. One of our deputies did stop a suspicious vehicle and recovered
several items that had been taken from vehicles in the area, resulting in clearing 3 of the theft
cases. With the weather warming up and school about being done, we see increases in this
type of activity. This is a good time to remind you to not leave any type of valuables in your
car, in your driveway. Large numbers of GPS units are taken, along with cash, iPods, and
checkbooks. Even if you lock your vehicle, suspects do break windows to gain entry and it’s
best to take all valuables into your residence or park your vehicle in your garage.

Also, with the weather turning warmer we see an increase in thefts from boats, either docked
on lakes, or parked in driveways. Trolling motors, tackle boxes and fishing rods are items
that get taken.

Miscellaneous Info:

Lt. Orlando would like to remind you to buckle up and make sure to properly restrain your
child in a booster seat until they are 4’9” or 80 pounds. Just last week a 3 year old girl died
as a result of being improperly buckled in a child safety seat. The child was ejected when
the vehicle rolled. If you are in need of a child safety seat, please contact Laura Landes with
the Sheriff’s Office. She can also check your child seat to make sure you are installing it

properly.



May 18, 2011

Presentation -
Tim Landborg
— For Service
on Planning
Commission

Presentation -
Edward
Reynoso, Met
Council
Representa-
tive

East Bethel City Council Meeting Page 2 of 21
Law Enforcement agencies throughout the state will begin the May Mobilization campaign,
which is focused on buckling up. Agencies will be conducting overtime patrols, in search of
unbuckled motorists. One of the reasons we enforce this law so strongly is the impact seat
belts play in surviving a crash, without injury or having less severe injuries. Wearing a seat
belt reduces the risk of fatal injury to front seat passenger occupants by 45% in a car and
60% in a light truck. In a crash, odds are six-times greater for injury if a motorist is not
buckled up. The group that is most likely to not buckle up and die are young drivers. Each
year, motorists ages 15-29 account of 45% of all unbelted deaths and 55% of all unbelted
serious injuries — this group only represents 25% of all licensed drivers. Traffic crashes are
the leading cause of death for 16-19 year olds. When adults set the example of buckling up,
it can have a positive impact on their kids. Remind your kids to buckle up before they take
the car. It could save their life.

Boyer said thank you for getting back to him so quick about the East Bethel Deputy Car
being in Wyoming, he was glad it was nothing untoward, as he mentioned it was an
unfortunate place to pull over on the road.

Moegerle asked when will we have the dog bite report in, she thinks this incident happened
last Friday. Lieutenant Orlando said the report should be in. Davis said we haven’t
received a police report yet, but we have received a verbal report from the CSO. Council
Member Voss arrived.

Lawrence said Tim Landborg served the City of East Bethel as a Planning Commission
member from 2007 until 2011. For this we are very appreciate for his service, it takes real
dedication to volunteer for the City and be part of it and we appreciate your help. Lawrence
presented Landborg with a plaque thanking him for his service to the City.

Lawrence said Edward Reynosa is the new Met Council Representative for East Bethel
(District 9). Reynosa thanked Council and the residents for having him. He said he thought
it important to come and introduce himself to the Council and residents. Reynosa said he is
a resident of Ham Lake, and he and his family come to East Bethel for many family
activities. He said the Met Council has a big project in East Bethel, he is eager to see the site
and take a tour of the City. Reynosa said he also looks forward to working with you on
various other issues. He said he wants to make sure the Met Council has a good relationship
with the City, not only on transportation and sewer issues, but also on planning, long term
planning. Reynosa said he looks forward to working with you and your residents. He said he
looks forward to listening, hearing your concerns, your residents’ concerns, and he looks
forward to working with you on these issues and various other issues. Reynosa said his goal
is to leave this place a better place than when he started, when his tenure is done.

Moegerle asked what environmental and transportation issues do you see yourself working
on. Reynoso said for environmental of course it would be the sewer and water project and
for transportation he sees a need for growth in our system. He said we get excited when we
see that gas prices is not close to $4.00, but when you think long term, it is only a matter to
time when it will be $5.00 a gallon so he would like to see transit, whether it is light rail
transit or bus transit. Reynoso said his day job is as a the public director and special projects
coordinator for the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Joint Council 32 and he is very
concerned about the proposed cut to Met Council and how it would affect transit issues. He
said it would stifle growth in transit, not to mention what we offer now. Reynoso said it is
going to be a battle; there is obvious room for growth in transit. Boyer said we are fortunate
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compared to gas prices worldwide. Reynoso said you are absolutely right, when you look at
the price of fuel in Europe, but the European countries have transit that ours doesn’t even
compare to. Reynoso said he looks forward to working with you guys, there is a learning
curve, he is willing to listen.

Lawrence opened the Public Forum for any comments or concerns that were not listed on the
agenda.

Tom Ronning of 20941 Taylor St. NE said at the last meeting a lot of discussion about a
contractor wanting relief on fuel prices. He said he thinks the bid was $4.12 a gallon on fuel
prices has anyone seen his bid on prices. Moegerle said we have not seen his bid, but that is not
to say staff hasn’t. Ronning said so he purchased gas for $4.12, 235,000 gallons. Davis said the
contractor has supplied documentation on his costs when the project was bid and when he locked
in on the fuel. Ronning said went to the state site and the state tax is reimbursable, 27 1/2 cents
for 2010 and 2011 is 28 cents and federal is 24 cents for 2010 he doesn’t have the 2011. He
asked will he get reimbursed at the end of the year, we pay him full price and then he gets
reimbursed. Ronning said that is just some questions, he doesn’t think anyone has the answers.
Lawrence said he doesn’t think this was the price of fuel. Voss said 4/12 was the date he locked
in, not the price. Moegerle said on 4/12 the price of fuel was $3.77, but still the point is right, if
there is another 50 cents he is going to get back this is a little disingenuous. She said this is a
good point. Ronning said also, at the last meeting there was a complaint about an officer being in
the room, he pays taxes and doing this does not bother him at all. Lawrence said we will look
into the fuel rebate; we will look closer and see what comes up on this.

There were no more comments so the Public Forum was closed.

Moegerle made a motion to approve the consent agenda except pull from item A) Bill List
the Hollywood Pyrotechnics and Gratitude Farm bills for discussion. Voss said he will
second, but would also like the following items pulled: G) Bids for Picnic Shelter; H)
Dorsey & Whitney LLP Engagement Agreement; 1) Ehlers Invoice; and J) Approve
Agreement with Kristin Pechman, Desktop Impressions for Website Services.

For clarification Moegerle’s motion is to approve A) Approve Bills (all but Hollywood
Pyrotechnics and Gratitude Farms); B) Meeting Minutes, May 4, 2011 Regular Meeting;
C) Meeting Minutes, April 27, 2011 Town Hall Meeting; D) Res. 2011-15 Approving
Application for Raffle Permit for Minneapolis Police Activates League at Fat Boys Bar &
Grill on June 11, 2011; E) Res. 2011-16 Accepting Donation from Eckberg, Lammers,
Briggs, Wolff & Vierling, PLLP; F) Approve One Day Temporary On Sale Liquor License
For Alliance for Metropolitan Stability at Blue Ribbons Disc Golf Course on June 11, 2011.
Voss seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Moegerle asked what is the Hollywood Pyrotechnics bill for. Davis said for the fireworks for
Booster Day. He said the contract was signed about a month ago. Davis said this needs to be
booked in advance to secure show for those dates, we did get three bids, it is less than $5,000,
we issued a purchase order and this practice has been going on since 2003 or 2004. He said this
was budgeted under Civic Events, $5,000 was allocated. Moegerle said so this practice has been
going on for quite some time. Davis said yes. Moegerle said and we can revisit this at budget
time. Davis said yes. Moegerle said for the Gratitude Farms bill do you know how many
animals this covers. Davis said he doesn’t know how many exactly. He said he does know there
was an extenuating factor in this bill. Davis said there was an animal that had to be rescued from
Coon Lake, was in very bad shape and eventually it had to be euthanized and this added about
$300 to the hill.
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Voss said for this item, the bids for picnic shelter roof, he didn’t see a recommendation in the
write-up, there was no resolution that went with this. Davis said the Parks Commission
recommended we go with a sheet metal roof, we had one bid and he attached it, we thought it
would be about $20,000, but it was $28,000. He said there was such a cost differential that the
metal roof was just not justified. Davis said he is recommending the low bid from Ricks Roofing
in the amount of $5,200 on page 32. He said we had originally hoped to replace these with the
metal roof, but the cost was too great. DeRoche said this was the bid from Vogel for $28,000.
Davis said correct.

Voss made a motion to approve the bid for the picnic shelter roofs from Rick Roofing not
to exceed $5,200. Boyer seconded. Davis said we don’t know the condition of the decking
underneath the roof, so we have requested up to $1,200 to repair the decking if needed. Voss
amended his motion adding an allowance of $1,200 in case there is any structural repairs
needed. Boyer seconded the amendment, all in favor, motion carries.

Voss asked can we get a presentation on what this is about. Davis said what we are requesting
is we have several million dollars in bond funds that are surplus and there are questions on how
they can be spent. He said we have contacted Springsted and they don’t want to give us advise
us on this, they don’t feel comfortable with this. Davis said they have suggested we contract with
Dorsey and Whitney who were the attorneys on the original bond counsel, there are different
rules on each one and there are some tax implications on this. He said what we are seeking is to
get a tax opinion on these and what the bonds can be used for. Voss asked did Springsted say
why they didn’t want to do this. Davis said they said it was beyond their realm to do the tax
counseling on these and they recommended we contact Dorsey and Whitney on this. VVoss said
so we are not replacing Springsted. Davis said that is correct, we are not replacing Springsted.
Voss said it is just addressing this one issue. Davis said that is correct. Boyer asked what is the
amount of this. Davis said the amount is $5,000 to $6,000 to have them give us an opinion on
how these funds can be used, it is something we have to be careful with and we want to make
sure if they are expended that they are expended properly.

Moegerle made a motion to approve the Dorsey & Whitney LLP Engagement Agreement
not to exceed $6,000. DeRoche seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Voss said he would like a little explanation of what this is about. Davis said this as he
understands it, was part of the Landform study. He said Schunicht contacted them to get
information on defeasance of bonds, due to the magnitude of this it was thought there needed to
be a second opinion. Davis said Ehlers was contacted to provide an analysis. VVoss asked was
this something that the City directed or Landform directed. Davis said he does not know, this is
an invoice that Schunicht had requested be placed before Council for payment. Boyer said he
could be wrong but he does not remember directing them to do this. Voss said one of the
questions he has is this is on Landform’s letterhead and it seems like this was subcontracted by
Landform, why are dealing with an invoice that was subcontracted by Landform. He asked he
remembers seeing part of Landform’s invoice have they been paid their full amount yet. Davis
said as far as he knows Landform has been paid for their services. Voss asked and they didn’t
have this on their invoice. Davis said no, they didn’t have this on their invoice. Voss asked do
we know if we had any dealing with Ehlers on this issue. Davis said not to his knowledge.

Moegerle said the bill is directed to the City of East Bethel on page 38. She said she understands
there is a cover letter on 39 and 40, and that would be within the amount that the interim city
administrator could have contracted for, so without having Dave here, she knows that she recalls
hearing the name of Ehler’s during Landform’s presentation. Moegerle said she understood it
was 9 million to get rid of this project and because that was Schunicht’s calculation he wanted to
double check it, because it was such a large amount. She said that was the justification she
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recalled hearing during the presentation. VVoss said he remembers him stating he talked to bond
counsel about this he doesn’t remember him stating it was Ehlers, he didn’t know it wasn’t
Springsted. He said but his point he is making is if this is something Landform needed to do to
perform their contract then this is their bill. Voss said what we don’t have is how Ehler’s was
engaged. He said Ehler’s should have something from the City engaging them in these services,
whether it is an e-mail or letter or something. Davis said we can see if they have that, as he
understood this, David had authorized this to be done.

Boyer made a motion to table the Ehler’s Invoice to the next regular bill pay until staff can
do further research on this item. Voss seconded. Voss said again, there should be a paper
trail to engage Ehler’s. Lawrence asked Davis to dig that up for us. Davis said he will see what
we can find. Boyer, Lawrence and Voss, aye; DeRoche and Moegerle, nay; motion carries.

Voss said again, he just wants an explanation of what this is about. Davis said this is just part of
the process of updating our website and this is a lady that came highly recommended to us. He
said we had an interview with her about a week ago. Davis said she gave us a presentation on
updating our website. He said she gave us information on getting a new template and
coordination in improving the effectiveness of our website. Davis said she has done extensive
work for several other cities and comes highly recommended and we felt her services would be
very effective in accomplishing our goal. VVoss said at the last meeting we were talking about
changing our platform. Moegerle said we were not changing from GovOffice. VVoss said he says
this because what he has heard is everyone is moving from GovOffice. Moegerle said our
current template is no longer supported by GovOffice and the advice we received is we should
upgrade to a new free template, reorganize and then eventually when our EDA and branding
issue is done, move up to a purchased template. She said this would transition us to the modern
age, but this will not be any duplicate costs. Voss said so all we are doing right now is a stop
gap. Moegerle said reorganizing will get us to the modern age of website utility.

Voss made a motion to approve the agreement with Kristin Pechman, Desktop Impressions
for Website Services to update the website, not to exceed $1,500. Moegerle seconded; all in
favor, motion carries.

Davis explained that the April 13, 2011 Park Commission unapproved meeting minutes are
provided for your review and information.

Davis explained that the April 12, 2011 Road Commission unapproved meeting minutes are
provided for your review and information.

Davis explained that the code enforcement report is presented for your review and
information.

Davis explained that on April 28, 2011, the EDA discussed the structure of an active EDA
Board. It was unanimously decided by the EDA to move forward as an active EDA with
HRA powers per Resolution 2008-53, A Resolution Providing for the Creation of an
Economic Development Authority with all the powers of a Housing Redevelopment
Authority. The resolution has been attached for your review (attachment #2).

To become an active EDA Board, funds will be needed to pursue marketing, professional
services such as legal and consulting, and staffing. A best case funding scenario would be to
discontinue the HRA levy and approve an EDA levy. The maximum allowed as part of an
EDA levy is 0.1813% and the maximum HRA levy is 0.185%. The maximum levy pay for
2012 would be $163,830 based on a property valuation of $903,639,400. 2012 levied funds
would not be available until July 2012.
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If the EDA would like to move forward on projects in 2011 funds need to be allocated to
meet these needs. The best option for a funding source would be for the EDA to obtain an
interest free interfund loan through the HRA. The current HRA account is approximately
$700,000. The current HRA funds can only be used for HRA type projects that address the
shortage of decent, safe, and sanitary dwelling accommodations available to persons with
low to moderate income and to address substandard, slum, or blighted areas that could not be
redeveloped without government assistance. At this time, there are no HRA projects that are
being considered.

The interfund loan could be paid back once EDA levy funds become available in July 2012
or the EDA could pay back the loan over a certain time frame. Because of the projection of
EDA activities, staff suggests the loan be paid back over a time period. Paying back the loan
in full in July 2012 would cause insufficient EDA funds for the 2012-13 year.

If the EDA were to obtain an interfund loan, staff suggests the loan be @ minimum of
$158,240. The loan would cover the following operating expenses (a formal EDA budget
would need to be approved by City Council):

Liability Insurance: $1300
Legal Notices: $200
(Publication)

Professional Services: $50,000
(Legal and Consulting)

Staff: $56,000
(includes ALL benefits)
Membership Fees: $240
Conferences/Training: $500
Contingency: $50,000

(Future Projects)

If City Council makes a motion to consider an EDA levy, staff seeks direction by the City
Council for the following:

1. to begin the process of establishing a taxing district per MN Statute 275.067 to be
brought forward to City Council on June 15, 2011, and

2. to begin the process of establishing an interfund loan from the HRA to the EDA,
payable over five (5) years (as part of the process, City Council must approve the
interfund loan and acknowledge the EDA anticipated levy to establish the HRA
account by July 2016). Staff intention is to bring this forward to City Council on
June 15, 2011.

Davis what we are essentially saying here is if we want the EDA to do some projects we
need some EDA funds. Boyer said he believes the time for an appeal by Anoka County has
not passed. Vierling said the appeal to Supreme Court would be 60 days, that will take us
into June. Voss said we are looking at June 15™ when we will take it up. Moegerle said we
are looking at staff costs of $56,000, we are not hiring new staff, just allocating to this
existing staff. Davis said this takes a significant amount of staff time from the city planner
and administrative assistant, so it would be allocated to those two staff members salaries,
charge their time to this. Voss said so this is just a funding source for staff. Moegerle asked
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for conferences and training is anything being looked at or is this just generally to get
education. Davis said no, this is just generally that might be pertinent to what we are going
to undertake. Moegerle asked for liability insurance, are we looking at this from the League
of Minnesota Cities. Davis said that is correct.

Moegerle said if we begin the process of establishing the taxing district, in advance of the
HRA conclusion, we could stop if the appeal goes through, we wouldn’t be committed.
Davis said we are just asking if you want us to go ahead and get ready. Boyer said he thinks
there might be another issue; it would put his mind to rest to have the city attorney examine
how the resolution of the structure of the EDA as formed in 2008. He said this was one of
the subjects of litigation, was originally dismissed by county, we did not get real good
advice from our original consultant. Boyer said he would like to make sure all our ducks are
in a row before we go too far down this line and he thinks we could do that before the 15" so
he thinks the wisest course of action might be to put this off until the 15™. Moegerle said
she disagrees if that is the deadline to get this done, if we get this started we can just pull the
plug on it. Boyer said he is concerned about whether this was done properly by the
consultant and that is the basis of his concern. He said and if in theory we would be
transferring money to an improperly formed body just seems to muck things up. Boyer said
he would like to have the city attorney look at it and see if it was formed properly. Davis
said we could do all that concurrently, get city attorney’s opinion, and certainly then have
the issue of the appeal concluded and then consider all this at on the 15"

Moegerle made a motion to consider an EDA levy and begin process of establishing a
taxing district per MN Statute 275.067 and to begin the process of establishing an
interfund loan from the HRA to the EDA, payable over five (5) years to be brought
forward to City Council on June 15, 2011. DeRoche seconded. Boyer asked for
clarification, this is an EDA levy in lieu of an HRA levy. Moegerle said yes. Boyer said we
are not talking about double taxing people. Moegerle said we are not double taxing. All in
favor, motion carries.

Davis explained that At the April 28, 2011 EDA work session; the existing composition of
the EBEDA was discussed. Staff was directed to conduct additional research as to what the
composition of other active EDA boards was in metro communities. The findings have been
attached for your review (attachment #1). Of the sixteen (16) metro communities
researched, seven (7) communities’ EDAs are comprised of the City Council, eight (8)
communities are comprised of a majority of business owners with at least one (1) City
Council member on the board, and one (1) community (Shakopee) has an Economic
Development Advisory Committee that advises the EDA and City Council of EDA projects.

In @ majority of the communities with an EDA comprised mostly of business owners, the
EDA is only empowered with the authority that the City Council has granted them through
the by-laws. If the EBEDA composition is to change, City Council should begin to discuss
the authority of the EDA so staff can incorporate this into the EDA By-Laws.

The composition could remain as is with five (5) City Council members, or possibly change
to two (2) City Council members and five (5) citizens.

If City Council makes a motion to change the EDA member composition to include more
citizens, staff seeks direction by City Council for the following:

1. to begin the amendment process of the existing EDA by-laws to incorporate



May 18, 2011

East Bethel City Council Meeting Page 8 of 21
membership, terms, and EDA authority, and

2. to begin advertisement for the vacancies for these positions.

Boyer said his personal position is we are right in the middle basically so he doesn’t see any
reason to change, but if Council wants to add one or two more people so be it. DeRoche
said he thinks we need add more diversity from the businesses, other than five Council
Members, he is not sure what everyone’s background is, but he thinks it is pretty crucial that
we get people that have been involved in this, make it a little more diversified and get more
ideas. Voss said we have three non-Council Members now, right, from the school district, a
business members and a resident. Lawrence there is a real benefit to having five residents
and two Council Members on the EDA. Voss said what is that. Lawrence said if you have
something that is moving along, because you don’t have a quorum, you don’t have to call for
a special meeting. Voss said the EDA still has to be advertised.

Davis said the benefit he sees he sees in having more business members if you structure this
right, have someone with a financial background, realtor background, construction
background and education background, you can diversify your board a little bit more. He
said the one thing that he knows has been addressed, is we would need to modify the by-
laws; this EDA could have no authority to set the tax limits, that would still rest with City
Council. He said one of the ways other cities have done that is any issue that comes up that
is about taxing or any issue to raise money automatically goes to City Council. Davis said or
if any Council Members that are on that committee object to anything it automatically
becomes a council issues. Moegerle if the EDA voting membership is going to be the
Council and the three we have now, who bother with the EDA. She thinks that is a
disservice, it limits brainstorming, it limits creativity and we have a situation where we need
input, creativity and brainstorming outside of a Council meeting. Moegerle said she
welcomes that input from those professionals that what is going on in the financial
community of East Bethel and she thinks we could study, but it is a lot different hearing it
from the outside than hearing it from a professional that deals with it on a day to day basis.

Voss said he doesn’t have a problem at all with adding more business members to the EDA.
Moegerle said but do you believe it should still be all five Council members. Voss said what
is the reason for not having all the Council Members on the EDA. Davis said once you get
more than seven members on a committee it gets unwieldy and hard to work with. He said
he thinks seven is kind of an ideal number. Voss said there are two scenarios, one scenario
done the we have an active EDA and we have been doing this for a few years, 4 years down
the road, that is one scenario. He said the second scenario is we are trying to develop, right
now this is all new, and to him it is important that the Council is engaged in what the EDA is
doing so we have an active understanding. VVoss said so when recommendations come from
the EDA to this Council, it is not then a learning process of everything. He said if the
concern is leadership on the EDA, he doesn’t have a problem if it is a business leader on our
EDA.

DeRoche said seeing how the EDA parties if not on City Council will not be making any
decisions financially or otherwise without the City Council who represent the people who
put them in office, the more City Council members you have the less diversity we can get
here. He said we are in a situation where we need to develop, we need ideas. DeRoche said
whatever has gone on in the past it has got to change, we need ideas brought up, we have to
develop. Voss said we haven’t even started, that is his point. DeRoche said that is
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unfortunate, because now we are in a situation where we are up against a wall. VVoss said he
is talking about the communication between the EDA and City Council. He said if any of us
is not on the EDA and we get a report, we didn’t get any of the development that went into
the proposal. DeRoche said he doesn’t recall there being no Council Members on there, he
heard there was going to be maybe two. Boyer said he think the point VVoss is trying to make
is you make the same argument twice. He said because whatever Council Members are on
there, if there is going to be two, there are three that aren’t.

Boyer said there are two big disadvantages, one the point VVoss made and two, the EDA
cannot promise anything because they would not have a majority of Council Members.
Moegerle said she understands that, but what happens is if it is done that way is two different
sets of people look at it and the EDA has truly have to believe in it because they have to
convince three more Council Members on this issue. She said they have to do a
presentation; they have to provide that documentation that is going to put the burden on the
EDA. Moegerle said if they want something, it is not going to be a frivolous thing, it is
going to be something they have weighed and considered and something they can present to
us with all seriousness and documentation about why this is something we should do. She
said and then it gets looked at twice.

Moegerle said she thinks we get into a risk of group think, and the idea of saying oh well
that is down the road, to get the EDA going quickly and right away, this 3 to 4 year warm up
would be a significant disservice to the success of our municipal water project. Voss said he
wasn’t saying 3 to 4 years. He said he was saying we are trying to restructure something
that hasn’t gotten started. Voss said that is the two scenarios, the startup and once we got
our legs under us. He said just said five years as an example. Voss said you made a point of
streamlining, and the point he is trying to make is if all Council is involved in what is being
approved at the EDA it will be approved at Council a heck of a lot faster. Moegerle said so
we will have shorter Council meetings is that your argument.

Voss said you point was decision making and we have this with our other commissions, once
in a while they will bring something up and now they have to educate what they may have
been working on four or five meetings, now we have to be educated on it, it is a back and
forth process. He said the reason we had all five Council Members on the EDA to start with
was so there is buy-in from the get go. Moegerle said she thinks that decision and that back
and forth is important. Voss said you were just critical of the time frame or sorry, maybe it
was Lawrence, but this is a way to get things going, to get things done quicker. Lawrence
said but he doesn't think you achieve the diversity you are going to get out of five separate
people, with five separate backgrounds coming together and discussing this. Moegerle said
we can always have joint meetings if there is something that critical that we think we need to
have the buy in, in advance. She said she thinks you are going to have an unwieldy group.

Moegerle said if you want the EDA to work they have to be able to articulate to the Council
why a particular action, expenditure should be approved. She said so that gives it a second
review. Voss said isn’t it easier, and not passing up the public presentation, but if all five of
us are on the EDA and something passes at the EDA, won’t it pass at Council without much
discussion as opposed to going back and forth with Council. He said he honestly doesn’t see
the objection of having more than two Council members. VVoss said he doesn’t understand
the objection. Lawrence said all we are trying to do is bring in more diverse people to the
group. Voss said we are all for that. Lawrence said if there are all five of us and just the
three more members, they might not even show up. Boyer we just said bring in two more to
the group. Lawrence said so you want a bigger group, you want a group of ten. VVoss said
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why not. Lawrence said according to Davis after seven you kind of loose control of the
meeting. Voss said you look at St. Paul they have 135, see how that goes. DeRoche said St.
Paul is a little bigger than East Bethel. Davis said there is no magic number for a committee
size, he said seven seems to be a real workable number, sometimes when you go past that
you gave good luck and sometimes you don’t.

Voss said along those lines and he absolutely agrees, having the business community input is
critical to the success of the EDA. He said but to him having all the Council there while
those discussions are going on, and hearing all that perspective from the folks that are living
it every day, he thinks that is nothing but good. Voss said it is one thing if three of the five
try to interject and change something that is one thing, he us taking from the aspect of
involvement it should be the decision makers that do this. Moegerle said there are
commission and task force reports, there would be EDA reports. Voss asked what is the
objection to having the full Council being part of the EDA, he still hasn’t heard that. He said
you are thinking it is not going to work, it hasn’t even been tried. VVoss said if it doesn’t
work we can change it.

DeRoche said five people have been on the EDA for how many years now and where has it
gotten. He said he hasn’t heard any ideas. Boyer said by the way, the EDA was formed less
than three years ago. Lawrence said since it is just getting started and just getting some legs
to it, why don’t you just have two Council members and five community members, have
them get started and then if they have something and they feel they need to draw other
people in from the Council or the City, then they can. He said we are looking for fresher
ideas and bigger things, because we don’t all have the degrees. Boyer said some of us do.
Voss said he is not disagreeing with that, that is why he is saying it would be a good idea to
have the business and the financial community involved in the EDA, absolutely.

Moegerle said she thinks when you have bigger groups you don’t have the ability, the
brainstorming, you don’t have the give and take that she thinks we need to have to have the
vigorous and well considered discussion, because here, even now, we are having this
discussion and it is unwieldy with five. Boyer said perhaps we should just have one.
Moegerle said certainly it has been here since 2008, it has been five people, nothing has been
done and it has been dormant. Voss said it has been eight and it hasn’t been active. He said
we formed the EDA in anticipation of sewer and water. DeRoche said he hates to beat a dead
horse, but maybe some action should have happened prior to this sewer and water going
through so that we have something to get connections to help pay for this thing. Voss said a
statement like that is why we need professionals from the business community involved in
the EDA. DeRoche said exactly.

Moegerle made a motion add two business/community members to EDA. VVoss
seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Voss asked the city attorney if this is a change to the by-laws. Vierling said yes. Voss asked
fi that would have to go to public hearing. Vierling said he suspects it will.

Moegerle made a motion that the EDA composition be limited to two City Council
Members. Lawrence seconded.

Voss asked again, what is the reason to remove three members of the City Council from the
EDA. Lawrence said just because you are not a member doesn’t mean you cannot show up
and be there. VVoss said he can show up for anything that is a public meeting. Moegerle said
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the point is that we don’t want to dilute the input from the community members. She said
the City Council will have ample opportunity for their input at the City Council meeting
when the EDA presents proposals. VVoss said explain to me how you dilute input. Moegerle
said it is simple math; it is 50% to 50% if there are five community members and five
Council Members, but if there are five community members and only two Council Members
than the input from the community members is going to be more significant to the
conversation.

Voss said so the input from any additional members, whether it be a benefit or not is diluting
the input. Moegerle said she thinks there should be more free conversation from the
community members to impact that. She said the Council will get their shot at the Council
meetings. Voss said you are trying to make it exclusive and he is trying to understand why
you are making it exclusive. Moegerle said not at all. She said she is trying to make the
EDA mobile and effective. VVoss said you are excluding Council Members from the EDA,
that is excluding. Moegerle said that is not the purpose that is your choice to look at it that
way, it is the half full or half empty.

Voss asked then why are you excluding the Council Members from the EDA. Moegerle said
she is not excluding them. She said the point is to get the input from the community
members. Voss said which will happen anyway, the EDA as a body will get that input.
Lawrence said he doesn’t see it that way with the Council on the EDA, because if you have
any controversy come up and you have the three or four Council members that don’t like it,
the whole thing is mute then. VVoss said he thought this whole thing was to promote growth
and you are stifling. Lawrence said there is no stifling. VVoss said you are excluding.
Lawrence said no one is being excluded.

Moegerle said we are relieving you of one meeting. Voss said you are relieving you of one
meeting. Boyer said it sounds like they have already decided who is on this committee;
from the choice of personal pronouns it is very apparent. Lawrence said he thinks VVoss
would be excellent on the EDA. Voss said he wouldn’t do it without the full Council being
there, he tells you that, absolutely not 100%. He said all you are going to do is make it less
effective. Moegerle said apparently Big Lake did not agree with you, Forest Lake does 2
Council Members, and this is not representative of cites the size of East Bethel, which she
sent an e-mail to the city planner and city administrator about. Voss said 8 of the 16 have
full Council’s on their EDA’s. Moegerle said there are large cities that do it this way.
Lawrence said North Branch does it this way.

Voss said if things don’t work he can understand changing them, but change just to have
change, does no one any good. DeRoche said he doesn’t think that what came out was this
was a change just to have change; he thinks there was some reasoning behind it. VVoss said
what is the reasoning for excluding three Council Members from the EDA. Moegerle said
asked and answered. Boyer said he hasn’t heard. VVoss said it will be smoother, based on
what, how many meetings you have been to. Lawrence said based on having the citizens of
East Bethel active in the EDA. Boyer said you aren’t giving them any authority so how are
they being further engaged, this is the argument he hasn’t heard, they have no authority.
Lawrence said they have the authority to make a presentation to the City Council on an idea
they have come up with. Boyer said so does anybody in the Public Forum. Lawrence said it
is hardly the Public Forum, you are talking the EDA. Boyer said his point is. Lawrence
asked your point is what. Boyer said what are you going to talk over me, are you going to
make me shut up. Vierling said gentlemen one at a time please. Boyer said just as citizens
have made proposals to City Council in the past that City Council has acted upon and
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funded, a recent water project on Coon Lake was the most recent one, he fails to see your
point, if you are not going to give authority to citizen members of the EDA, you are
collecting their input one way or another.

DeRoche said that was your concern a month or so back when we had this discussion was
you didn’t want the EDA to have any kind of voting rights or authority, you wanted input
from them. He said and now you are worried about not having enough authority. Boyer said
no, obviously he does not feel unelected representatives should have taxing authority over
the citizens of East Bethel that is why we hold elections. Moegerle said and they are not
going to. Boyer said right and that is exactly his point, so why then are we excluding the
Council Members from a board. Moegerle said in that case why don’t we just eliminate the
EDA and do it as Council, that is what you are telling us. Boyer said no, because he also
feels it is valuable to have the citizen input as a recent vote taken about three minutes ago.
Moegerle said but that is what a Public Forum is for, input. DeRoche, Lawrence, Moegerle,
aye; Boyer and Voss, nay; motion carries.

Jochum explained that attached is a copy of Pay Estimate #2 to Traut Wells, Inc. for the
Construction of Municipal Well No. 1 and No. 2. The major pay items for this pay request
include the construction of a second test well, the pilot hole for Municipal Well No. 1, and
the water testing and gamma logs. The Pay Estimate includes payment for work completed
to date minus a five percent retainage. We recommend partial payment of $22,721.86. A
summary of the recommended payment is as follows:

Total Work Completed to Date $39,880.50
Less Previous Payments $15,164.61
Less 5% Retainage $ 1,994.03
Total payment $22,721.86

Staff recommends Council consider approval of Pay Estimate #2 in the amount of
$22,721.86 for the Construction of Municipal Well No. 1 and No. 2. Payment for this project
will be financed from the bond proceeds. Funds, as noted above, are available and
appropriate for this project.

Boyer made a motion to approve Pay Estimate #2 in the amount of $22,721.86 to Traut
Wells, Inc. for construction of Municipal Well No. 1 & 2. Lawrence seconded; all in
favor, motion carries.

Davis explained that at the April 20, 2011 City Council meeting the Council considered a
number of options for the future water treatment system. The Council approved Option 5,
which consisted of constructing a water treatment plant that would remove iron and
manganese with pressure filters. T

Staff is recommending that Council consider two options for the engineering services.
Option 1 would include developing a request for proposals (RFP) for the engineering
services and Option 2 would include authorizing the City Engineer to provide the
engineering services.

The City Engineer would provide the scope of services as outlined above for a not-to-exceed
cost of $130,000 in accordance with the September 3, 2008 City Engineering Services
Agreement. The not-to-exceed cost of $130,000 is 9.3% of the estimated project cost of
$1,400,000. The City Engineer’s proposed project schedule is included as Attachment 2.
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At the December 15, 2010 City Council meeting the Council approved a not-to-exceed
amount of $1,135,000 for construction services and start-up costs. To date, a total of
$590,000 has been approved for the piping infrastructure, wells and water tower. The
remaining amount from the previously approved not-to-exceed cost is therefore $545,000.

Staff is recommending that the Council authorize the City Engineer to prepare plans and
specifications for the Water Treatment Plant or direct staff to prepare a RFP for Council
consideration.

Boyer made a motion to direct staff to prepare an RFP for the Water Treatment Plant
for council consideration. Voss seconded.

Moegerle said her concern with this is the RFP going to be a not to exceed at 1.4 million.
She said we have gotten the five options from our city engineer and we have approved the
1.4 million option and it is her understanding that our city engineer had something specific
in mind in how that cost could be met and kept minimal, and if we go out for RFPs we are
going to delay, which is one issue and the second issue is we may have difficulty getting a
bid under 1.4 million. Davis said the option 5 that the city engineer provided, the 1.4 million
is his estimate and he would not be bound by that if we go out for RFPs. He said it could be
higher it could be lower. VVoss said that is construction costs. Davis said that is the project
cost. Voss said it has to be bid either way.

Moegerle said if we have it re-engineered it might be more of a taj mahal than what Mr.
Jochum was suggesting and he said it could be done for 1.4 million dollars. Davis said he
thinks the issue there is it wouldn’t be a taj mahal, you could see some variation possibly in
the price of the project. Boyer said we might see a better design; there are any numbers of
possibilities. Davis said there are a number of possibilities, the only thing that we know is a
given is we have a 1.4 million baseline. Boyer said you could put that in the RFP. DeRoche
said wouldn’t that entice them to try to come in under the 1.4 million and then we run into
the problems because it doesn’t work. Voss said that is not the engineering costs, by the
time we get to bid the price of materials might double that is the price of the plant; we are
talking about the design of the plant. DeRoche said he understands that but, Hakanson
Anderson the city engineer designed this with that figure, you bring someone that else in.

Voss said it isn’t designed, that was this is about, getting it designed. He said what Jochum
has provided is conceptual, right. Jochum said he did quite a bit of background on
developing this. DeRoche said the same argument was made for Bolton and Menk, that they
had to be brought back in because of all the knowledge of what they designed and if Jochum
has already put the time in this, and a bunch of figures, then you want to go out and as you
put it, waste some more time and money. Voss said he wants to make sure you understand
functionally what is going on. DeRoche said he understands perfect. VVoss said no, you are
not, because of costs and you are referring to design. He said on page 78 is the schedule and
in that schedule is roughly 2 % months to develop plans and specs, that is all your detail
design, that is where a lot of that effort is, correct. Jochum said correct. Voss said that is
what $130,000, part of the engineering services to the get the design, it is not the 1.4 million.
He said if we go out to the bid it could come in at 1 or 2 million it is whatever bid costs
come in at. DeRoche said he understand the 1.4 is the building costs, he didn’t fall off the
truck yesterday, he understands there is a separation there. He said same thing as when there
was a separation with Bolton and Menk and the sewer plant. DeRoche said what he is saying
is Jochum has already designed it, that is why he came out with the five options, okay, that
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the City had.

Voss said he is not going to speak for Jochum. He asked Jochum is this designed at this
point. Jochum said it is not completely designed, but he has done a lot of background and
research. Voss said it is not ready to go out to bid. Jochum said no, it is not ready to go out
to bid. Voss said that is what we are talking about. DeRoche said he understands that, but
you want to start that all over again. Boyer said he doesn’t think it is appropriate to let a
contract for $130,000 without putting it out for public bid, how about that. VVoss said that is
his point.

Moegerle asked Jochum how close he is to having a final plan for this, let her clarify, time
wise, the issue to her is time. Jochum said with any plant like this, he wouldn’t recommend
doing it without a pilot study, we will build a mini treatment plant on the site and treat the
water, see what chemicals should be added, optimize that, that will take a couple weeks to
get in place. He said otherwise it is fairly simple, building 40 x 40, pretty simple design,
after that six weeks have a preliminary design, present to Council exterior decisions and
such, so probably a couple months.

Moegerle asked Davis how long it would take to send out an RFP and get back bids. Davis
said approximately 30 days to accomplish, to have them in. Moegerle asked to get response
back. Davis said to advertise and get response back. He said we can set it up for as quick as
you want, sometimes the more time you give the better response you get, but he would say
we would have to have a minimum of 30 days on that. Moegerle said and additional time
would be better. Davis said yes, say up to 6 weeks.

Voss asked Jochum what is our target date for getting this system operational. Jochum said
we would hope to have it bid so they could put the foundation in this winter. He said
operational next June or July, 2012 so it could be used for startup of the other facilities.
Voss asked when will Met Council have their plant ready. Davis said in the summer of
2013. He said we are going to be finished with our portion of the project maybe up to a year
before they are. Jochum said but they have told us, they are open for service as soon as the
City is. He said but the piping system will need water in July 2012 and water tower in
August. Jochum said most of the power is coming from the water, so the water treatment
plant has to be done and operational. VVoss said he is asking because it looks like you have
10 months for construction of treatment plant, seems kind of long. Jochum said we thought
to give them the most time as possible to the get the best bids as possible, yet get it done
before we needed it. Voss said if we shifted it by a month or two we would not change the
end point. Jochum said you might, unless you are going to put footings in in the winter.
Boyer said you have until October 1% basically. Jochum said there are requirements for
advertising, 30 days, have to go to Planning Commission, have to go to Council, once, and
maybe twice. Boyer and Voss, aye; DeRoche, Moegerle, Lawrence, nay; motion fails.

Moegerle made a motion to authorize the City Engineer to prepare plans and
specifications for the water treatment plant not to exceed $130,000. Lawrence
seconded. Voss asked in your motion you are also referring to the scope of engineering
services included here, not just design, it is start to finish basically. Moegerle said yes. She
said and again her rational is this is time sensitive, we are putting in footings in October, it is
Minnesota weather and she doesn’t want to lose a building season and she feels that is what
is at risk at this point. Boyer said so this motion is to approve a $130,000 contract without
putting it out to bid. Moegerle asked the city attorney for his opinion on this. Vierling said
this is not a bid. He said we don’t bid services, that is an RFP process, the question was
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whether to approve this without going out for an RFP and that is what he understands the
motion is. DeRoche, Lawrence, Moegerle, Voss, aye; Boyer, nay; motion carries.

Davis explained that the April Fire Department reports are provided for your review and
information.

Davis explained that the Fire Relief Association President, Troy Lachinski is running late, so
Mark DuCharme, Fire Chief, is here to make a presentation.

Mark DuCharme, Fire Chief said the Fire Relief Association would like to make this more of
an annual annual presentation of what shape it is in and make it more of a partnership of
between Council and the Fire Relief Association. He said Mark Prachar, captain on the fire
department and trustee of the Fire Relief Association is here and will go over the
presentation in the absence of Troy Lachinski.

Prachar thanked Council for allowing them to go through the presentation with them. He
said this is informational; we are going to go over the 2011 Fire Relief Analysis. This is an
overview of the Relief Association, the Relief Association Goals, the reason for the Relief
Association, the current status, the City contribution for 2012 & beyond, the Relief Benefit
levels, the Relief Association — Requests goals reason for the relief association, benefit
levels and request.

Prachar said the Relief Association Overview is to provide a monetary benefit to members
who have met the requirements. The pension is payable upon retirement when: Member
achieves 10 Years Of Service; Member attains age of 50; and the funds are currently
managed by Harmon & Hartman.

Prachar said the Goals of the Relief Association and Trustees are to provide pension benefit
that attracts and retains volunteer firefighters, to maintain a fully-funded pension plan, to
provide retirees with accurate and timely payment of benefits, to monitor investment
performance and to communicate effectively with members and City Council with no
surprises!

Prachar explained that the Relief Association Short Term Goal is to be self-sufficient with a
110% funded plan and Long Term Goal is payout of $100,000 after 20 years of service with
a benefit level of $5000/per year of service. He said and the last numbers he looked at, we
are definitely on task for our short term goals.

Prachar explained our Strategy to Achieve Our Goals is we have a healthy investment
strategy, prudent yet competitive benefit levels for our fire fighters, contributions from the
State (long term) and City (short term) and partnership with the City of East Bethel (that is
what we are trying to create here) and the relief association.

Prachar said the Reason for the Volunteer Fire Relief Association is to pay a pension to
volunteer firefighters, provide benefits if a fatality occurs, recruit and retain volunteer
firefighters, maximize fire training investment, requires 10 year of service for benefit (60%
of allotment) and requires 20 years of service for 100% vesting.

Prachar explained Experienced Firefighter Retention. He said retention is important to
EBFD & City of East Bethel. EBFD RA has 14 members that are vested. Prachar said this
includes 40% of the department quite a bit is vested already, this includes over 251 years of
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experience and this includes 70% of the total department Years of Experience. He said this
includes numerous key leadership positions, which also includes 66% of the department
officers. Prachar said it takes about 3 years for new recruits to be fully trained and
experienced enough to operate confidently at emergency situations, very intense learning
experience, takes a lot of time to get confident. He said this limits the ability to use new
recruits to cover shifts as their confidence levels aren’t there yet.

Prachar said we have a chart here with history of relief fund numbers. He said these date
back to 1997. Prachar said it lists the dates, assets, liabilities, and then fund amount, deficit
or surplus. Funding ratio or benefit level. He said you can see what we try to maintain is at
least 110%. Prachar in 2002 after 911 we did drop below 110%, but not enough to require a
City contribution. There were also two years we were at 131% and 146%, in 2004 and 2005,
the stock market bounced back quite well for us and we did look for an increase in benefit in
those years and therefore the next year we dropped down to 125%. Prachar explained then
in 2008 when the stock market did drop out, we dropped below the funding levels and that is
when we starting dropping below our funding levels, down to 78% and that is when we
starting needing City contributions to get up to the contribution level. Moegerle asked him
to explain the actuarial accrued assets and actuarial accrued liabilities what those mean.
Prachar said the actuarial assets that is what is in our account and the liabilities that is based
on if everyone said right now, they wanted out, what we would have to pay. Boyer asked
you have a date of 12/30/2011 is that with the city investment. Prachar said he is not sure.
DuCharme said yes, it does, both state and City.

Boyer asked it was his understanding that there was proposed legislation to lower or cut the
state contribution, did that fail. DuCharme said yes that has been removed. Boyer said there
is still no guarantee. DuCharme said you are right early in February that had been on the
table, it has since been removed thanks to a little bit of lobbying on our part. DeRoche asked
what happens to the benefit if someone leaves the department do they carry that with them,
do you lose it how does that work. Prachar said if they are vested, they would have to wait
until the age of 50, and then they could pull it out. DeRoche said but everything stops, say
they have seven years and they decide to leave. Prachar said they do not get anything.
DuCharme said Prachar is right, they would not be vested so they would not be due a
retirement fund, or benefit, however, we have an individual that went out on leave very
recently and they have four years of service, what we do per state law is freeze that account
for five years in case he comes back because if he comes back there is a way to reenter the
service time, but state statute covers that.

Prachar showed a graph with the history of results and accrued liabilities and net assets,
would like to see a nice even flow where assets are at least 10% above liabilities
Prachar, history of results, see dip of results.

Prachar showed a comparison to other cities as far as benefit level. He said we are kind of
middle of the road, very hard to compare benefit levels, 9 other cities above our level and 12
that are below.

Prachar showed a graph on sources of revenue of relief associations, overall, not just for East
Bethel Fire. He said as you can see most of it comes from investment earnings, then state
fire aid, then municipal contributions.

Prachar then showed a graph of revenue sources for relief associations compared to East
Bethel and as you can see they match up pretty well.
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Prachar said the next graph is comparing state aid to city contributions 1997 forward and
you can see state aid trended upward, then they had an accounting correction and it ended up
going down. DeRoche asked the difference between state fire aid and supplement state fire
aid. DuCharme said state fire aid is what for years we have called the 2% money. He said
what that means is every fire insurance policy that everyone in this room pays there is a 2%
tax on that and that 2% tax at one time, all of it used to go back to the fire relief association.
DuCharme said now it is more like 1 3/4 % that comes back to the relief association, he
doesn’t know what happened to the other ¥%. He said the supplemental income, there is a
state law provision, when an individual retires from a fire association and collects a fire
pension benefit, they can also collect an additional $1,000 to help pay the taxes on that, but
they collect that and they relief association can be refunded by the State of Minnesota.
DuCharme said it goes back 40 or 50 years ago when fire pensions were taxable. Prachar
said the municipal contribution trended up and then in 2006 and 2009 we did not receive a
municipal contribution and a small amount for 2007 and 2008. He said in 2010 and 2011
that was the mandatory contribution to get us up to our funding levels we needed to be at.

Prachar said our Summary for 2011 is to achieve our goal of 110% Funded status and to
maintain this goal, we need: Healthy Investments, Prudent yet competitive Benefit Levels
and Consistent City Contributions.

Prachar said our Summary of Requests is we are requesting a City contribution of

$17,500 to the relief fund ($500 / firefighter), we are requesting the Council approve a

3% raise in benefit level now that we are back to 110% Funded status, contingent on
ratifying and updating Relief Association bylaws to Raise Benefit from $3400 to $3500 /
YOS, we are planning for the future, later this year after the Legislative session to make sure
their aren’t any changes we need to take into account.

Prachar said the Fiscal Impact is we are requesting a City contribution of $17,500 to the
relief fund ($500 / firefighter). He said the recent City Contributions in 2010 = $39,103, in
2011 = $28,315, and in 2012 = $17,500 (requested by RA). Prachar said this is a 55%
decrease from 2010 \ 38% decrease from 2011. He said our benefit level in 2011 is 111%
and projected assets are $1,242,000 and projected liabilities is $1,092,000 and surplus deficit
is $150,000, and would leave us at 114% .

Boyer asked to have his memory refreshed on the state mandated funding formula on relief
associations wasn’t it 110%. DuCharme said the mandatory contributions kick in at 97 or
95%. He said he believes what the relief association is trying to convey to Council is that
sometime in the future they are going to be coming forward and asking for an increase in
benefit of $100 per service year from $3,400 per year to $3,500 per year. He said and they
are going to ask for a contribution of $17,500 on an annual basis to kind of even everything
out. DuCharme said some of the theory is if the relief association can kind of figure out
what the income is going to be on a level period of time it is easier to look at what benefits
should be and easier to manage the account, to keep it at a healthy 110% fund.

Boyer said what he was getting at was he thought the State Auditor’s Office has set a healthy
percentage for funding of relief associations and he thought the 110% was related to that. He
asked is he correct in that or not. DuCharme said he can research this and get it to the city
administrator for the update. He said that would be a really important piece of information.
Boyer said he is no expert on pensions, but it seems to him that a 100% of accrued liability is
a large margin. DuCharme said that is why the relief association wants to maintain 110%.,
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unfortunately when 2008 came the relief association took a pretty hard hit. He said it took
this long to climb out of the hole and climbing out of the hole was also the participation of
the City and he is sure they appreciate that also.

Voss said what he recalls from a few years ago, it was actually a quite a few years ago and
he does remember that a cap or something that the auditors would have a problem if you
exceed a certain amount and he thinks that is what Boyer is alluding to. Boyer said he thinks
that is what happened when they hit 146% and that is why there wasn’t a City contribution
one year. DuCharme said we would be more than happy to consult with the State Auditor’s
Office. Voss said it is more out of curiosity than anything. DuCharme said again, think
tonight was right now the fund is healthy, which is good, but now the department and the
City itself is in the 2012 budget cycle, drafting that and it was important for them to let you
know this will be coming.

Moegerle asked for them to go back to the last slide on Fiscal Impact, and her question is we
make the contribution of $17,500 and but the projected assets don’t increase but the liability
does, and she doesn’t understand how that occurs with the contribution. DuCharme said
actually what this slide shows with a $3,500 benefit with the current assets, this increases the
liability but will still set the fund at 111%. He said so in other words, if right now, this year,
the fund would finish up at 111% fund if the proposed $3,500 benefit was in effect.
Moegerle and we didn’t do the $17,500 contribution. DuCharme said correct, absolutely
right.

Davis explained that as part of the motion that approved my hiring as the City
Administrator on May 4, 2010 was the approval of an employment agreement that would be
satisfactory to both the City and the Administrator.

The City Administrator Employment Agreement was reviewed by the City Attorney and was
provided to Council as a separate attachment.

The salary in this agreement is $21,588 less than the budget amount approved for this
position for 2011 and does not include an additional $2,792 in deferred compensation that
was included in the 2011 budget for this category. The overall impact of this agreement for
the City Administration budget is a reduction of $24,380, not including any of the reduced
fringe benefit costs associated with the salary.

Boyer made a motion to approve the City Administrator Employment Agreement as
provided. DeRoche seconded. Vierling said for the benefit of the Council and the public
the Council will approve the rate at which the administrator will be hired and there are a
couple other items obviously in an employment agreement, a couple other features. He said
one is the severance agreement which is typical for city administrators to have a severance in
the event of a discharge. Vierling said in this particular agreement the city administrator has
requested a six month severance. He said there is also the issue of benefits, in this particular
instance the benefits are largely going to be following the existing pay scale and benefits that
you have for the existing employees and also cost of living increase as well. Vierling said so
in many respects those flush out the added features that are over and above, the bullet points
that you had in your last packet. He said if there are any questions on those or any issues on
those, now is the time to raise them. Moegerle said with regard to the employment
agreements that were approved by Council, not the ones that were ultimately signed by the
employees, was there a COLA in those. Vierling asked for the other employees of the City.
Moegerle said yes. Vierling said he has not reviewed other than the past city administrators
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and the past assistant city administrators, you have union contracts with some of your staff
and those usually have features for automatic cost of livings as part of the contract as well.
He said they periodically come up for negotiation, he is not sure if you are on a two or three
year with those folks. Davis said three year. Moegerle asked what happens if the cost of
living is dropping, she thinks it currently is, what is the effect on the contract. Vierling said
it depends on how you tie this to the feature to a CPI/CPU scale if that goes down obviously
the cost of living goes with it. Boyer said it is the month or two months before the contract
expires. Davis said that is correct, it falls towards the end of the year. Vierling said so it
goes with that. VVoss asked are we referring to proposed contract or existing contract. Boyer
said he was referring to the Teamsters. Voss said from what he recalls the cost of living was
taken out of the employment agreements because those are budgeted positions. Davis said
there is no guaranteed COLA in the employment agreements. Vierling said this contract says
in January of each year a cost of living as determined by the City Council. Davis said this
would not be automatic, would be determined by the City Council. Lawrence said since we
just received this information, he would like some more time to go over it and review it to
make sure everything is what Davis wants. He said he knows we have a motion and
seconded, but he would like more time to review this and make sure it is a good solid
contract.

Lawrence made a motion to table the City Administrator Employment Agreement.
Voss seconded. Voss said he is seconding this only because he didn’t receive the
agreement. He said he might not have seen the e-mail. Boyer withdrew his motion. Davis
said he wants everyone to be able to review this and be comfortable with it. All in favor,
motion carries. Boyer said he assumes we are tabling this to the next Council meeting.
Lawrence said yes. VVoss asked can you put this in this week’s update. Davis said yes.
Moegerle asked do we want to get a couple of Council Members to go over this point by
point, she thinks this is a very important thing to do and the proper procedure particularly,
she was one of those people that complained when the employment agreements went
through last year and she would rather make sure we are all comfortable and all on the same
page and she is thinking that this might be the wise use. Voss said we will all review it and
all bring our comments back to the next Council meeting. DeRoche said he agrees with that.

DeRoche said the old ambulance is on MN Online Bid, auction is up Monday, $2,100 is the
current bid. He said the Fire Department is participating in as school bus extrication this
Saturday with other Anoka County fire departments. DeRoche said driving and pumping class is
starting this week for the fire fighters; the cost of this class is being reimbursed by the state fire
training board.

DeRoche said he did happen to attend the Deployment for the Troops on Sunday. He said there
were six soldiers from East Bethel that are being deployed to Iraq. DeRoche said they were
heading to Camp Ripley and then to North Caroline and they will be gone for at least a year. He
said it was kind of an eye opening event, times have changed from the old days, and it was good
to see the outpouring from the crowd even if they didn’t have a soldier being deployed. DeRoche
said there is a program called Beyond the Yellow Ribbon that he would like to see the City of
East Bethel get involved with. He said it deals with troops that are currently deployed, and when
they come back there are numerous issues for those that have been through it. DeRoche said
other than that; if you know someone that is deployed help them out. He said he called the
veteran’s service to try to get some names to try to extend his help, go cut the lawn, do whatever.
DeRoche said so if you know someone that is deployed, give up a little time, help them out,
because that is probably one of the toughest things he went through when he was deployed, that
was many Yyears ago, not only the troops go through it, but the families, friends, and he can’t
imagine the worry a sibling or son or daughter over in Iraq, there is so much worry. He said the
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lady in veteran’s services was afraid to give him the names because people are running scams.
So if you know someone that is deployed, help them out.

Moegerle said the website meeting has been very productive and we should be pressing the
green button very soon, as soon as we can get Kristin on board. She said there will be some
changes, it will be in process for a while, we will put “Under Construction” but this will be a
temporary fix, we are very excited, we have chosen come color schemes, very excited to have a
website where we can do some good searches.

Moegerle said the other thing she has with regard to GRE is she took some time to take the GRE
matrix and she ranked their data, 1-13 because there are 13 routes, to look and see weighting and
how those ranked and how those individual ranks add up. She said so we have some very
interesting review about the quality of the routes and which have the least impact on the
wetlands and the environment. Moegerle said and so we are going to supply this data to Larry
Schedin and see if that will help us prevail in regard with the GRE issue.

Voss asked last week went through the interview process with city engineer and city prosecutor
and he thought that was going to be on the agenda. Davis said that will be on June 1%. DeRoche
said he is sorry, but that was the city attorney. VVoss said did he just say the city engineer. Davis
said that is scheduled for June 1%. He said when we left the meeting there were some questions
and some items, information that was requested, one was the flat rate for one of the firms and a
couple points of clarification from one of the firms so we have that information and it will be on
the June 1% agenda.

Lawrence said been doing quite a bit of things around the City. He said he sees donations are
coming in from firms, he appreciates this.

Vierling said the Council will adjourn to closed session per MN Statute 13.D to review a matter
between the City and MBI Contract relative to the water system, as that matter is closed per
attorney/client privilege and it will not be a recorded item. He said however, once that closed
session is over, if any particular action is taken by the Council we will come back into open
session and announce any action specifically taken. Vierling said the second item deals with
items of potential land acquisition, MN Statute 13.D.05 requires Council identify the parcels to
be discussed for possible acquisition and they are 1562 and 1644 Viking Blvd. NE; and Service
Road issue properties: PID # 08 33 23 13 0001; 08 33 23 42 0004; 08 33 23 12 0006; 08 33 23
44 0001; 08 33 23 41 0005; 08 33 23 14 0002; & 08 33 23 11 0003, those will be tape recorded
as required by law, tape will be maintained for the period of time as required by statute and
again, relative to any action taken by council, if there is any action taken by Council, when we
come back into open session a summary of any action will be announced into the record.

DeRoche made a motion to adjourn to closed session. Moegerle seconded; all in favor,
motion carries.

Vierling said for purposes of the record and benefit of the public we would note that the Council
has concluded the closes sessions on the two matters they had originally adjourned to. He said
the first matter MBI dealing with the contract dispute, all Council Members were present in
closed session as was city administrator, city engineer and myself. Vierling said the Council
received input from City staff regarding the dispute reviewed strategy and gave staff direction,
but took no formal motions.

Vierling said on the other matter with regard to the land acquisitions for review under MN
Statute 13.D.05, Council review the two parcels at 1562 and 1644 Viking Blvd. NE and
determined to take no action with regard to those at this time. He said with regard to the service
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road parcels which were read into the record the Council gave staff instruction with regard to
strategy and other negotiation issues, but took no actions and made no motions. Vierling said
that is the conclusion of the closed sessions. He said all Council Members were present for the
discussion of both real estate matters as well.

Adjourn Boyer made a motion to adjourn at 10:29 PM. Voss seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Attest:

Wendy Warren
Deputy City Clerk



EAST BETHEL CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETING
May 12, 2011

The East Bethel City Council met on May 12, 2011 at 6:00 PM for a work meeting at City Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bob DeRoche Richard Lawrence  Heidi Moegerle

Steve Voss

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Bill Boyer

ALSO PRESENT: Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator

Call to Order

Adopt Agenda

Interview for
Civil and
Prosecution
Services

Smith &
Glaser, LLC

The May 12, 2011 City Council work meeting was called to order by Mayor Lawrence at
6:00 PM.

VVoss made a motion to adopt the May 12, 2011 Work Meeting Agenda. Moegerle
seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Kurt Glaser from Glaser & Smith said he is going to tell you about himself personally first.
He said other than hiring a city administrator the city attorney is a personal relationship, you
need to be able to talk about logic and give good advice, how to run as a City and good
community standards, both from an official standpoint and community standards. Glaser
said he never wears a suit, but of course he is wearing one tonight. He said he is the product
of a Marine Corp. family. Glaser said he does for the cities of Lexington and Centerville and
has to be available 24/7, he is for their officers, and would be for your sheriff’s officers. He
said when people see me as prosecutor and as the city attorney as well, he wants them to
know he takes his duties seriously. Glaser said he has two personalities one as a prosecutor
and one as a civil attorney. As a prosecutor, stern, fair and measured. As a civil attorney he
rarely talks unless he is spoken too. Glaser said you work is usually done before you walk
into Council Chambers, you talk to City staff, send out memos; give good city advice, etc.
He said he doesn’t think a good city attorney should weigh in on value advice.

Glaser said his mentor Dennis Smith taught him that he is not here to be a politician. He
said he has been asked by elected officials and citizens what he really thinks, but that should
not be a matter of public record. Glaser said the way his staff works is Sami Stenger,
paralegal is more than average, she has legal training and the way he runs his office is Sami
does a lot of the leg work. He said she puts the cases together for him, work that a current
attorney does for prosecution and city attorney, he does rely on staff a lot more. Glaser said
he is going through a time that he is changing roles, he is looking forward to serving in more
city attorney roles, he would like to only be a city attorney and move his practice out of
Minneapolis closer to Anoka, closer to his home. He said he enjoys working with citizens;
there is a nice feeling that comes from that. Glaser said he divides his work between being a
city attorney and city prosecution work.

Glaser said the firm you have for prosecution is a good bunch of folks. He said we would
work differently; they rely on billing per hour, $35 per hour for assistants and $40 an hour
for complaints. Glaser said there is a cost difference with a firm using attorneys to do all
the work, but if you have staff doing some of the work, that makes his work more efficient
and reasonable. He said he is a techy nerd; he and Doug Johnson from Coon Rapids are
working on making the prosecution more computer friendly. Glaser said we are using the
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databases from Anoka County; pass that data to create documents, to create notices, and to
contact deputies. He said but the reality is we still need boots on the ground and lawyers in
court. Glaser said and he is not doing divorce law or other areas of practice. He said
Christopher Keyser will be helping me with prosecution and he would be here tonight, but
he is off at Jag School. He is new. He said what you are going to get with Chris and myself
is he will do arraignments and pretrial hearings. Glaser said I will do the contested hearings
and jury trials and have been doing this for 20 years. He said he has either been a prosecutor
or working criminal defense, and then he met his mentor and went into to civil law.

Glaser said he would offer to do this at a flat rate of $80,000 annually. He said all the
prosecution work that needs to be done for the next three years at this rate. He said this does
not include code compliance work or criminal appeals, but he only saw one of those in the
last couple years when he revised the cities records. Glaser said what you paid in 2009 was
$90,800, 2010 was $88,977 and 2011 so far was $32,736 for a projected $130,944, we are
proposing a fixed rate you can budget and bank on. Voss asked is this for both civil and
prosecution. Glaser said no, just prosecution. He said we think you are paying more than
you should. Glaser said we think we are more efficient.

Glaser said lets move on to civil work. He said there is a bridge between the two when you
have someone doing both, someone that understands the standards of community it works
better. Glaser said when you are the city attorney doing the civil work, you get a better feel
for the community standards. He said on the civil side, you would almost always see me,
you would only see Chris if | was sick or on vacation. Glaser said for the civil attorney
work, he would be here to give good logical work, he has been working in this county
having been a civil attorney for 10 years, you get his historical knowledge on what has been
going on for the last 10 years, it is good that he knows what has been going on here. He said
such as the Anoka County Connect contract, we went to the county and said you have to
revise this or you would have lost your franchise fees. Glaser said we had to pull in the
other city attorneys and form a group to get the agreement changed. He said with the fiber
optic agreement we had to pull in some commissioners and impress on them that the changes
were very important. Glaser said there still going to be rough changes with that agreement.
He said the mix he gives you is the combination of prosecution and civil.

Moegerle said you talked about history, so explained why when East Bethel has a contract
with the Anoka County Sheriff to issues tickets, we contract with a prosecutor to issue fines,
and then the fines go to the state, she doesn’t understand the process and it seems like a big
rip-off. Glaser said this is statutory framework; you are too big of City to use the county
attorney. Moegerle asked because we are a third class City. Glaser said yes. He said fine
revenue started this. Glaser said when he started this fine revenue completely paid for his
prosecution services and part of the police services. He said there is a simple there has been
erosion of the system, the state has come in need a little more here and a little more there of
the money. Glaser said it is like a pie chart with massive little splinters. He said it started
out a third, third and third, City, county and state unless you contracted with the sheriff for
services. Glaser said and now, if people don’t pay tickets you can’t throw them in jail for not
paying anymore. He said the short answer is to try to have administrative fines so we aren’t
sending these things to court. Glaser said he and the other cities attorneys need to take on St.
Paul, the legislator. He said we have a county attorney’s group; we want to go to St. Paul
and lobby them to get the fines collected, not to just send the ones that aren’t collected to la-
la land. Glaser said so administrative fines. Moegerle asked would we have to change our
ordinances. Glaser said this would be up to your prosecutor. He said staff has to be involved;
sheriff’s department has to be involved. Glaser said this is another set of administrative
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tickets; the sheriff would have a problem writing those tickets even if you adopt those.

DeRoche asked what kind of experience you have working with unions. Glaser said he
worked with them an awful lot and then stopped when he became a city attorney. He said he
uses Paul Floyd and here is why. Glaser said if he is working on a grievance and they don’t
like the outcome, then he has to work with that city staff person next week and they don’t
work with him well. He said he is capable of doing the work, but he thinks it is better for
him not to do it. Glaser said he has worked well with the unions and worked well against
them. Moegerle asked looking at some of our ordinances, if we say this ordinance is not
sufficient, how you would go about this, getting the information, short of interviewing us.
Glaser said first would be getting input from Council, at least a little of what you want. He
said then he would see what else is out there, he is not going to reinvent the wheel. He said
five years ago he went through revamping the Centerville code. Glaser said but it really
comes from consensus from Council, he would present redlines with alternatives to reflect
the ideas of different members.

Voss said on the prosecution side probably our biggest task we have had is dealing with
blight in the City, and knowing Centerville and Lexington you have probably dealt with this,
how do you deal with that. Glaser said Lexington has a greater problem. He said he uses
the City approach in Lexington, criminal charges. Glaser said but If you don’t start by
asking you are never going to get anywhere. He said he deals with the property owner and
sometimes that is an absentee owner or the banks. Glaser said you can’t just send off letters
from City Hall and expect everyone to comply. He said he will start with a friendly phone
call and if that doesn’t work then start using civil statutes. Glaser said it is easier to get the
property owner to clean it up. He said when you have blighted property, lots of times you
have bad tenants, so we can go after the landlord.

DeRoche how asked how do you handle plea bargains. Glaser said folks that have
committed offenses that have a victim, if you have hurt someone you need to atone for that.
He said we have to deal with the problem. Glaser said when it is lighter types of charges,
community issue. Glaser said it can depend on the economic situation.

DeRoche asked what your stance on innocent until proven guilty is. He said he knows it
sounds funny, but if someone is set up, how aggressive are you to find out that someone is
not set up. Glaser said he questions the police officer to make sure they have investigated to
make sure it has been investigated thoroughly. He said he feels strongly that there are easy
cases out there to get, to send a message to society that is we are going to get it wrong,
innocence is a freedom. DeRoche said some people don’t take that this serious, but this
depends on the prosecutor, some think my police would never get this wrong, some rubber
stamp things. Glaser said he trusts his officers implacably, but they are human, they can get
things wrong. He said the worst, the toughest, is a domestic case. DeRoche what do you do
when you have two neighbors arguing with each other and technically you can get charged
with 5" degree assault. Glaser said send them to mediation services. He said because they
are trained in this, they do a great job.

Moegerle asked what do you think about these charges lately for terrorist threats. Glaser
said the way our system is built is for the one case that is real. He said he has been through
this, one of his childhood friends had this done to them and most prosecutors have this
happen to them. Glaser said if it is a question about public safety; go on the side of public
safety.
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Moegerle asked about his experience with economic development issues. Glaser said he has
had quite a bit of experience. He said Centerville had worked up a development for
downtown, but had to draw it down. Glaser said he had to draw it down, worked with the
developers, grant fund agencies, architects and bond counsel. He said he had a lot of
experience in real estate, but kind of served as the person to bring them all together. Glaser
said he did the developers agreements. He said we are in the midst of this with Lexington
rezoning their blighted areas. He said they have an old elementary school that they used to
use for City Hall and they are trying to attract development to that. DeRoche asked have
you had any malpractice claims against you. Glaser said he was sued by a client in 1998 and
the courts threw it out. He said unfortunately it comes with the territory. Glaser said he
was sued by a criminal defendant in Lexington because the police took his knife and car.

DeRoche asked if Glaser had any questions for them. Glaser asked to be straight about it,
how you guys are getting along. Lawrence said we have a diverse thinking of minds around
here. Glaser said as long as you don’t take it out on your city attorney that is not bad. He
asked you just hired a city attorney in January why are you going out again. VVoss said we
didn’t hire an attorney, we just appointed them. He said now we are going through the
process. Glaser said you have only had your current prosecutor for 2 years and now going
out for RFPs, why. Voss said it is just part of the process. Glaser said and now Mr. Davis
is permanent. Davis said he was the flavor of the month and now he is permanent. Glaser
said the reason he asks is he realizes that after becoming the city attorney, there would be
like a trial period. He said but after that period if you thought it was a good fit, would you
be interested in signing a contract for 2-3 years. Lawrence said yes, we would. Moegerle
asked would you be interested in just the prosecution services. Glaser said he is interested in
doing more civil attorney services, but yes.

Davis asked what your general response time is. Glaser said he is usually pretty quick; he
tries to return every phone call really quick. He said prosecution work comes first because
of public safety. Glaser said but his office staff can help. He said but with text messaging,
his response can be right when he is in court. Moegerle said if you got the prosecution work,
would you try to get the calendar changed so Lexington and Centerville and East Bethel
were all on the same day. Glaser said if the court was willing to do that, but it would take 6
months. Lawrence said we would hope whoever we land with would stay for longer than a
year or two. Glaser said that makes sense both way, he likes to hear that.

Fritz Knaak of Knaak & Associates said this is his chance to see you while you see me.
Knaak said he has been practicing for 32 years and his primary practice has been public law
for 30 years. He said in his course of 30 years he has never been fired. Knaak said he has
ended a couple relationships with cities for all the right reasons. Knaak said he would love to
be your city attorney, this is what he likes to do, and part of what keeps him going as lawyer,
the fact that what he does when representing a City is a public service in the every meaning
of the sense. He said he had gone to law school with people that are in the profession the get
overly specialized and burnout. Knaak said with civil service there is something different
going on every day; it is very different, different clientele with a broad array of City
problems. He said this practice has changed over last 30 years, thankfully we don’t have to
do the many things anymore, such as the litigation that LMC does.

Knaak said he is a litigator; he is not shy about courts and is not shy about prosecuting. He
said he will tell you that he means it when he says he welcomes the opportunity to represent
East Bethel as their lawyer, you are a smaller town. Knaak said If you choose me as your
lawyer you would be comfortable with me and over time confident with me. He said with
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me is Don Kohler, he has been practicing municipal law for about a dozen years, and he has
known him since we were kids. Knaak said he wants to be around people he is comfortable
with. He said Kohler is primarily responsible for prosecution. Knaak said that requires day
to day ongoing management. He said staying on top of it administratively.

Lawrence said we are doing some construction and growing, and some of our legal questions
are coming from our contractors, are you familiar in handling this. Knaak said he doesn’t
represent any large contractors, he has represented rapidly developing cities, Lake EImo and
Afton, and he is familiar with that. He said we have the templates and everything we need in
our office to deal with those kinds of questions.

Moegerle asked do you have experience dealing with economic development. Knaak asked
where you want to start, he has been very involved with economic development and
authorities. He said he was the city attorney in Newport, involved with the city of Fridley
HRA and Medtronic’s development. Knaak said he deals on a regular basis with economic
development and authorities, if on the cusp of it the fun part; it is a lot of effort to develop it.
Moegerle asked have you read the opinion regarding the Anoka HRA and East Bethel HRA
and do you have an opinion. Knaak said he is aware of it. Moegerle said and it was
affirmed. Knaak said we had a similar position in the city of Fridley and Anoka County
backed off. Moegerle asked did your HRA pre-date the Anoka County HRA. Knaak said
yes.

DeRoche asked what your background in prosecution is. Knaak said he has prosecuted since
1982 and also defended. He said he has a general practice, it keeps him sane. Knaak said he
has done felony trials. He said he has prosecuted misdemeanors and gross misdemeanors,
but now he mostly does the civil side. Knaak said Kohler does the prosecution. He said
what immediately comes to mind is a zoning case, those always generate the heat and we
had a case down on 65, a Chiropractor that built an $85,000 sign, flashes and everything,
incredibly illegal. Knaak said we took it to court, his way of provoking, and the plaintiff to
it to the local American Legion and well respected citizens and his first use of sign was
waving American flag, but we did cite him for illegal signage. He said we won the case and
took it up on appeal and won it again. Knaak said this stuff only can happen to you if you
are a city attorney.

Kobhler said practicing law is a second career for him, he was a truck driver and injured his
back and went back to school. He said they ended up sharing office space and ended up
working together. Kohler said he wrote the brief for the case that Fritz was talking about.
Kohler said while he was in law school he did an internship with the Ramsey county office,
and then did general law. He said he has probably have tried 10-20 cases, civil or
administrative. Kohler said most criminal cases do settle. Kohler said when working for the
Ramsey County public defenders office they told him they were all guilty of something. He
said they said if you don’t get them with what they are charged with, they will plea to a
lesser offense. Kohler said we have worked on several cases together, represented both
sides of fence.

Knaak was reminded of a case where we successfully challenged the discretion of the city of
Saint Paul. He explained the case. Knaak said he likes to have regular staff meetings, it is
the only time he had a room full of staff members. He said he would be the city attorney and
Kobhler the assistant; he is the person that would be focusing on managing prosecution.
Knaak said we proposed in our proposals a fixed fee arrangement, that used to be unheard of
but now it is becoming more common, that way there is no disincentive for the city to use us.
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He said we try to be on target, that way there is no disincentive for the staff to call for a
question, there is no such thing as a stupid question, if people are prepared to do that, and
what got me to do that is he likes to meet with staff. Knaak said in his monthly staff meeting
all the staff questions get answered and it tends to avoid problems. He said see he has an
additional hourly rate for more than 10 hours when there is litigation that goes beyond 10
hours. Knaak said the last time that happened in the city of Fridley was 6 years ago. He said
that is designed to be there in case we have a major case. Knaak said we would expect given
our practice we never see that. He said we don’t charge you for copies, there is occasionally
a filing fee, but very rare.

Davis asked describe your response to staff, time. Knaak said when you call you are going
to get me. He said today he talked to two city administrators, one two times, the other three
times. He said his job, the benefit of experience is to give you an answer, and you are
probably going to get the answer right away. Knaak said and 90% of the time you are going
to get an answer right at the meeting. He said he shows up with a computer so he is able to
do research here. Knaak said if he doesn’t have the answer right now, he will have the
answer tomorrow, he wants people to ask the question.

Lawrence asked what cities are you currently working with. Knaak said Newport and
Fridley. He said he does conflict work for others. He said he had Maplewood, but they are
just big enough to need someone, but not quite, to almost need someone in house. Knaak
said in this particular case, his partner at the time was there all time; he set up an office
there, so he finally said to him, why are we pretending you are here so he is now the in house
city attorney for Maplewood. He said in the case of Lake EImo, he was in politics at the
time, was a former legislator, they were doing an annexation, and he offered support, and a
campaign brochure came out that he was working for them and it was skewed and he
withdrew from working for them. Knaak said these are two cases where he has had to
withdraw from representation.

Moegerle asked how much of your time do you consider educating council on the pro and
cons on the wording of a provision in an ordinance that needs to be changed. Knaak said if
this is a Council directive, one thing he has learned is it is hard not to enter yourself into the
picture, cardinal rule it is not your City. He said sometimes if you have been a city attorney
for a long, long, time you have to resist that. Knaak said when you talk about merits or
demerits of a position, you have to talk objectively of the ordinance, he does this for clients
all the time, and this is part of his job.

Knaak said he likes what he sees; he is comfortable, that is important to him. He said some
of what he does is a gut feel. Knaak said this City has a good reputation, you are growing.
Issues are different, development fights, and new people. He said he grew up in the city of
White Bear Lake and that fight was going on there in the 50’s. Knaak said ultimately what
matters is if the Council is positive and forward looking.

Moegerle asked if it should happen that we split prosecution and civil do you have a
preference. Knaak said we would like to do both. He said but it is up to you. Knaak said if
there is someone you like better for prosecution, which is your call. He said he likes doing
prosecution, he loves doing civil.

Lawrence said for this city, which is smaller than what you have been handling, but would
provide something interesting for your background, he wants to make a statement from the
group. He said we are five members who have diverse thinking and it makes for interesting
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discussion, hopefully we are progressing forward at an even rate. Lawrence said normally
our council meetings are on Wednesdays, is that a problem for you. Knaak said not for him
now. He was relieved when he learned your meetings were on Wednesday nights. Knaak
said because of what he does and so many cities he does not schedule things on
Wednesdays, so they are free.

DeRoche asked for his take on domestic abuse. Kohler said those are some of the most
heinous crimes, violence against another person. He said people make mistakes as they go
through life, domestic situations, tend to escalate if they are not dealt with severely. Kohler
said he doesn’t know if they have victim advocates in Anoka County, but where we are now,
we get input from victim advocates.

DeRoche asked how about neighbor against neighbor, 5™ degree assault. Kohler said
neighbors have some friction between them. He said he had a neighbor personally, his tree
branches were on his side of fence and he cut them and threw them over the fence. Kohler
said alcohol is usually involved. He said after people are arrested and charged they are
usually contrite, we will do a lesser offense if they remain law abiding. Kohler said on the
other hand we have a situation in Newport that it is constant and one party takes offense at
anything neighbor does so we are judicious about our time, because it is just one neighbor
just complaining every time. Kohler said he thinks his experience in his career prior to
becoming an attorney is helpful; you can cut through the BS.

Moegerle asked she has been learning through the Anoka County attorney that they write
citations, then we hire a prosecutor, then we get fines in place but not much comes back
here. She asked what can we do about this. Kohler said there are a couple ways to get more
revenues to come back to the City. He said in Washington county there is a hearing officer,
we gave them guidelines for settlement, the majority of the fine comes to the City and then
the ticket doesn’t go on the license. Knaak said the LMC has been trying to increase the
amount of revenue to the City. He said the cities collectively have been talking about how
do we get around this. Knaak said the courts however are pushing back. He said you can
work out an agreement, but the Judge will look you in the eyeball and say glad you are
amenable and will give them this, but guess what we are going to split this. Knaak said
cities everywhere and their attorneys are conspiring to see some of that revenue. Moegerle
asked we can’t add an ordinance to add a fee. Knaak said it doesn’t’ work to do this. He said
you absolutely can’t do this with traffic cases. He said you need to understand there is a lot
of pressure from the forces out there.

Lawrence asked when you take on a new city, what kind of timeline are you looking at.
Knaak said we are looking for a contract. He said you are a city, so if you hire me, by
statute you can fire me next week. Lawrence asked how long of a contract. Knaak said that
would be up to the Council, but he would encourage Council to do a review every year. He
said he would like them to be candid for fairness so we both know what the shortcomings
are, it needs to be stated. Knaak said he has had long relationships, 16 years in Fridley and
30 years in Newport. He said he has good relationships with his clients and if he is doing
something they don’t like he hears about it.

Voss said we set a policy to go through this process every so many years. Davis said every
five years. Knaak said five years if fairly common, it is a good idea, that way you are not
feeling pressure.

Bill Clelland of Carson, Clelland and Schreder said he is here tonight along with Dawn
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Speltz, senior associate who is actively prosecuting your accounts along with Spring Lake
Park. He said he is proud of what she has done for our firm and our accounts. Clelland said
we represent eleven cities and Brooklyn Center is the largest. He said we have enjoyed
working for you; we were selected as your prosecutor in 2008. Clelland said one of the
things he about in selecting the prosecuting attorney, is it is not just experience and technical
skill, but what he would think is a good fit, you fit better with some than others, some are
more responsive. He said he hopes we have been addressing concerns on a legal and
practical basis. Clelland said he thinks when you assess our fees; our fees are the lowest of
the Twin Cities attorneys. He said we do work effectively and competently. Clelland said
we are the only ones that have applied for just prosecution services. He said sometimes
there are concerns about just doing prosecution and not sharing with the civil. Clelland said
almost all the work we do would never go to your civil attorney. He said it is rare that each
of us are working on part of a problem, but if so, we would be careful to allocate the
responsibilities so we don’t duplicate the responsibilities, such as with Randall. Clelland said
he hopes you recognize you work well with us. He said he has been before this council on
license actions, and he has worked personally on problem properties.

Speltz said she knows you heard from three others. She said as far as the prosecution side,
prosecution for Hennepin and Anoka counties is like apples and oranges. Speltz said it is
like walking into a new place, Anoka likes to be different, and she thinks there is a lot of
value you receive from having an attorney that has experience in Anoka County. She said
the judges trust me. Speltz said it is not cost effective to litigate every case. She said she
has a good relationship with the public defender, had only one jury trial in the two years she
has done this with East Bethel. Speltz said we are working to increase the prosecution costs
back to the cities, to make sure you see the money back. She said she has gotten a good
response from the bench. Clelland said everyone is fighting about the money. Speltz said in
Anoka County you don’t pay for the jail time, if it is prosecution cost it goes to the city. She
said we have to be careful to say this, instead of court cost, and then it goes to the county.
Speltz said we are trying to get more money for you.

Voss said back in 2008 the big focus when you were interviewed was addressing blight, in
the few years you have been doing this for City, have you seen improvements, settling cases,
getting resolutions. Clelland said for budgetary, we have not been asked to do much
recently. He said your staff identifies these and we recover nuisance costs. He said you
don’t have a housing maintenance code that deals with the maintenance of homes. Clelland
said Brooklyn Center has this and he thinks that would benefit you in the future. He said we
can remediate any problem property if they are identified with enough specifity. Clelland
said City staff are good, until they realize they can’t get any further. He said by the time we
get to court we have the high road. Clelland said it is a little more difficult now with people
abandoning properties to foreclosures, people getting elderly. He said he strongly believes in
the broken window theory, and if there is a broken window there is another broken window,
you need to keep curb appeal to make people think this is a nice community. He said he is
not sure if it is a change of focus, economic, etc. Speltz said in court once they realize how
serious it is they take care of it, they comply.

Moegerle asked do we have ordinances we need to tweak. Speltz said we work a lot of out
of the Appendix A, Brooklyn center is more specific. You are more like Corcoran and
Greenfield. She said she knows you have large properties out here. Clelland said the court
distinguishes between building and maintenance; the contractors need to know that rules
won’t change from one community to another, need to know we aren’t going to be big
brother and knocking on doors and looking in windows. He said but It can happen by
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accident or you can use the hazardous building act, you have to find out if the building is not
habitable. Clelland said if the family is dysfunctional, then we are looking to social services.
Moegerle said staff is working on that ordinance now is he working with you on that.
Clelland said no, but because he came from Brooklyn Center, he has a lot of large cities to
look at.

DeRoche said you have been in the business for a long time, he ran into a gentleman that has
a dead horse on a hill on a property, is there something to cover this. Speltz said she thinks
she knows this property. Clelland said there is a statute that covers this, public nuisance. He
said if there are several neighbors that are affected by the smell of decay, is it attracting
vermin. Clelland said also, you might find a county health ordinance, they may have
ordinances there that deal with a specific situation, dogs and cats are regulated under
Chapter 347, but horses might be covered under Chapter 346. He said he assumes he can
bury them or burn them. Voss said we had this issue about 10 years ago, a different place
and we went in and buried the horse.

Clelland said he feels he knows you, he hopes we can retain our contract with you and go
forward. He said we work for many cities doing civil and criminal, Brooklyn Center, Spring
Lake Park, Long Lake, Corcoran, Hanover, Greenfield, East Bethel and others.

Moegerle asked would you visit us more than once a quarter. Clelland said yes. He said we
provide and update on the outcome of court cases to the sheriff and we would be happy to
send this to the city administrator. Speltz said we also do this on the code enforcement,
send an update. Davis said he would like to see that. Speltz said she is in court every
Thursday and every other Friday. She said combining the calendars for Spring Lake Park
and East Bethel is good for you. Speltz said if she goes there for four hours each is being
billed for two.

DeRoche asked is there an increase in DWIs. Speltz said there are some grants out there,
Safe and Sober. Clelland said there are over 40,000 DWIs in Minnesota.

Voss said one of the reports we got, analysis of prosecution costs to the city and offset of
fines, do you now offhand what the budget is. Davis said $58,000 is what we got back in,
about 65 cents on the dollar. Voss asked has that changed, prior to 2008. Davis $48,000 in
2007. Speltz said if you get a speeding ticket, she does this all in prosecution costs. She
said it allows them to keep it off their record and then they don’t go to court. Speltz said this
is the difference between her and Randall. Davis asked does this go to the state first. Speltz
said goes directly to the City. She said unfortunately with the economy, a younger bench,
there has been a reduction of fines; they are giving community work service. Clelland said
frankly he has some respect for people that say they are willing to work it off; they are at
least paying their penalty.

DeRoche said with this economy do you see increase in burglaries and such. Speltz said we
don’t see felonies. Clelland said a lot of this is drug driven. Speltz said we do tend to see
the frequent offender list. She said this is the benefit of having someone that has worked
with you city is they know these frequent offenders.

Mark Vierling of Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff & Vierling, PLLP said he brought a
good sampling of his staff along tonight. He said he brought Sean Stokes, Amanda
Prutzman, Jennifer Nodes, Wendy Murphy and Tom Weidner. Vierling said our firm has
been around since 1946 and has 14 attorneys. We have a significant focus in the municipal
field and service the cities/villages of Woodbury, Hugo, Oak Park Heights, Bayport,
Lakeland, Lake St. Croix Beach, St. Mary’s Point, Birchwood, Marine on St. Croix, Grant,
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May Township, Mahtomedi, Wyoming, Lake EImo, Somerset and Hammond.
Vierling said we can offer you value, we suspect we are one of the higher ones in hourly
rate, because of the experience we offer, we can turn things around faster and provide you
with a response faster than most. He said they took a look at what we have done for you
since January this year. Vierling said you averaged about 27 hours a month. He said also if
you opt for the hourly rate, we don’t bill you for hourly time. He said some firms will bill
you for Westlaw research, there are no enhancements for out of pocket, no administrative
fees, we do not charge for phone calls. Vierling said we don’t bill for electronic copies and
technology, we have most of our clients that want their product electronically. He said we
own a title company, FSA, so we can turn this work around faster and cheaper now because
of this. Vierling said no firm is going to be able to handle everything, but our firm has the
depth that can handle most everything. He said we do all our appellate work. He said we
have the resources and connections that firms that are metro wide need to do what we need
to do. Vierling said we have offered you two different options for billing, hourly or $3,200
per month.

Vierling said we are interested in doing both the civil and criminal. He said we have found in
communities where we do that they are better served. Vierling said more important is with
the issues we own it 100%, we have the problem, community has the problem and we are
going to get you the solution you are looking for. He said for instance, when you have a
problem with the blight issue, you might need to go the civil route to get something done.
Vierling said we have gone the paperless route in Washington county. He said we have
offered you a reasonable rate on prosecution services, and we think it is lower than what you
are paying now. Vierling said we are familiar with the judges in Anoka County; they are the
same as Washington.

Sean Stokes said he is partner at the law firm and he has been a criminal prosecutor for 15
years now. He said he began his practice in the Sherburne County attorney’s office, and for
about 5 years we were short judged, in Sherburne, Anoka and Washington we had the same
judges. Stokes said Anoka would rotate a judge to Sherburne every week. He said he got to
know the judges fairly well. Stokes said he is also in private practice and has quite a number
of cases in Anoka County. He said what distinguishes Eckberg Lammers is the team
approach.

Stokes said what we have found over the many years we have represented cities is the need
to be a crossover of the civil and criminal services. He said there are cases where criminal is
the approach and cases where a hybrid is what you need. Stokes said really when we look
at representing our clients we look at public safety and quality of life in the community and
to meet those needs and how they want them afforded under the law. He said this is a
significant benefit to the City. Stokes said because we have been doing this for so long at
Eckberg, Lammers, we have two full time support staff that only supports prosecution staff;
one has been with us for over 15 years, which is unusual for a prosecution law firm. He said
if you need something during the day we have someone that will assist you. Stokes said we
are effective in what we do. He said we enjoy trying cases.

Stokes said there are a lot of attorneys that say these cases as not worth going to trial. He
said you can not meet your public safety in your community if you are not willing to go to
trial, it allows us to maximize public safety objectives that the client has. Stokes said If we
end up with the opportunity to serve, he would be the primary prosecuting attorney. He said
you would need to have a primary contact, and that would be him. Stokes said we have an
excellent team. He said he has reviewed your city ordinance as far as problem properties; it
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needs to be what is the best tool, sometimes abatement action, sometimes enforcement
through the criminal system, sometimes others. Stokes said Vierling mentioned we have
innovated a paperless system for current municipal clients, this insures things are done in a
timely manner; we would look to implement this for you as well.

Moegerle asked in your review of our code, did you find any wholes in places or any places
we need to strengthen. Stokes said in your code you state that violations are misdemeanors,
such as under Solid Waste provisions and it says them can be charged as a crime, this is
most of your code provisions. He said but your nuisance section is one exception to that.
Stokes said your code does an excellent job of defining a nuisance, but what is not there is a
violation of the nuisance code is a misdemeanor. He said we could get around that and
could do that as a violation of state statute, but would rather do this under your code.

Stokes said most lawyers think that any violation of city code is a misdemeanor but that is
not true. He said he thinks you need to amend this.

DeRoche said he has an issue where three people approached him where a neighbor dumped
three dead horses in his property, how can you deal with this. Stokes said statute 609.745,
public nuisance dangerous to someone’s health, loud noises, odors, he would need to review
the specific provisions of code, would need to review your code, and solid waste provisions,
but that would deal with it. Weidner said Prutzman is one of our experts on animals and he
knows she knows about some changes with horses being categorized as livestock that might
affect this. Prutzman said yes, horses were just moved into the category as livestock and
with regard to livestock, there is no requirement to remove livestock. Stokes aid under
Chapter 26 the Code Enforcement Officer could issue a clean up order, we may have conflict
with state order, and it would be an interesting case. Vierling said you just never know
what comes up in communities, it is one of the benefits of having had 17 communities we
have done a lot of clean up, perennial problems.

Lawrence asked what do you do about a cat issue. Vierling said you can have an ordinance;
it comes up to what your community will tolerate. He said we have had some issues with
this, if doing damage you can usually do something about this.

Moegerle asked what your experience with economic development is. Vierling said he has
worked with communities that have been on the high growth mode, Woodbury, Hugo, there
are fiscal opportunities that cities are offering, tax increment, bonding that you have
available, tax abatement where tax increment is not available, community if the school
district will sign on this, it is a big significant value to get a business in, the tax increment
world is getting bigger and bigger all the time. Moegerle asked is this just for the industrial
or for big box entities. Vierling said if you get everyone on board, you can do it with
anyone. He said it is a very competitive market for businesses and they are always looking to
squeeze the extra dollar out.

DeRoche asked how you deal with domestic abuses cases, from assaults to felonies. Stokes
said we are limited to misdemeanors and gross misdemeanors, the county attorney’s office
would deal with any felonies. He said as far as domestic violence we take that very
seriously, we partner with domestic advocacy groups out there. Stokes said with
misdemeanor crimes you have non-alcohol driving crimes, to domestic abuse crimes. He
said when someone drives without a license or no insurance this pales compared to a
domestic abuse case. Stokes said as a family attorney he has a lot of experience with this
and he takes these matters extremely seriously, offenders need to be held accountable and
victims need to be protected.
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DeRoche asked how do you go from that to two neighbors fighting with each other and a
cop shows up and all of a sudden it is a 5™ degree assault.  Stokes said the statutes are very
broad on 5™ degree assault. He said the first part of this is someone commits an act with
intent to cause fear in another of immediate bodily harm or death and the second part
is someone intentionally inflicts or attempts to inflict bodily harm upon another, the
intent to cause harm. Stokes said the deputy will likely issue a ticket on the second
part the intent to cause harm. He said this is something you need to have a lot of
experience on to understand. Stokes said crimes of domestic violence happen behind a
curtain, it is very rare you will have a third party. He said with a misdemeanor case you
don’t have bodily injury, they are tough cases. Stokes said it is the objective of a city
prosecutor is to insure community safety and quality of life. He said sometimes there are
false acquisitions; it requires a lot of experience.

DeRoche asked how do you deal with plea bargains. Stokes said this is the nature of our
business and plea bargains are a necessary thing. He said if we didn’t do this, law
enforcement would sit in the hallway of the courthouses and wait for cases to be called, they
would never be out on the streets. Stokes said repeat offenders need to be treated differently
and we need to look at the severity of offense. He said having prosecutors that are
experienced is key; we make plea bargains that are appropriate and fair. Stokes said we say
based on what you have done and what we know, this is what you are going to get, if you
don’t want to do that we will take your case to trial.

Weidner said Murphy just put a person in jail for stealing a tuna sandwich, put him in jail for
45 days he was a repeat offender, but you can’t handle each case equally just because of the
charge. Weidner said as prosecutors, it is almost adult parenting. He said you find out from
experience. Vierling said another thing you need to consider. He said the last thing you need
in a court house is attorney du jour. Vierling said our people talk to each other, talk to the
courthouse staff and talk to your staff. He said we try to stay consistent with how things are
handled. Vierling said the last thing you want is a defense bar looking for a different
attorney to move their case to on a different day because they think they will get a different
outcome. He said if the community wants a value they want impressed on a certain type of
offense, we want to hear that.

Stokes said it is somewhat like parenting, these people are acting in a somewhat antisocial
manner. He said we need to get behavior modification. Lawrence said on an average, do
you know how many cases are done on a plea bargain versus trial. Stokes said plea bargain
is all you need sometimes. He said most cases are not tried. Stokes said plea and stand
behind principles, there is not always a bargain with it. He said we do a flat fee prosecution
because we don’t want to spend our time with administrative fees and recording every
document that goes out. Stokes said some say you have no incentive to go to trial, but we
like to try cases. He said it gives us the reputation that we will not fold early on. Stokes said
we have almost 4,000 cases a year, we believe in what we do. He said you have to try cases
to back up what you are talking about.

Lawrence asked as far as spending time in the Anoka County courts, how often have you
been there. Stokes said he spends a lot of time there in his current practice. He said he
personally knows the judges there very well. Stokes said one was his former boss. He said
he is quite familiar with the court; he has a number of cases there as we speak. Stokes said
Washington County just got Judge Hoffman, he was a judge here for many years and he just
transferred over there. He said Anoka County has a well deserved reputation for a very
strict bench it is considered to be a county you don’t want to commit a crime in because the
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judges will hold you accountable. Stokes said he would be excited to come back and
prosecute in Anoka County, because the judges hold you accountable.

Moegerle asked about ordiannces we need to tighten up on City side. Vierling said he had
some comments on the personnel policy, he had sent a memo to the former city
administrator. He said and Ms. Nodes is also working with the fire chief on some personnel
issues.

Moegerle asked do you have an opinion on the Anoka County HRA versus East Bethel HRA
case. Vierling said he was sitting in his office at Woodbury and the administrator came in
and you sure have made a ripple effect. He said the Washington County HRA is wanting the
administrator to sign on the HRA there. Vierling said as he suggested to the Council, the
only resolution that will come to the county is they will try to get legislation passed
regarding this, and we will have to watch it.

Moegerle made a motion to adjourn at 9:45 PM. DeRoche seconded. Voss what is the
next step in this process, he thought we would discuss this while everything was fresh in our
minds. Moegerle withdrew the motion.

Voss said he doesn’t think we have to have the same attorney for prosecution and civil. He
said he wasn’t impressed with the prosecution side of Knaak and he wasn’t very impressed
with Glaser. Voss said he likes the idea of Clelland being right there. He said the
prosecution side of Eckberg Lammers seems kind of hard-handed. Voss said for the civil
said eh has a toss up, he thinks Vierling does a good job but he is inquisitive why he is
proposing a flat fee and yet has such a high rate. He said he doesn’t understand the math
there, it seems odd.

Lawrence said when he reviewed these he thinks Clelland put on a good display for
prosecution, the method of analogy was good. He said Vierling was strong which is good,
the value of having it all in one group so you don’t have a possible mismatch is good.
Lawrence said with that in thought, he finds he has two front runners of the group.

Voss said Knaak and Glaser weren’t set on having both prosecution and civil. He said he
doesn’t know that we have had issues with having this separate. VVoss said he likes the fact
that with the clean up they have had a long history, Clelland has, and Eckberg would have to
learn this.

Moegerle said Eckberg and Lammers is not afraid to try things, she likes that. She said she
also likes their reputation, that impresses her. Moegerle said they are all nice people and all
qualified. DeRoche asked are we trying to turn this into a police state. Moegerle said take
the domestics for an example, do we want to be strong on domestics. She said we have to
give them direction on prosecution style. DeRoche said they have to act under Council
direction. Moegerle said we have a problem with the contractors, and if we have attorneys
that are known to back down, then it might be different. \VVoss said but isn’t that civil.
Voss said in terms of the criminal side, all he heard from Eckberg was never part of
resolution. He said he brought that up intentionally with Clelland was that council liked
finding resolution. Davis said whatever we do; we need to make sure the attorney knows
our community standards.

DeRoche asked Davis’s opinion. Davis said Eckberg’s service has been very good,
whenever we ask a question they are right on it. He said he has been very good to work



May 12, 2011

East Bethel City Council Work Meeting Page 14 of 15
with on the civil side. Davis said and for the prosecution side, Eckberg and Clelland were
both strong. He said he felt Knaak was weak. Davis said Glaser was intriguing at first, but
then he lost him. He said staff doesn’t deal with prosecution as much. Davis said but for
civil he would definitely recommend Eckberg, we have gotten very good advice from him.

Voss said he has been impressed with Vierling and given the things that the City is going to
go through over the next few years and the importance of the economic development, it is
going to be more costly. He said as far as Knaak he was impressed, but he remembers when
he was a politician. Voss said we have made a lot of progress on blight in the City with
Clelland and he doesn’t see a reason to change. Voss said his firm does a lot of this stuff,
anything environmental but it doesn’t mean we do it all.

Moegerle said she looks at the RFP submittals and to her they represent the quality of work
they do. She said Eckberg is definitely a cut above the rest. Moegerle said Stokes came up
and said we have a problem with our nuisance ordinance she likes that. \Voss said it comes
down to personality, in terms of how they deal with people. Moegerle said three years ago
Clelland said we had a problem with our housing maintenance laws and he said the same
things three years later, to her that is a person that hasn’t show initiative. She said she wants
someone that will stay ahead of the ball and show initiative. Moegerle said it is very
disappointing to her that he said this three years ago and it still isn’t fixed. Lawrence said if
you want good prosecution, you need good direction from the City. Voss said we dropped
Randall from prosecution because nothing was getting done.

Moegerle made a motion to hire Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff & Vierling, PLLP
for both civil and prosecution. DeRoche said he would like to process this. Moegerle said
she would like to do this also, but it seemed that someone wanted a decision made. Motion
dies for lack of a second. Voss asked do we need more information before they next
meeting. Lawrence asked if we went with Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff & Vierling
only, for both, what would be the problem with that. Voss said he doesn’t see that we need
to change the prosecution. Moegerle said the city attorney works with our people on the
new ordinances that are going to be used for prosecution. She said you are not going to get
the effectiveness in two separate offices, they will understand each other better if in the same
offices.

Council asked Davis for the budget amount for civil services and what has been spent so far.
Davis said $140,000 and so far $45,000 has been spent, but there might be some bills out
there that might not be included here.

Moegerle made a motion to hire Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff & Vierling, PLLP
at a flat fee of $3,200 for civil attorney services. Voss seconded; all in favor, motion
carries.

Voss made a motion to retain Carson, Clelland and Schreder for prosecution services
and he would like to negotiate a flat fee with them. DeRoche said he only sees an hourly
rate on this one. Voss said the average monthly charge was slightly higher than what
Eckberg was proposing for a flat fee, $500 higher. Lawrence asked why would we go with
someone that is so much higher. Voss said you go with what you know. He said this is an
attorney we have a track record with, we haven’t had any issues, staff hasn’t had any issues,
and we have increased revenue and they are local. Lawrence said Stokes is in Anoka right
now. Voss said this is someone that is there everyday of the week, it is different than
someone that isn’t. Moegerle said you get synergy with them working together. Voss said
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S0 you are saying that Vierling won’t work with them. He said nothing gets changed unless
it gets changed at this table. Moegerle said Vierling will work with him, and share
information, she just thinks it is better to have this in one office. She said if Clelland only
does prosecution they are isolated in their own little area. VVoss asked what would not work
with this. Moegerle said she is not saying that, she is saying it would work better for them to
work together. Motion fails for a lack of second.

Adjourn Lawrence made a motion to adjourn at 10:09 PM. DeRoche seconded; all in favor,
motion carries.

Attest:

Wendy Warren

Deputy City Clerk



EAST BETHEL CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETING
May 17, 2011

The East Bethel City Council met on May 17, 2011 at 6:30 PM for a work meeting at City Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bob DeRoche Richard Lawrence  Heidi Moegerle
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Bill Boyer Steve Voss
ALSO PRESENT: Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator

Call to Order

Adopt Agenda

Review Land
Use and
Transportation
Issues

Stephanie Hanson, City Planner

The May 17, 2011 City Council work meeting was called to order by Mayor Lawrence at
6:30 PM.

Moegerle made a motion to adopt the May 17, 2011 Work Meeting Agenda. DeRoche
seconded; all in favor, motion carries.

Hanson said according to the 2030 East Bethel Comprehensive Plan, it will be reviewed on
an annual basis to insure the plan remains as an effective development guide for East Bethel.
To date, there has not been a review of the plan.

The existing land use map has been attached for your review as attachment #1. The map
depicts how the lands in the City are to be used now and in the future. The process was
accomplished by first forecasting population growth, household number, and employment.
Once those figures were established for the regions and the City by the Metropolitan
Council, then City Council and staff identified where growth would take place and how the
lands would be used.

In the Phase 1 project area, there is approximately 417 acres of buildable area designated for
residential land use. Of this designation, 297 acres are designated for low/medium residential
(single family ant 3 units per acre), 40 acres for medium residential (single family and
townhome at 4 units per acre) and 80 acres of mixed use residential (5 units per acre).

There is approximately 278 acres of buildable area designated for business land use. Of this
designation, 122 acres are designated for commercial and 156 acres designated for mixed
use commercial. All this information is available for your review as attachment #3.

Hanson said she wants to go back to attachment #1, because along Viking Blvd. specifically
to the east there are numerous legal non-conforming land uses. Some commercial properties
that are non-conforming and there are also some residential developments along Viking
Blvd. that have the Rural Residential (RR) zone on them and these lots are very small, and
we see conflicts with these small lots with the RR classification on them. Hanson said so that
is something staff wanted to talk about.

Lawrence asked when you say conflict, what do you mean. Hanson said for instance a
couple developments along Viking Blvd, residential developments are less than one acre and
the way the zoning code reads if you property is RR you have to you have to have 25 foot
setback for all structures on your property. She said she knows that was done with the
thought that all lots were larger. Hanson said so they can’t do any additions to their houses
or garages because when these houses were built, they were built at a 10 foot setback.
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DeRoche asked when this was changed. Hanson said in 2007. DeRoche said and they
weren’t grandfathered in. Moegerle said and they are on this map. Hanson said she tried to
highlight them on there. She said there are a couple properties where people wanted to stay
in their house, and they were having issues with space and they couldn’t stay because
couldn’t meet the 25 foot setback and make the addition. Hanson said so we wanted to talk
about this, do we make a provision, or do we change the zoning code and say lots under this
size meet this setback.

Moegerle asked what is Coon Lake Beach. Hanson said R1. Moegerle said it is 10 feet
there, would that be a solution. Hanson said it could be either that or making a special
provision in the RR if you didn’t want to change the land use classification. Moegerle asked
if we change it what is the effect as far as housing density and we talked about making this
area commercial district to. Hanson said we call this spot zoning, it is not uncommon for
cities to go through when you have an existing use to put the land use zoning there. She said
we have existing properties that were zoned commercial when built, but it has been changed
to RR. Hanson said if those business owners want to do any kind of expansion to their
businesses they can’t because it is a legal non-conforming use and you can’t expand a legal
non-conforming use. Moegerle said that is horrible. Hanson said there is another problem
that comes up with a legal non-conforming use, state statute reads once it has not been used
for one year it goes back to what the zoning is. So technically after one year of non-use it
needs to be torn down and go back to RR. Moegerle said so technically for doing this we
should shot ourselves in the head because we are really being bad stewards; we are not doing
what we should be doing to make this grow.

Moegerle said it is a difficult thing in her mind do we change this whole section to R1 or
commercial, or what do you suggest. Hanson said she would suggest a mix. She said the
farther you go down toward Linwood you have residential and that is going to remain there
so why not zone for it. Hanson said and closer to 65 you have commercial and the larger lots
that someday would suit commercial property, or could be split for commercial property, so
would work to do both. She said if you look at proposed zoning map, she particularly picked
out areas East Bethel Blvd and 22, City property and then east of it commercial properties
next to it are zoned RR. Lawrence said he thinks we have to have a real common sense
approach to this, if it is a business we need to allow them to grow, if they are getting to big
then we can tell them they need to get a larger lot.

DeRoche asked who changed that zoning to RR or has it always been that way. Hanson said
it has always been that but the setback was changed to 25 feet. DeRoche asked did the state
do that or the Citify. Hanson said the City did this. Moegerle asked what was the rational of
doing that. Hanson said because on the larger lots some of the Council Members thought it
was unfair that some people were building accessory buildings 10 feet off the property line,
so for a buffer. Moegerle asked so are you just thinking we will just change the smaller lots
and leave the larger lots, just spot zone. Hanson said there are two things you can do, you
can change the land use to have it be a more medium residential such as a R1 or you can put
a provision in the zoning code that these lots less than one acre in size that were established
prior to the code can meet the 10 foot setback. DeRoche said the variance law has changed.
Hanson said yes, it is better to do this than granting variances because there are rules to meet
to grant variances. Lawrence said so what you are saying is not the road setback, but
property line to property line would go from 25 feet to 10 feet. Hanson said yes.

Moegerle asked is this best practice to spot zone or change zoning ordinance. Hanson said
cities do it both ways; it is what City Council is comfortable with. Moegerle asked on small
lots, is RR zoning the highest and best use for this, is it reasonable to rezone in 20 years
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when Co. Road 22 gets bigger. She said or the next comp plan update. Hanson said we
don’t know, we know we don’t do our next comp plan update until 2018. She said her
biggest concern is updating these properties in the City that can’t do anything and by law
can’t be put to use if they sit empty much longer. Moegerle asked would it be feasible to
state we are going to make you R1 until you sell, and then it will be commercial or
something like that. She said so long as we are internally consistent throughout the City, she
is flexible with doing it either way.

Hanson said if we didn’t want to go through the Met Council because all land use changes
have to go through the Met Council we could at least address the residential smaller lots
which would just be adding an exception to our ordinance. DeRoche asked how is it the Met
Council, they are not a government agency, how is it that they are delegating what we can do
with our properties. Hanson said they govern the metropolitan area by statute. DeRoche said
they can doctor their figures to do anything they want which is what happened with our
project with sewer and water. He said their numbers and projections were really high.
DeRoche said if someone has a business we have to do what we can do to keep them here.
He said someone is going to talk and say they can do this and someone else is going to say
why they can’t do the same. Davis said he thinks we have to be internally consistent with
how we apply this; he thinks there are issues along Co. Road 22 that we have to deal with.
He said Mac’s is a good one, we are probably coming up on a year here that it has been
empty and by statute it will not be allowed to be used after being empty for a year.

Lawrence said on something like that we need to get it zoned back where it belongs. Hanson
we get calls on that from realtors on whether they can split it up and do a pizza shop and
right now they can’t because of the legal non-conforming use. Lawrence said so we need to
get them zoned commercial so they can be used.

Lawrence said he likes your plan on the small lots, if they were built before 2007 they
should be grandfathered in and allowed to have a 10 foot setback. He said the only problem
he sees if we have someone that has a 2 acre lot and 1 acre is under water, they are going to
want to fall under this. Lawrence said maybe we should say 1 acre buildable. He said his lot
is six acres but only 1 acre is buildable. Moegerle said this is high priority especially since it
is in the sewer and water district.

Moegerle said one of the things about this area is the residential growth area is boot shaped,
should that be changed. She said it is not shown on the map, but shouldn’t that be expanded
to show Co. Road 22 or reshaped. Hanson said when you think of the natural line of
municipal services and it would seem that Co. Road 22 would be included. Moegerle said
that dovetails for a sewer district. She said then do we change the RR District, do we make
that contiguous with a sewer and water district. Hanson said that is typically what happens.
Moegerle asked so if we spot zone there it will interrupt municipal services. Hanson said if
it is proposed to go down Co. Road 22, the land uses will have to be redone. Moegerle said
so it is a short term fix. Hanson said unless Council decided to just go ahead and do all of
Co. Road 22, to change it for future municipal services. DeRoche said that is somewhere
20-30 years down the road. He said we need to try to get the area on 65 and 22 developed
first, get that done first. DeRoche said he saw plans for a big trucking business on this
corner, how many connections we will get from that. He said we have to be selective on
what we are putting there; we have to focus on generating income there.

DeRoche said for now the spot zoning make sense, and then as they come we can go back
and redo this, change it down the road and try to keep some of these small businesses, we
have a reputation of losing a lot. Moegerle said the spot rezoning means we have to go to
Met Council. She asked do they expedite spot re-zoning. Hanson said yes. She said if you



May 17, 2011

East Bethel City Council Work Meeting Page 4 of 8
are doing a huge comprehensive plan amendment, changing ERUs, that is when it becomes a
bigger project. Hanson said but when you are doing a minimal change like this it is easier.
Moegerle said part of her says let’s do the rezoning and establish that we are reasonable
people to deal with. Hanson said anytime you go through a land use change it requires a
4/5s vote, especially when it is a residential use to a commercial use change. Moegerle said
for a variance we only need a 3 vote. Lawrence said he thinks for the residents going to
have to go with a new ordinance. He said we have to do a zoning change so we can
encompass businesses like Mac’s so they can be used. Moegerle said rezoning makes more
sense, do it for one, and do it for all. Davis said and if you are going to address the issue,
tackle it all.

Lawrence said we have a list of businesses and zoning, does this raise their taxes. Moegerle
said yes, their taxes would go up. DeRoche asked what if they want to sell it. Hanson said
right now the business has to be the same or similar. DeRoche said we need to
accommodate the businesses and people there. Hanson said the setbacks from road haven’t
changed for many years. She said the land use and zoning would stay the same in RR,
however the ordinance would change. Moegerle said we are just talking about that limited
group, not changing the zoning to R1 for them. Lawrence said no, it could encompass
different types of dwellings on different size lots because of buildable land. He said and
then change existing non-conforming lots back to commercial.

DeRoche asked if staff would be notifying the businesses. Hanson said yes, they would
have to be notified. Lawrence asked how long would this take. Hanson said about 6
months; we have to go through City Council and Met Council. Hanson said this would be a
zoning text amendment for the residential lot and for the commercial lots a land use
amendment and a zoning change, we would be changing the zoning on the land use map.
Lawrence asked do we want to put a time and date on the residential to be grandfathered in.
Hanson said that is what she is thinking. Moegerle said there is currently a 2 acre minimum
on current development. Hanson said her recommendation would be to send a letter to the
properties that we are thinking about changing from residential to commercial. Moegerle
said and change the rural growth center, would you be adding more area. Hanson said at this
point we are not going to change any of that land except the business properties. She asked
what do you want that land to be changed to, we have neighborhood commercial, it wouldn’t
fit this, we have highway business and central business.

Moegerle asked Hanson to explain highway and central business. Hanson said highway
business is what is there now, and central business is retail without exterior storage. She
said all these businesses right now have exterior storage. Hanson said you have to think in
the future to, what is your vision of Co. Road 22, would it be more of central business or
more of high intense land use. DeRoche said depends on how the land comes in tested, that
land is pretty wet. Hanson said but would a strip mall, think of the road it is on, and if you
are going to have strip malls on 65 and 22, on a highway, would it be better to have a higher
type of land use. Moegerle said if the golf course gets developed into residential, then she
sees having a place right next to it to get your hair done. Davis said if people want these
services he thinks they are going to go north and south. He said and if the golf course
develops it will probably be a small development right there.

Moegerle asked can we work on that area as a mixed use of residential, then small retail,
then larger commercial. Davis said you can incorporate in your PUD standards. He said the
PUD gets us out 3/4s of a mile, then residential then highway business. Davis said this will
conform to some of the existing businesses that are operating there now. Moegerle read the
uses for Highway commercial and Central services. She said these are essentially the same,
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but central services has a shorter list. Hanson said but in the central services you cannot
have exterior storage and in highway commercial you can but with a CUP. She said that
would be her recommendation for those specific lots. Hanson said she would recommend
only spot zoning, because if we start to expand the zoning down 22 then we start to expand
the zoning issue. Lawrence said and that is what we want to do, the spot zoning. Moegerle
do we have other places where we have lots that are legal non-conforming. Hanson said we
have some lots here and there, but really not much. Moegerle asked does it make sense to do
spot zoning for those or not. Hanson said they can continue their use right now, and can sell
it, they just can’t intensify it. She said any business that wants to come in and propose a land
use change has to go through Met Council, so it gets expensive.

Hanson explained that attachment #2 shows the existing and proposed streets and
overpass/interchange projects as approved in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. The plan
proposes a frontage road system along Highway 65, however, not along Viking Blvd. Once
MnDOT takes ownership of Viking Blvd., their intention at some point is to turn Viking
Blvd. into a four-lane road. With this in mine, City Council may want to consider expanding
a frontage road system along Viking Blvd. to accommodate future expansion and growth
along this corridor.

Moegerle said is there where we draw lines on the map. She asked in general how far are
frontage roads from main highway. Davis said they can be anywhere from abutting the right
of way, to a very far setback. Moegerle asked the scale of the map. Davis said about a %
mile. DeRoche said there is so much water on Co. Road 22 we have to be careful about not
allowing this to fill in the creeks. Davis said we are looking at this on Co. Road 22 from 65
going east to East Bethel Blvd., he doesn’t think we have much commercial development
going west. DeRoche said this will put some of this right in people’s living rooms. Moegerle
said it will be easier on the south side then the north side. Davis said the north side is wet.
He said regardless there will have to be some right of way acquisition that will involve some
structures. Davis said you can look at putting a frontage road in at the City Center for %
mile. DeRoche said at the sod farm you would have to put in the frontage road and that is
all you would see.

Moegerle asked what is the likelihood they would divert Co. Road 22 because of Coon Lake
Beach by County Road 74. Davis said he has no idea of what they are thinking, but he does
know that if they convert to four lane there will have to be additional right of way purchased
and it will be a very expensive road to build. He said the traffic count will increase, but a
four-lane is going to be way out in the future. Lawrence said at the meeting we had with
MnDOT they said it will probably happen in 2050. Moegerle said she thinks we should
draw those lines as far as East Bethel Blvd. Council worked on the map. Moegerle asked
does Oak Grove have plans for frontage roads as you go west. Lawrence said not that he
knows of.

Lawrence asked are we going with the thought that Sims Road will always have a traffic
light. Davis said he thinks there are plans that there will be an overpass at 209™ and Sims
will be closed off. Moegerle said people’s tendency is if they got stopped at Sims and then
could see the light at 221%, they would go like a bat to get through the light. Davis said we
need to change the location of the overpass. DeRoche said would make more sense at Sims
than at 209™. Lawrence said maybe we need a roundabout. Moegerle said so far the
projections she has seen have not come close so she doesn't have any faith in projections.
DeRoche said he also doesn’t have faith in them. Davis said projections are just a snapshot,
and anything can cause them to not be accurate on the low side and high side. Lawrence
said we will have a lot to do in the next couple years when we see some business growth to
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see what happens with our residential growth. DeRoche said the analysts are saying we
were wrong it will be 10 years before we see growth. He said 80% of students are coming
out of work and going and living with their parents.

Moegerle asked when we change our zoning ordinance it doesn’t affect the Met Council.
Hanson said not when doing a text amendment. Moegerle said she had grave concerns about
the IUP at 1507 205™; we have automotive repair business here that isn’t paying commercial
taxes for this type of business and isn’t commercially zoned. DeRoche said they are doing
commercial repair and sales. Moegerle said if we are going to spot rezone, we need to talk
about spot rezoning that one. She said she compares this to Crash Toys, theoretically they
are going to advertise these vehicles on the internet and then they are going to call and come
out and look at them. DeRoche said and according to the IUP they are not supposed to have
any outdoor storage.

Lawrence said you can’t compare this to Crash Toys; they are going to sell 20-30 cars a
week. He said this gentleman is going to be repairing cars, if he starts doing more business
and hires more help, and then he has to move to a commercial lot. Moegerle said so you
compare this as how many employees you have. She said she understands why Cedar
Creek Automotive was upset that they are paying commercial taxes and they aren’t.
Moegerle said this is something to kick around. Hanson said even if you were to zone it B-2
that doesn’t allow for automotive repair. Lawrence said and it doesn’t allow for outdoor
storage. DeRoche said and again, the IUP doesn’t allow for outdoor storage. He asked is
Crash Toys going to be monitored for gas/oil leakage, is the MPCA monitoring this. Hanson
said her understanding with Crash Toys is the stuff that comes on their site, all liquids is
taken out of it. Lawrence said he thinks you can leave the grease in, but not oil and gas. He
said he did a check on them because he had concerns about leakage of fluids in the ground
so he called the state and they said it wasn’t a big deal. Moegerle said the only place she is
seeing where motor vehicle repair is allowed is light industrial. She asked is Cedar creek
Automotive in light industrial. Hanson said no.

Lawrence said why we allow 1UPs is people move here just to do this, to have a small hobby
or small business out of their homes. Davis said a lot of businesses start out of their homes
until they can afford to go out and do their thing. He said he understands what you are
saying, unfair competition, but he wonders how many businesses started this way. Lawrence
said it appears to be an unfair competition, but they only have just a small sign up, and
generate such a small amount of money. Moegerle said our zoning ordinance doesn’t have a
place for motor vehicle repair. Davis said the area in Phase 1 of the sewer district, are you
comfortable with this zoning. DeRoche said he would hate to see someone to come in and
take two of the big parcels and put in something that doesn’t use a lot of water, etc., not the
right use for the water and sewer. Davis said we have had those discussions and we have to
have high ERUs in those areas. Hanson said they wouldn’t be allowed in this area.

Moegerle said part of this depends on how we are going to define the sewer and water
district. Hanson said it would be an overlay district. Moegerle said it seems the other
existing businesses on the west side, One Man’s Treasure, Route 65, etc., we should be
encouraging redevelopment there, such as strip mall district. She said we should look at our
zoning, it has what is required if sewer and water is available, and if it was available that
would be some prime property. Moegerle asked do we need to create incentive through our
zoning. Davis asked do we need to make it attractive to high users of land. Moegerle asked
is that currently listed as redevelopment district. Hanson said we don’t have any
redevelopment districts.
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DeRoche asked what is on the other corner. Hanson said mixed used development, City
Center development, and the city code is specific on what is allowed there and it would have
to come in as a Planned Use Development (PUD). She said all the higher density
developments are PUDs. Davis said the only other question is City Center district going
west on co. Road 22, next ¥ mile going towards Jackson, shows as residential should we
change to commercial. Moegerle asked why not rezone the area south of the City Center to
medium density. Hanson said that is Council’s vision. DeRoche said he would like to see
Council’s focus on high density staying on 65 and Co. Road 22 and keep the rural, rural.

He said keep the main business on 65, there are a lot of empty businesses up 65, and if we
were going to put in sewer and water we should have thought about putting it in there where
the empty businesses were. Davis said those type of businesses don’t have an immediate
need for city sewer and water and they can go anywhere. He said but say a grocery store is
going to have to have city sewer and water. DeRoche said he understands that. He said but
Co. Road 22 and 65 is like coming in to Stillwater, and going up 65 you start running out of
land there is so much wetland, we need to make use of land we got.

Moegerle said we need to get away from the phasing on the sewer and water. She asked is
that a Met Council thing or do we just stop using that terminology. Hanson said she would
like to consult with the Met Council on that. She said she thinks we could do that, especially
Phase 1A. Hanson said staff would suggest to require PUDs in all districts. She said that way
everything that comes in is a special consideration. Hanson said East Bethel is wet, has
some special considerations, why not do this. Moegerle asked do we have a PUD process
and how that gets through. Hanson said yes, and it is in the city code. DeRoche said most
developers just want to level it and develop it. Hanson said with PUDs City Council would
have the say. She said Forest Lake has PUDs throughout; this is so you can preserve
wetlands and green space, with less roads. DeRoche said he thinks this is a good path to go
down. Hanson said what happens with traditional subdivisions now is they go through the
Planning Commission, then City Council and then back to City Council. Hanson said with
PUDs they work with Council from day one.

Moegerle said she has a question about community identity, between chapter 8 & 9, it is
very generic. She said this is something the EDA needs to look at. Hanson said yes, it needs
to be expanded. Moegerle said it needs to be created. Moegerle asked would this need to be
approved by Met Council. Hanson said this is something they call housework. Moegerle
asked what is Met Council concerned about. Hanson said things that deal with system
statements. She said housecleaning items, adding information, not affecting system
statements, it is a quick process. Moegerle asked could this be done through the EDA and
comp plan. Hanson said she thinks this could just be done through the EDA to put in the
comp plan. Moegerle said she doesn’t want to be stickler, but we don’t have a community
identity. Hanson said this is going to be part of branding and marketing. Moegerle asked
what is the next step from here. Hanson said Council could give staff direction to move
forward with changes and then we could have another work session, then a public hearing
and then it would have to go to a Council meeting. Lawrence asked would you be working
with Met Council. Hanson said yes, we would be working side by side. Hanson said staff
will probably have this done in July.

DeRoche made a motion to adjourn at 8:37 PM. Moegerle seconded; all in favor,
motion carries.
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Letter of Engagement for Defeasance Analysis

February 10, 2011

Ehlers (“Ehlers”) and Landform (“Client”) do hereby mutually agree to the following with regard to the
provision of financial analysis. Landform is working with the City of East Bethel (“City™) to provide
third party review of previously issued bonds. The City has authorized Ehlers to proceed with this
analysis. In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and for other good and
valuable consideration, it is agreed by and between Ehlers and Client as follows:

Ehlers will provide financial analysis as outlined in the below scope of services. In arriving at
assumptions, Ehlers will rely on information and legal interpretation from legal counsel (Bond Counsel),
which will be required for an accurate analysis.

EHLERS RESPONSIBILITIES - SCOPE OF SERVICES
Ehlers agrees to provide the following services to Client:

1. Provide financial analysis to estimate the financial cost fo City of defeasing the entire Series 2010A
and Series 2010B bonds.

2. Provide financial analysis to estimate the financial cost to City of defeasing only the Series 2010B
bonds.

3. Identify possible alternate solutions for the City to consider,

4. The scope of services does not include any City Staff or City Council presentations or meetings, other
than what is necessary to collect information to achieve the above defined scope of services.

Ehlers must rely on information from Bond Counsel regarding legal issues, and is not responsible for the
accuracy of those legal interpretations.

FEE ARRANGEMENT

Ehlers will complete the scope of services up to $1,800.
Ehiers will invoice Client for the amount due.

VWLERIErs-ing.oom

EH LERS Mirnesota phone  851-807-8500 3060 Centre Fointe Diive

CEADERS N PUBLIC FINANCE Offioes alss i Wisctnsin and irois tax  B51:607-8585 Foseville; MN 551131122

toli free ROO-852.9174
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LG240B Application to Conduct Exciuded Bingo No fee
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION - .

Organization name Fravicus gambling permi number
East Bethel Seniors, Inc. XB-06892-09-001
Minnasota tax ID number, if any Federal emplover 1D number, if any

_ i Fraternal | Religious __ Veterans __.i Other nonprofit organization
Mailing address - Gity - State Zip Code County
2241 221st Avenue NE ‘East Bethel IMN 55011 i Anoka

ATTACH A COPY OF ONE OF THE FOLLOWING FOR PROOF OF NONPROFIT STATUS

* Do not aftach a sales tax exempt status or fedsral 1D emplover number as they are not proof of nonprofit status,

Nonprofit Articles of Incorporation OR a current Certificate of Good Standing.
Don't have a copy? This certificate must be obtained each year from:
Secretary of State, Business Services Div., 180 State Office Building, St Paul, MN 35185 Phone: 851.286.2803

o, Internal Revenue Service - IRS income tax exemption 1501 cy] letter in your organization’s name.
Don't have 2 copy? Te obtain & copy of your federal income tax exempt letter, have an organization officer
contact the IRS at §77-828-5500,

If your organization falls under a parent organization, attach copies of both of the following:
a. IRS letier showing vour parent organization is a nonprofit 501{c) organization with a group ruling, and
b. the charter or letter from vour parent organization recognizing your organization as a subordinate,

EXCLUDED BINGO ACTIVITY

ﬂ\/E\En L. Yes Has vour organization held a hingo event in the current calendar year?
if ves, list the dates when bingo was conducted

‘/m_ ona of four or fewer bingo events held this year. Dates July 16

OR

: conducted up io 12 consecutive days in connection with a:

__county fair, Dates

civic celebration. Dates

Minnesotz state fair. Dates
4. Person in charge of bingo event _Barbara Kunshier Draytime phone 763-434-6179

4. Name of premises where binge will be conducted East Bethel Community/Senior Center

5. Premises strest address 2241 221st Avenue NE

6. City East Bethel - If township, name of township County Ancka

Bingo hard cards and bingo number selection devices may be borrowsd from another organization ‘
authorized to conduct bingo, Otherwise, bingo hard cards, bingo p aper, and bingo number selection i
devices must be purchased from a distributor licensed by the Gambling Control Board,  To find a licensed !

J

!
i
£
| distributor, go to www . gcb.state.mnus and click on List of Licensed Distributors. Or call B51-838-4000

Ea sure to complets page 2



LG2408 Application to Conduct Excluded Bingo

Chief Executive Officer's Signature

Page Zof 2
3

Print form and have CEO sign

Chief executive officer's signature_%

The information provided in this application is complete and accurate ta the besi of my knowledge.

N L W

763-434-6179

Phone number

Name (nlease print}

a Barbara Kunshier

?@_J;?‘C‘ﬁféw

Date

Local Unit of Government Acknowledgment and Approval

if the gambling premises is within city limits, the city must sign this application,

the cify's jurisdiction.

On bahalf of the city, | approve this application for
excluded bingo activity at the premises located within

Print city name

Signature of city personnel receiving application

Title

Date

i the gambling premises is located in a township, only the county is required to sign this application.

For the county: On behalf of the county, | approve
this application for excluded bingo activily &t the
premises localted within the county’s jurisdiciion.

Print county name

Signature of county personnel receiving appiication

Title

Date

For the township: On behalf of the fownship,
{ acknowledge that the organization fs applying for
exciuded bingo activity within the fownship limits.

A township has no statulory authority to approve or
deny an application (Minn. Stat. 345.166, Subd. 2).

(Township signature is not recuired)

Print township name

Title

Sigryature of township official acknowledging application

Drte

Mail. Application and Attachment(s)

Send the application and proof of nonprofit
status to:

Gambiling Control Board

Suite 300 South

171 W County RA. R

Roseville, MK 55113

Or, vou may Tax i {o 851-638-4032.

Brailie) upon request,

You will receive a dooument from the Gambiing Control Board with
your exciuded permit number for the gambling activity. Your
organization must keep its bingo records for 3-1/7 vears.
Guestions? Contact the Gambling Control Board at 851.638-4000.

This form will be made available in alternative format (e, larges print,

Reset Fdrm

Data privacy notice;
reguested on  this
attachments) will

Gambling Controt Board {Beoard) to
determine your organization’s
qualifications to be invelved in lawful
gambling activities in Minnesota. Your
organization has the right to refuse to
supply the information; however, if your
arganization refuses to supply this
Information, the Board may not be able
to determine  your organization's
guailfications and, as & Conseguence,
may refuse to issue & permit. If your
organization supplies the information
reguested, the Board will be able to
process yvour organization’s application.

The information
form  {and any
be used by the

Your organization’s name and
address wiill be public
information whean received by
the Board. All cther information
provided will be private data
about your organization until
the Board issues the permit,
When the Board issues the
permit, all information provided
will become publie,  If the Board
doees not issue a permit, all
information provided remains
orivate, with the exception of
vour organization’s name and
address which will remain public.

Private data about your srganization are
available to: Board members, Board staff
whose work reguires access to the
information; Minnesota’s Department of
Pubiic Safaty; Attorney General;
Commissinners of Administration,
Minnesota Mansgement & Budgeb, and
Revenue,; Legislative Auditor, national and
international gamiiing regulatory agencies;
aryone pursusnt to court order; other
individuals  and agencies specifically
authorized by state or federal law to have
access to the information; individuals and
agencies for which law or legal order
authorizes & new use or sharing of
information after this notice was given: ang
anyene with yaur written congent.
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Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 7.0 A.1
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Agenda Item:

Interim Use Permit (IUP) Request for a Home Occupation by Michelle Hess

EE i i S i S S S i i S S
Requested Action:

Consider an IUP for a Hair Salon in the RR — Rural Residential District

EOE S b S I i i b i S I i b i I i I i I S S I i i I I I i S I I i i i i i I S i i
Background Information:

Property Owner/Applicant

Michelle Hess

2740 Viking Blvd. NE

East Bethel, MN 55092

PIN 27-33-23-32-0002

The property owner/applicant is requesting an IUP for a hair salon business for the parcel located
at 2740 Viking Blvd. NE. Ms. Hess currently has a salon in Ham Lake but would like to move
the business to her home.

Ms. Hess plans to have the salon located in her home. Since she will be the only employee, she
plans to install one (1) wash sink station. Since the property is located in the shoreland district,
Ms. Hess is required to have a septic system compliance check. The system failed the
compliance check. As part of the renovation process, Ms. Hess will be required to update the
system prior to obtaining the required building permits needed to complete the renovation.

Mr. Sackey, Building Inspector, has suggested a filter system and a water usage meter be added
to the new septic system as part of the home occupation. As part of the new septic system, a
management plan of the system will be required to be submitted as part of the septic design
process. Ms. Hess and staff will continue to work together in the permitting process for the new
septic system and building permits required to complete the renovation.

Home occupations are a permitted use in the RR - Rural Residential District as long as the
applicant can meet the requirements of the City Code and complies with the conditions of the
IUP. The proposed home occupation will meet requirements of the ordinance so long as the IUP
conditions are met. In the event the conditions are not being met, the IUP would be revoked.

Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 24, 2011 at which time residents had the
opportunity to comment on the proposed IUP request. There were no comments from residents.



Attachments:

1.
2.
3.

Site Location
Application
East Bethel City Code Appendix A, Zoning, Section 10.18, Home Occupations
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Fiscal Impact:
Not Applicable

ECE I I i I S R i i i i i i S O S i i i i

Recommendation:

Planning Commission recommends approval to City Council of an IUP for a hair salon for the
property known as 2740 Viking Blvd. NE, East Bethel, PIN 27-33-23-32-0002 with the
following conditions:

1.

SARE

7.

Signage must comply with East Bethel City Code, Chapter 54, which states “for home
occupations, one identification sign is permitted, and the sign shall not exceed two square
feet.” Signs must be placed on the business property as directional signs are not allowed.
No more than three persons, at least one of whom shall reside within the principal
dwelling, shall be employed by the home occupation.

Structure must be inspected by the Fire Inspector on a yearly basis.

Business street parking shall be prohibited and business parking must be on the driveway.
State licensing requirements must be current and a copy provided to the city and prior to
opening.

The Interim Use Permit shall expire at the time the property changes hands and/or any of
the prescribed stipulations have been violated.

Conditions must be met and an IUP Agreement executed no later than June 30, 2011.
Failure to comply will result in the null and void of the IUP.

ECE I I i S I e i i S i i i i I I I I i

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:
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Application shall include the following items and be submitted thirty (30) days prior to scheduled meeting date.

Application is hereby made for |A Nheme foedudt S ho 2 (provide narrative below describing proposed use).
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I fully understand that I must meet with City Staff to review all submission requirements and conditions prior to official submission, and
that all of the required information must be submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to the Planning/Zoning Commission and City Council :D
scheduled m: eting dates to ensure review by City Staff.
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19. - Home occupations.
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No more than three persons, at least one of whom shall reside within the principal dwelling, shall be employed
by the home occupation.

No traffic shall be generated by any home occupation in a significantly greater volume than would normally be
expected from a single-family residence.

Any sign associated with the home occupation shall be in compliance with the East Bethel Sign Ordinance.

The home occupation shall not generate hazardous waste unless a plan for off-site disposal of the waste is
approved.

A home occupation at a dwelling with an on-site sewage treatment system shall only generate normal
domestic household waste unless a plan for off-site disposal of the waste is approved.

The home occupation shall not constitute, create, or increase a nuisance to the criteria and standards
established in this ordinance.

There shall be no outdoor display or storage of goods, equipment, or materials for the home occupation.
Parking needs generated by the home occupation shall be provided on-site.

The area set aside for the home occupation in the principal structure shall not exceed 50 percent of the gross
living area of the principal structure.

No structural alterations or enlargements shall be made for the sole purpose of conducting the home
occupation.

There shall be no detriments to the residential character of the neighborhood due to the emission of noise,
odor, smoke, dust, gas, heat, glare, vibration, electrical interference, traffic congestion, or any other nuisance
resulting from the home occupation.

The area set aside for the home occupation in the attached or detached accessory structures or garages shall
not exceed total accessory structure space.

C# JUSWYOBNY

http://library.municode.com/print.aspx?clientiD=14116&HTMRequest=http%3a%2{%2flib... 5/9/2011
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Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 A.1

EOE S i S I i i b i I I S I I S i S
Agenda Item:

Pay Estimate #1 for the Phase 1, Project 1 Utility Improvements

EOE S b S I i i b i I S i b i I I I I I I S i i I I I I I i i i i I I S i S
Requested Action:

Consider approval of Pay Estimate #1

EE I S S i i S i
Background Information:

Attached is a copy of Pay Estimate # 1 to S.R. Weidema for the construction of the Phase 1,
Project 1 Utility Improvements. The major pay items for this pay request includes mobilization,
erosion control, traffic control, bituminous removal, delivery of piling pipe and payment for pipe
materials on hand and stored. The Pay Estimate includes payment for work completed to date
minus a five percent retainage. We recommend partial payment of $673,335.44. A summary of
the recommended payment breakdown is as follows:

MCES $552,866.91

City $120,468.53

Total Payment $673,335.44

Attachments:

1. Pay Estimate #1

2. Project Cost Estimate Breakdown

EE i S S i S S i S S S i S S S i S i S i i S
Fiscal Impact:

Staff is recommending payment of $673,335.44 at this time. Payment for this project will be

financed from the bond proceeds. Funds, as noted above, are available and appropriate for this
roject.

E*J**************************************************

Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends Council consider approval of Pay Estimate #1 in the amount of $673,335.44

for the Phase 1, Project 1 Utility Improvements.

R i e i i i i i e S S S i i i i i i e S S e i e i e i e i e i e i e i e I I SR e i e i e S e

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:




Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



CONTRACTOR'S PAY REQUEST

East Bethel Gravity Interceptor & Discharge & Utility Infrastructure Project
CITY OF EAST BETHEL, MN

PROJECT NO. C12.100028

Pay Estimate No. 1

DISTRIBUTION:

CONTRACTOR (1)

OWNER (1)

ENGINEER (1)

BONDING CO. (1)

TOTAL AMOUNT BID PLUS APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS

$11,686,468.20

TOTAL, COMPLETED WORK TO DATE $494,391.16
MCES STORED MATERIALS TO DATE $135,818.20
EAST BETHEL STORED MATERIALS TO DATE $78,564.78
TOTAL, STORED MATERIALS TO DATE $214,382.98
DEDUCTION FOR MCES STORED MATERIALS USED IN WORK COMPLETED $0.00
DEDUCTION FOR EAST BETHEL STORED MATERIALS USED IN WORK COMPLETED $0.00
TOTAL DEDUCTION FOR STORED MATERIALS USED IN WORK COMPLETED $0.00
TOTAL, COMPLETED MCES WORK & STORED MATERIALS $581,965.16
TOTAL, COMPLETED CITY WORK & STORED MATERIALS $126,808.98
TOTAL, COMPLETED WORK & STORED MATERIALS $708,774.14
MCES RETAINED PERCENTAGE ( 5%) $29,098.26
EAST BETHEL RETAINED PERCENTAGE (5%) $6,340.45
RETAINED PERCENTAGE ( 5% ) $35,438.71
TOTAL AMOUNT OF OTHER PAYMENTS OR (DEDUCTIONS) $0.00
NET AMOUNT DUE TO CONTRACTOR TO DATE $673,335.44
TOTAL AMOUNT PAID ON PREVIOUS ESTIMATES $0.00
PAY CONTRACTOR AS ESTIMATE NO. 1 $673,335.44

Certificate for Partial Payment

| hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all items quantities and prices
of work and material shown on this Estimate are correct and that all work has been
performed in full accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract for this project

between the Owner and the undersigned Contractor, and as amended by any

authorized changes, and that the foregoing is a true and correct statement of the

contract amount for the period covered by this Estimate.

Contractor: S.R. Weidema, Inc.
17600 113th Avenue North
Maple Grove, MN 55369
By
Name Title
Date

wh LANE SUHT iﬁ-‘: 200

ENGINEER:

BOLAN

FRlETS AN B
ANES I S B R A AN

By , PROJECT ENGINEER
Date $7/2 5”/ ¢
/
APPROVED FOR PAYMENT:
OWNER:
By
Name Title Date
And
Name Title Date

ATTACHMENT 1
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City of East Bethel
City Council
Agenda Information
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Date:

June 1, 2011

RO S b S I i i b i I S S i I S
Agenda Item Number:

Item8.0C. 1

EE i S S i S i S S i S S i S S S i i i i S i i
Agenda Item:

Resolution 2011-17 Accepting Annual Financial Statements and Auditor’s Annual Report

EOE S b S i i i b i I S i b i I I
Requested Action:

Consider adopting Resolution 2011-17 Accepting the 2010 Annual Financial Report and Annual
Auditor’s Report

EOE S b S i i i b i I I S i S i
Background Information:

The 2010 Annual Financial Report (AFR) has been prepared, audited and is presented for your
review and approval.

Resolution 2011-17 formally accepts and adopts the 2010 Annual Financial Report and directs
the submission of the Annual Financial Report to the State Auditor.

EE I S S i S S S S S i i i S S I S i S i i i i i i
Fiscal Impact:

None

EOE i b S I i b b i I S i i I S b i I I I i I I I I i i I I I I I I i i i i I I i i
Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2011-17 Accepting the 2010 Annual Financial Report
for operations and activities of the City of East Bethel for fiscal year 2010 and direction to
submit the report to the state Auditor.

R i e i i i i i e S O S i i i i i i i S i i i i i I S SR I e i e e e i e b e i e i i i e e i e S

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



CITY OF EAST BETHEL
EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-17

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE 2010 CITY OF EAST
BETHEL ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (AFR)

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared the 2010 Annual Financial Report of the
City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s auditing firm, HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., has completed
its review of the financial report; and

WHEREAS, the audit opinion finds that the financial report presents fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the City as of December 31, 2010.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA THAT: the City Council hereby accepts and adopts
the 2010 Annual Financial Report and directs its submission to the State Auditor.

Adopted this 1% day of June, 2011 by the City Council of the City of East Bethel.

CITY OF EAST BETHEL

Richard Lawrence, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator
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City Council
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Date:

June 1, 2011

RO S b S I i i b i I S S i I S
Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 D.1

EE i S S i S i i S S S i S
Agenda Item:

Class V Bid Award

EOE S b S I i b b i I I S S i i S i
Requested Action:

Consider awarding a contract for Class V and millings surfacing material.

EE I S S i S i S S i S i i S S S i S i i S S i S
Background Information:

At their March 8, 2011 meeting, the Roads Commission recommended approving Jewell, Kissel
and Edison Streets for Class V resurfacing projects, adding London Street as the next priority if
budget funds are available for Class V work and .repairing sections of Klondike Drive with
asphalt millings. These projects are consistent with the street maintenance plan for resurfacing
unpaved City streets.

Bids were solicited by advertising in the Anoka Union and the Upper Midwest Civil
Construction Bulletin. Bids were received and opened for this project on May 19, 2011. The
bids were based on an estimated application of up to 1,900 tons of Class V material for Jewell,
Kissel and Edison Streets and up to 600 tons of millings for Klondike Drive. Five companies
requested bid packets and three firms bid the project.

Based on the estimated 2,500 tons, the low bid for this material was $30,576 plus sales tax of
$2,102.10 from Bjorkland Trucking. Bjorkland Trucking has been the supplier of this material
for the past five years.

There is $35,000 in the 2011 street maintenance budget for these projects. The bid cost for this
project is for material and delivery. The City conducts the grading, compaction and finishing of
this material.

EE i S S i i S S S R i S S i
Attachments

Location Map

Bid List
FhAIAkAAkAIAAkAAAkAAkAIAhkArAkrAArArhkrArhkrhkhrhkhikhkihkkhrhkhikhihkkhrhkiikhihkhhhkiikhihkhhhiihihkiihkiixkkx
Fiscal Impact:

As noted above. Funds for this project were approved in the 2011 Street Maintenance Budget.
EOE S b i I i b b i I I S b i I I I I I S I i i I I i I I I i i i i I I S i S
Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends awarding the 2011 Class V/millings contract to Bjorkland Trucking for a not
to exceed of $35,000 including delivery.
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City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:
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P—
East

"Bethel

April 29, 2011
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGH BINDER MODIFIED CLASS 5 and ASPHALT MILLINGS

The City of East Bethel plans to resurface the following streets:

Jewell Street Est. tons 1,100 Class V

Kissel Street Est, tons 500 Class V

Edison Street Est. tons 300 Class V

Kiondike Drive Est. tons 600 tons of asphalt millings

All cost for loading, weighing, trucking, or any other incidental cost shall be included in the
price per ton of Class 3 Modified and the asphalt millings.

The City shall give a minimum of 48 hours notice to the successful bidder as to the delivery
time, date, and location of the delivery of class 5. The city will attempt to give the successful
bidder as much notice of cancellation of delivery as possible due to inclement weather
conditions.

SCOPE OF WORK.: h is the City of East Bethel's intent to start on these projects by July 1, 2011. It is also
the City's intention to complete all Class 5 projects by Septemberi5, 201 1.

The City plans to work with the successful bidder in a spirit of cooperation as to the phasing and
scheduling of these Class 5 projects. The City reserves the right to reject afl bids or to award the
confract in the best interest of the city.

Modified Class V shall meet all MnDOT specifications and shall be 17 (-)
Asphalt millings shall be 17 or less

UNIT PRICE Modified Class V §

— /ton

UNIT PRICE Asphalt Millings$ / ‘? =  fon

00
TOTAL BID AMOUNT( Class V and Asphalt Millings)$  S30% 76 —

The City of East Bethel reserves the right to select or reject either of the above bids,

Bidder &M%@’S Date ?/ / ?//410 /)

Address 270712, Pow st :’E@M'} Mns sS40
Phone 7@3 Wif ?3@,}’
Sigﬁatureﬂ%,;ﬁ’;% GMM/ MAUAJ&Q_,/?

2241 221" Avenue NE East Bethel, Minnesota 55011



ey OP D KT
ALRET CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANGE oA oo

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONMLY AND CONEFERS NG RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES HOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

FREPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

IMPORTANT. H the ceriificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION 1S WANED, subject to
the terme and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this veriificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lisu of such endorsementis}

PRODUCE , 651-464-3333 imes | Kate Tipping
Landmark Insurance Services 651-464-7596 ;Ei‘?:i?é,ﬁ 651-332-7820 T, noy, 651-464-7596
Forest Lake, M 55025 LEORESS: i_ftipping@!and mark-ins.com o
Jism Tipping CtowemipyBIORKZ
] HMEURERIS) AFFORDIMG COVERAGE MAIC 3
INSURED Blerklund Companies LLG msurer A Owiers Insurance Company [32700
27072 Polk StNE msurek 8 : Aute-Owners Insurance Co. 18988
Isaivt, MN 55040-525G MEURER C ©
MSURER B
FISURER E ;
INSLIRER F -
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 15 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES GF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABCVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWHTHSTANDING ANY REGUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION

CERTIFICATE MAY BE 1SSUTD OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY 'THE POLICHES DESCRIBED HEREMN IS SUBSECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EACLUSIONS AND CONEITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWWN MAY HAVE BEEM REBUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

GOF ANY CONTRACT OR OTMER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

THE SR FEL OLICY E
tre TYPE OF INSURANCE f‘h?ﬁ% i POLICY MUNMBER m{;ﬂg\&gﬁ) &@?é%&%’«% LBaTS
GENERAL LIABRITY EACH O CCURIENCE 3 1,000,000
: : : a  TTERAGE T TETS e
A LXK COMMERCIAL GENERAL LABILITY BB47855 THOWI0  1UOMIT | Eormidhs eamnineey |3 50,000
! T
= X boocur WED EXP {Any one persor) | § 5,000
i PERSONAL & ALV NJURY | & , 000,000
. | CEMERAL AGGREGATE § +,000,000
ORI ACGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PROCUTTS- COMPIOR AGG | § 1,000,060
poLicy i RS T (e $
! 0 SINGLE ERAIT
AUTOMOBILE LIRGRITY I 51N R 1,000,000
B X aeracro 3540306500 THOMG | 18T
e i B0L SR e gerkony | $
| AL OENED MO BOTHL Y LAY (Per oot derty] §
ELRLED AT O j PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED ALITOS i (PPer arcident) ¥
|| MOM-OWHED AUTDS %
3
¥ | UMBRELLA LIAR oerUR § 2,000,000
EXCESS LIAD CLAMESAAD 4 2,000,000
B - 9540306501 YOG, | 110111 ¢ di el
I DEDUCTELE _ §
X | puTenrion g 10,000 ; .
WORKERS CUMPENSATION
AN EMPLOYERS LIABILITY vin ok
A | ANY PROPRETORAR THERIEXECUTIVE 8552400 THOHI0 | HHONTT el eacr oo % 530,000,
OFFCERMEMEER EACLUDED? :
(Mandattery in N} EL ¥ 500,000
) rwa %PERAT;OMS bredaw EL DISESSE - POLISYLIMT | § 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF DPERATIONS / LGCATIONS [ VEHICLES (Aftach ACORL 101, Additionzl Remarks Schaduls, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HMOLDER CANCELEATION
EBETHEY
SHOLLD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFCRE
THE EXPFIRATION DATE THERECF, NOTICE WL BE DELIVERED I
City of East Bethel ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

2281 221st Ave NE
£ast Bethel, W 55011

]

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
P 13

ACORD 25 (2009/08)

© 16B8-2008 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo ave registered marks of ACORD
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April 27, 2011

To: Prospective Bidders for East Bethel Class V Project

From: Jack Davis

Subject: Specification Addendum

The specification for the modified Class V is the binder on the 200 sieve should be in the 12-
14% range for the modified class V gravel. All other Class V specs shall meet MnDOT
specifications.

This bid will be awarded based on the lowest total of both the class V and the limeseck, -

AT At g st
Call me at 763-367-7876 if you have any questions.

Please sign and include this form with your bid. Your bid will not be accepted without this
signed addendum.

5//9/{2:@ s
7 Date

2241 221" Avenue NE Fast Bethel, Minnesota 35011
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e
East

" Bethel

April 29,2011

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGH BINDER MODIFIED CLASS 5 and ASPHALT MILLINGS

The City of East Bethel plans to resurface the following strests:

Jewel] Street Est. tons £,100 Class V

Kisgel Street Est. tons 500 Class V

Edison Street Est. tons 300 Class V

Klondike Drive Est. tons 600 tons of asphalt millings

All cost for loading, weighing, trucking, or any other incidental cost shall be included in the
price per ton of Class 5 Modified and the asphalt millings.

The City shall give a minimum of 48 hours notice to the successfil bidder as to the delivery
time, data, and Jocation of the delivery of class 5. The city will atternpt o give the successful
bidder as much notice of cancellation of delivery as possible due to inclement weather
conditions. ‘

SCOPE OF WORK: 1t is the City of East Bethel's intent w start on these projects by July I, 2011. It is also
the City's intention to complete all Class S projects by September1$, 2011,

The City plans to work with the successful bidder in a spirit of cooperation as to the phasing and
scheduling of these Class 5 projects. The City reserves the right to reject all bids or to award the
contract in the best interest of the city.

Modified Class V shall meet all MnDOT specifications and shail be 1 (+)
Asphalt millings shall be 17 or ess e 8@{ 3D

UNIT PRICE Modified Class V §

UNIT PRICE Asphalt Millings $__4 & 15 e

TOTAL BID AMOUNT( Class V and Asphalt Millings) 5 3 55', i? g 8

The City of East Bethe] reserves the right to select or reject either of the above bids.

Bidder Drese] Cpntructing. Date 5; / / ?’;/ 2 if
Address R LY 3"&:’5’;\{ i ﬁjh ?'mja:a (j’:ﬁ }fy* Sy 55wiE
Phone_ L2574 ~ a;z?“’ PAET

1241 221* Avenue NE East Bethel, Minnessta 55011
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iR
East

April 29, 2011

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGH BINDER MODIFIED CLASS 5 and ASPHALT MILLINGS

The City of East Bethel plans to resurface the following streets:

Jewell Street Est. tons 1,100 Class Vv

Kigsel Street Est, tons 500 Class V

Edison Street Est, tons 300 Class V

Klondike Drive Est. tons . 600 tons of asphalt millings

All cost for loading, weighing, trucking, or any other incidental cost shall be included in the
price per ton of Class 5 Modified end the asphalt millings.

The City shall give a minimum of 48 hours notice 1o the successful bidder as to the delivery
time, date, and location of the delivery of class 5. The city will attempt to give the successfial
bidder as much notice of cancellation of delivery as possible due 1o inclement weather
. conditions. 7
SCOPE OF WORK: It is the City of East Bethel's intent to start on these projects by July 1, 2011. It is also
; the City's intention to complete all Class 5 projects by September!s, 2011,
! The City plans to work with the successful bidder in a spirit of cooperation as 1o the phasing and
scheduling of these Class 5 projects. The City reserves the right to reject all bids or to award the
contract in the best interest of the city.

Modified Class V shall meet all MnDOT specifications and shall be 17 (=)
Asphalt millings shall be 17 or less

3 Y e
UNIT PRICE Modified Class VS /&, 55  fon

UNIT PRICE Asphalt Millings § <2, 00 jon

TOTAL BID AMOUNT( Class V and Asphatt Millings)§  <Al» $5005", 0O
&

The City of East Bethel reserves the right to select or reject either of the above bids.

pisder_FORFST DAKE QNrRen T, pus O5-15-20/)
aaaress_| 17771 (AKE JRWE NE, %S‘r LAKE (N SS02S
Phone C@gﬁ,)ﬁb%wq@&)@

Signature @M’ Lgpent P /)/%Azf%&—-
Damney. R, Jollwseg | fresponT

2241 221" Avenue NE Fast Bethel, Minnesota 55011



City of East Bethel
City Council
Agenda Information

e
”ﬁast |
""Bethel \

Rk i I I

Date:

June 1, 2011

RO S b S I i i b i I S S i I S
Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G.1

EE i S S i S i S S i S S i S S S i i i i S i i
Agenda Item:

Employment Contract

EE S i b S i i b b i i i S S
Requested Action:

Consider approving the City Administrator Employment Contract

EE I S S i S i R i S i i S
Background Information

As part of the motion that approved my hiring as the City Administrator on May 4, 2010 was the
approval of an employment agreement that would be satisfactory to both the City and the
Administrator. Attached is the agreement for your review.

The City Administrator Employment Agreement has been reviewed by the City Attorney and his
comments have been incorporated into the document.

Attachment(s):

Employment Agreement

EOE S b S I i b b I S i i b i I i I i I S S I i i I I I I I i i i i I I S S
Fiscal Impact:

The salary in this agreement is $21,588 less than the budget amount approved for this position
for 2011 and does not include an additional $4,500 in deferred compensation that was included
in the 2011 budget for this category. The overall impact of this agreement for the City
Administration budget is a reduction of $26,080, not including any of the reduced fringe benefit
costs associated with the salary.

o e e i i i e i e S I S S i i S e i i i e i i i i I S SR I i e i e i e i e i e i I S e i e i

Recommendation(s):

ECIE I I i S S O i i S i i i i i R I S S i

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:




Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of

, 2011, by and between the City of East Bethel, State of Minnesota, a municipal
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "the City", and Charles L. “Jack” Davis, hereinafter referred
to as "Employee."

WHEREAS, the City desires to employ the services of Charles L. “Jack” Davis as
City Administrator of the City as provided by the laws of the State of Minnesota and relevant to
ordinances of the City of East Bethel; and,

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept employment as the City Administrator of
the City; and;

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to provide certain benefits establish certain
conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of Employee; and,

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to (1) secure and retain the services of the
Employee and to provide inducement for Employee to remain in such employment; (2) to make
possible full work productivity by assuring Employee's morale; and peace of mind with respect to
future security; (3) to act as a deterrent against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on the
part of the Employee; and (4) to provide a just means for terminating Employee's services at such
time as Employee may be unable to fully discharge Employee’s duties due or disability or when
the City may desire to otherwise terminate Employee's employment.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,
the parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1: DUTIES

1.1.1 The City hereby agrees to employ Charles L. “Jack” Davis as City Administrator of said
City to perform the function and duties specified in the City Administrator's job description, and
to perform duties specified under the ordinances of the City of East Bethel and the laws of the
State of Minnesota and, such other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the City
Council shall from time-to-time assign.

1.2 Hours of Employment. It is recognized that the duties of Employee’s
position require Employee to devote a great deal of time outside normal business hours, and for
that reason Employee may take compensatory time off during normal business hours, consistent
with performing Employee’s duties as City Administrator.

SECTION 2: TERM, DISCHARGE, TERMINATION AND RESIGNATION
2.1 Term

This AGREEMENT shall commence on June 1%, 2011 and continuing thereafter until December
31, 2012 or until otherwise terminated pursuant to the provisions of this contract. This contract
shall automatically renew for an additional 2-year period unless either party provides written
notice to the other on or before July 1, 2012 of intent not to renew this contract, in which case this

1



contract shall terminate as of December 31, 2012. Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive
employ of the City until this contract is terminated.

2.2 Discharge.

Nothing in this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT shall prevent, limit, or otherwise
interfere with the right of the City to terminate the services of the Employee (discharge) at any
time, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 2.5 paragraph b and c. of this
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT. Paragraph 2.3 and 2.4 of this Section shall not be in force if the
Employee is found to be unable to discharge assigned duties due to any type of disability or
inability to perform up to normal standards of City management as determined by an impartial
Board of three members agreed upon by the Employee and the City. If Employee and the City
cannot agree on an impartial Board of three members, the matter will be submitted to binding
arbitration by a single arbitrator assigned by the American Arbitration Association.

2.3 Resignation.

The Employee agrees to remain in employment with the City for a period of thirty-
nineteen (19) months from the date hereof. Employee agrees during this time not to seek or accept
other offers for employment elsewhere excepting that the employee may seek or solicit other
offers of employment within the last 365 days of the term of this contract. Prior to termination of
the employment with the City the Employee agrees to assist the City in the necessary search for
his replacement making recommendations on same to the City. If the Employee voluntarily
resigns his position prior to the scheduled termination of this contract, the severance contained in
paragraph 2.5 of this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT shall not apply and excepting accrued
benefits, no further payments shall be paid to Employee.

For the purposes of this agreement, the Employee shall not be determined to have
defaulted or otherwise violated this agreement for accepting or seeking other offers of
employment if any one of the following occur:

a. The Employee receives an adverse annual performance review;

b. The Employee receives any form of employee sanction or discipline related
to the performance of his duties; and,

C. If the City, at any time, reduces the salary or other financial benefits of the
Employee in a greater percentage than in an across the board reduction for
all City management employees;

d. If the Employee receives the suggestion, whether formal or informal, made
by 3 of the 5 members of the City Council that he resign or look for work
elsewhere;

e. If the City refuses, following written notice, to comply with the other

provisions of this agreement benefiting or affecting the Employee;

f. If the City formally casts a no confidence vote by 3/5 vote.



2.4 Termination for Cause.

Nothing in this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT shall prevent, limit, or otherwise
interfere with the right of the City to terminate the Employee for cause. Termination for cause
may occur during the term of this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT because of: nonperformance
of the terms of this agreement; a conviction of the Employee of a crime constituting a felony or
gross misdemeanor; or, an act or actions of discrimination or harassment occurring within the
work place as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or by a neutral fact finder
appointed by the city to investigate and report on any such allegation(s). In the event of
termination for cause, the City shall have no obligation to pay any further payments otherwise due
under the terms of the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT or severance pay as provided for herein.
Termination for cause may not be a result of any reorganization by the City that eliminates the
position of City Administrator.

2.5  Terminations and Severance Pay

The Employee may, at his option, be deemed to be "terminated without cause™
within the meaning of this agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following:

a. If the City, at any time, reduces the salary or other financial benefits of the
Employee in a greater percentage than in an across the board reduction for
all City management employees;

b. If the Employee resigns following the suggestion, whether formal or
informal, made by 3 of the 5 members of the City Council that he resign;

C. If the City refuses, following written notice, to comply with the other
provisions of this agreement benefiting or affecting the Employee;

d. The Employee's employment shall be terminated if the City formally votes
by 3/5 vote to terminate his employment.

In the event that the Employee's employment is terminated by the City as specified
by this paragraph, the City agrees to maintain the employee on the city health and dental
insurance systems existing as of the date of termination for six (6) months at city cost and pay the
Employee a lump sum cash payment as severance pay equal to six (6) months' net (defined as the
base wage without incentives, i.e. educational, supplemental wellness program, etc.) salary based
on the current salary of the Employee in effect when the notice of termination is provided by the
City or when the event of termination as otherwise prescribed above occurs, whichever event
occurs first. Said amount shall be payable in addition to any other salary due the Employee.

SECTION 3: SALARY
3.1 Salary
The City agrees to pay the Employee for services rendered pursuant hereto an

annual salary payable in installments at the same time as other employees of the City are paid.
Employee's salary through the term of this contract is as follows:



From the commencement of this contract through the date of termination of this contract, the
employee's salary will be based upon an annual base wage of $118,000 per year paid in
established payroll periods as set forth by the City Council from time to time for all employees.
The Employee shall receive on January 1, of each year of this contract a cost of living increase as
determined by City Council and a step increase as approved in the City’s pay plan. Other
adjustments to salary and compensation shall be at the discretion and approval of City Council.

3.2 Review

The City shall conduct a review of the Employee's performance on or before
August 1st of each year or at another date as may be agreed upon by the employee and the city
council. The performance review shall not presume an adjustment in salary other than is provided
for above.

SECTION 4: AUTOMOBILE AND OTHER EXPENSES
41  Automobile.

Ownership of a private automobile and current/valid driver's licensure is required of the
employee as a condition of employment under this contract. Employee will be compensated for
automobile mileage and usage incurred on behalf of City business at the current IRS
reimbursement mileage rate. Mileage records compliant with Internal Revenue Code requirements
shall be maintained by the employee and shall be provided to the City prior to Jan 15th of each
year for the previous 12 months. Other expenses incurred by employee as are authorized by the
city council such as seminars, conferences, meals and lodging incurred in pursuit of city business
shall be reimbursed to the employee upon the employee providing the receipts therefore to the
City Finance Director.

SECTION 5: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
5.1 Professional Associations

The City may budget and, in its discretion, provide for the registration, travel, lodging, and
reasonable expenses of the Employee for professional official travel, meetings, and occasions
adequate to continue the professional development of the Employee and to adequately pursue
necessary official and other functions for the City.

SECTION 6: HEALTH, DENTAL AND LIFE INSURANCE

6.1 The City agrees to pay the Employee's costs to participate in the City's
medical, dental, life insurance and disability insurance programs at the same rate as other
employees. The City shall not participate in the cost of private insurance owned and maintained
by the employee.

SECTION 7: RETIREMENT

7.1 The City is a municipality defined in Minnesota State Statutes, Chapter
475, and is a Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA) participating member. The City
Administrator has elected in participate in the PERA retirement program the same as with any
other City employee.



SECTION 8: OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
8.1 Other Conditions

The City shall fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, as it may determine from
time-to-time, relating to the performance of Employee, provided such terms and conditions are
not inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions of this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT,
the duties traditionally associated with the office City Administrator pursuant to the City's
ordinances, the City Code, or any other applicable law.

8.2 Fringe Benefits

Except as may be otherwise herein provided to the contrary, all provisions of the City Code and
regulations and rules of the City relating to retirement and pension system contributions, holidays,
and other fringe benefits and working conditions as they now exist or hereafter may be amended,
also shall apply to Employee as they would to any other employees of the City. As to those
benefits specifically provided for within the terms of this contract, the same shall not be
duplicated or augmented by existing City programs for fringe benefits to employees. Employee
shall not be eligible for longevity paid benefits within the City.

8.3 Vacation, Sick Leave and Personal Days

Q) Commencing June 1, 2011 the Employee shall annually receive fifteen (15) vacation days,
accruing at 1.25 vacation days per month for the purposes of any separation disbursement
to be used during the term of this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT. The rate of accrual
and the ability to accrue vacation days shall be subject to the existing policies of the City
and any other agreements in place with the Employee.

(i) Employee shall earn one (1) sick day per month to be used during the term of this
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT. The rate of accrual and the ability to accrue sick days
shall be subject to the existing policies of the City.

(iti)  The City Administrator shall be afforded time off in accordance with the provisions of the
City’s Personnel Policies as any other employee.

8.4 Idemnification

The City shall defend and indemnify the City Administrator for damages, including punitive
damages, claimed or levied against the City Administrator, provided that (1) he was acting in the
performance of duties of his position; and (2) he was not guilty of malfeasance in office or willful
neglect of duty. The City may compromise and settle, without the consent of the City
Administrator, any claim if the City feels it is in the best interest to settle the matter. In any event,
the City will pay any settlement or judgment and all costs for legal representation.

8.5 Bonding

The City shall pay the cost of any bonds required of the City Administrator under any law of
circumstance.



SECTION 9: GENERAL PROVISIONS
9.1 Assignments and Subcontracts

None of the sums due, or about to become due, nor any of the work to be
performed under this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by Employee shall be assigned to any
third party without the prior written consent of the City.

9.2 Applicable Law

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT shall be deemed to have been entered into
and shall be construed and governed, except with respect to conflict of laws, in accordance with
the laws of the State of Minnesota.

9.3 Waivers

Failure to either party to insist, in any one or more instances, upon the performance
of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT or to
exercise any right hereunder, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future
exercise of such right, but the obligation of the other party with respect to such future
performance shall continue in full force and effect.

9.4 Severability

The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT shall not affect the other provisions, and this EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or
provisions were omitted.

9.5 Amendments

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, released,
discharged, supplemented, interpreted, or changed in any manner except by written instrument
signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties.

9.6 Headings

The headings utilized herein are provided as aids in referencing provisions of this
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, but shall not be utilized in interpretation, or construction of the
terms and conditions herein.

9.7 Merger

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT and any Attachment (when signed by both
parties), contain the entire and only understanding or agreement between the parties in relation to
the subject matter hereof. Any representations, provision, undertakings, or condition hereof not
contained herein shall be of no effect and shall not be binding on either party.



9.8 Force Majeure

Neither party shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any delay or failure to
perform under this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT resulting, directly or indirectly, from any
cause beyond reasonable control, including, but not limited to war, fire, riot, insurrection, and acts
of God.

9.9  Applicability of Personnel Policies and Resolutions

Except where specifically abridged or modified by this agreement, personnel
policies as defined and set forth for employees of the City of East Bethel shall apply to this
Employee.

9.10 Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

(i) The City Council and the Employee may mutually agree to any other terms and
conditions of employment of Employee as they may mutually deem appropriate from time-to-time
provided such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with the provisions of this agreement, the
laws of the State of Minnesota, the ordinances of the City, or any other applicable laws.

(ii) All provisions of the City Code, and regulations and rules of the City relating
to fringe benefits and working conditions as they now exist or hereafter may be amended, also
shall apply to the Employee as they would to other employees of the City, except as herein
provided.

9.11. NOTICES.

a. Address of Record. Each party agrees to keep the other informed of an
address of record for correspondence and notices under this Agreement, as well as relevant
telephone numbers for oral notices.

b. Initial Address. The initial address of record for each party shall be:
The City: City of East Bethel

2241 221 Avenue NE
East Bethel, MN 55011

Copy to: Mark J. Vierling
Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff & Vierling P.L.L.P
1835 Northwestern Ave.
Stillwater, MN 55082

Administrator: Charles L. “Jack” Davis
29457 Dahlia St. NW
Isanti, MN 55040




Copy to:

C. Change of Address. Each party's address of record shall be that which is
specified in subsection B. above until and unless the other party receives notification of
change in writing. Each party will promptly notify the other of any such change.

D. Future Notices. If notice of a change of address is properly given in writing
pursuant to this Section, all future notices hereunder shall be given to the new name and/or
address specified in the most recent such notice properly given.

E. Other Required Notices. Notice required by operation of an applicable
code, statute, ordinance or regulation shall be given as required therein, but a duplicate
copy of such notice shall be given as specified in paragraph F. or G. below.

F. Delivery of Notices. Notices pursuant to this Agreement may be given by
deposit in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested. Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this
Agreement may be personally served in the same manner as is applicable to civil judicial
process.

G. Effective Date. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of personal
service or three (3) days following the date of deposit of such written notice in the course
of transmission in the United States Postal Service, properly addressed and mailed as
required herein.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of East Bethel on a vote of its City Council has caused this
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT to be signed and executed in its behalf by its Mayor and duly
attested by its Deputy Clerk and the Employee has signed this EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT,
both in duplicate, day and years first written above.

City of East Bethel

Richard Lawrence, Mayor Charles L. “Jack” Davis

ATTEST:

Wendy Warren, Deputy City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Mark Vierling, City Attorney
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RO S b i I i i b i S S i I i i I I I I I i i i i I S
Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G.2
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Agenda Item:

URRWMO 2012 Proposed Budget

EOE S b S i i i b i I S S i S I
Requested Action:

Consider approving the 2012 URRWMO Budget

EE i S S i S i i
Background Information:

At the last URRWMO meeting, the organization reviewed the 2012 Budget for the organization
and directed it be distributed to member cities for review and comment. A copy of that proposal
is attached with this agenda item.

The proposal represents a decrease of $1,087 to East Bethel from a 2011 budget of $3,700 to
$2,613 in 2012.

The Joint Powers Agreement requires the submission of the budget to each of the parties for
ratification; the budget is implemented only after ratification by all parties to the Agreement.
East Bethel received the 2012 budget on May 11, 2011. The City has 60 days to respond to the
URRWMO regarding the 2012 budget. Failure of the City to act within 60 days shall constitute
approval of the budget.

Attachment
2012 URRWMO Budget Proposal
EE i S S i i S S S R i S S i
Fiscal Impact:
As noted in the 2012 Budget Proposal
EOE S b i I i i b i I I S S i b i S i
Recommendation(s):
City staff is seeking direction as to a response to the URRWMO budget request.

ECE I I i I S O S i e i i i S

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:




Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



2012 URRWMO Budget

ACD 2012 Work Recommendations

Lake Levels Monitoring - Lake George, East Twin
Lake, Cooper Lake, Minard Lake

River Water Quality Monitoring - upstream &
downstream

Develop 2013-2017 Monitoring Plan
URRWMO Website

URRWMO Annual Newsletter Article

Web Video

Prepare 2010 Annual Report to BWSR

Water Quality Cost Share Grant Fund

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET (Split equally six ways)

Copies

Postage

Recording secretary

Insurance-League of MN Cities insurance trust
Administrative fee-Oak Grove

Audit

Budget for URRWMO matching participation on
future grant opportunities (table V-1 of URRWMO
plan)

Public notice of watershed plan amendments
Solicit bids for professional services

Public outreach (each share based on LGU
percentages)

Budget Total

Previous Budgets

2011 Budget was $16,617

2010 Budget was $18,185

2009 Budget was $13,130

2008 Budget was $26,205 (3rd Generation Plan)

Bethel East Bethel Ham Lake Nowthen Oak Grove St. Francis

1.08% 24.21% 0.99% 23.66% 29.69% 20.37%

$680.00 $7.34 $164.63 $6.73 $160.89 $201.89 $138.52
$2,250.00 $24.30 $544.73 $22.28 $532.35 $668.03 $458.33
$455.00 $4.91 $110.16 $4.50 $107.65 $135.09 $92.68
$290.00 $3.13 $70.21 $2.87 $68.61 $86.10 $59.07
$350.00 $3.78 $84.74 $3.47 $32.81 $103.92 $71.30
$1,050.00 $11.34 $254.21 $10.40 $248.43 $311.75 $213.89
$630.00 $6.80 $152.52 $6.24 $149.06 $187.05 $128.33
$1,000.00 $10.80 $242.10 $9.90 $236.60 $296.90 $203.70
$6,705.00 $72.41 $1,623.28 $66.38 $1,586.40 $1,990.71 $1,365.81
Bethel East Bethel Ham Lake Nowthen Oak Grove St. Francis

$50.00 $8.33 $8.33 $8.33 $8.33 $8.33 $8.33
$60.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00 $10.00
$1,200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00
$2,500.00 $416.67 $416.67 $416.67 $416.67 $416.67 $416.67
$300.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$1,000.00 $166.67 $166.67 $166.67 $166.67 $166.67 $166.67
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$100.00 $16.67 $16.67 $16.67 $16.67 $16.67 $16.67
$500.00 $5.40 $121.05 $4.95 $118.30 $148.45 $101.85
$5,710.00 $873.73 $989.38 $873.28 $986.63 $1,016.78 $970.18
$12,415.00 $946.15 $2,612.66 $939.66 $2,573.04 $3,007.50 $2,335.99
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G. 3
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Agenda Item:

SRWMO 2012 Proposed Budget

EOE S b i i i i b i I S S i I S S b i I I I I S I i i I I I I I i i i i I I i i i
Requested Action:

Consider approving the 2012 SRWMO Budget

EE i S S i S i i
Background Information:

At the last SRWMO meeting, the organization reviewed the 2012 Budget for the organization
and directed it be distributed to member cities for review and comment. A copy of that proposal
is included as an attachment for this agenda item.

The proposal represents an increase of $8,055 to East Bethel from a 2011 budget of $9,502 to
$17,557 in 2012. Budgeted administrative and operating expenses decrease slightly from 2011
to 2012. 82% of this increase is East Bethel’s portion of Rough Fish Barriers Installation —
Martin Lake and Type Lake at a cost of $6,586. All the projects listed in the budget request are
included in the SRWMO Comprehensive Plan.

The Joint Powers Agreement requires the submission of the budget to each of the parties for
ratification; the budget is implemented only after ratification by all parties to the Agreement.
East Bethel received the 2012 budget on May 11, 2011. The City has 60 days to respond to the
SRWMO regarding the 2012 budget. Failure of the City to act within 60 days shall constitute
approval of the budget.

Attachment
2012 SRWMO Budget Proposal
EOE S b S i i i b i I i S i
Fiscal Impact:
As noted in the 2012 Budget Proposal
EE I S i S i i S i i i S S i S R S i S i i I S e i I i
Recommendation(s):
City staff is seeking advice and direction in responding to the SRWMO budget request.

R i e e e i e i e S O S i i i i i i i S i i i i i I S SR i e i e e e i e b e i e i i i e i e S Y

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:




Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



DRAFT 2012 SRWMO Budget Breakout

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES (split by percentages)

Annual report to BWSR and member communities

Grant Search and Applications -Typo and Martin Lakes Water Quality Projects
(rough fish barriers and stormwater retrofits) & Coon Lake stormwater
assessment

Review Municipal Local Water Plans for consistency with the new SRWMO Plan
(June 3, 2012 is the deadline for all SRWMO cities and townships)

Lake Level Monitoring — Coon Lake, Linwood Lake, Martin Lake, Fawn Lake,
Typo Lake

Lake Water Quality Monitoring (professional) - Coon Lake East Bay, Coon Lake
West Bay, Linwood Lake, Typo Lake, Fawn Lake, Martin Lake

Stream Water Quality Monitoring — West Branch of Sunrise River at Hwy 77 &
South Branch of Sunrise River at Hornsby St.

Stream Hydrology Monitoring — West Branch of Sunrise River at Hwy 77 &
South Branch of Sunrise River at Hornsby St.

Reference Wetland Monitoring - Three reference wetlands

Cost Share Grant Fund for Water Quality Improvement Projects

Installation of Stormwater Retrofits for Water Quality — Martin Lake & Coon Lake
Rough Fish Barriers Installation — Martin Lake & Typo Lake

Website - Annual maintenance fee ($170), post mtg. minutes $10/ea x 6 = $60,
post mtg. agendas $10/ea x 6 = $60

Lakeshore Landscaping Marketing

Annual Educational Publication

NON-OPERATING ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS (split by percentages)
Financial Audit

Legal

OPERATING EXPENSE (split equally four ways)
ACD Administrator (on-call, limited)

Secretarial or other administrative

Liability Insurance

Administrative Assistance — City of East Bethel

Grand Totals

$675.00

$1,000.00

$0.00

$850.00

$6,570.00

$2,660.00

$1,100.00
$1,650.00
$2,000.00

$10,000.00
$20,000.00

$290.00
$700.00
$500.00
$47,995.00

$300.00
$1,000.00
$1,300.00

$1,500.00
$1,200.00
$2,300.00

$300.00
$5,300.00

$54,595.00

Linwood
46.40%

$313.20

$464.00

$0.00

$394.40

$3,048.48

$1,234.24

$510.40
$765.60
$928.00

$4,640.00
$9,280.00

$134.56
$324.80
$232.00
$22,269.68

$139.20
$464.00
$603.20

$375.00
$300.00
$575.00
$75.00
$1,325.00

$24,197.88

East Bethel
32.93%

$222.28

$329.30

$0.00

$279.91

$2,163.50

$875.94

$362.23
$543.35
$658.60

$3,293.00
$6,586.00

$95.50
$230.51
$164.65
$15,804.75

$98.79
$329.30
$428.09

$375.00
$300.00
$575.00
$75.00
$1,325.00

$17,557.84

Columbus
16.72%

$112.86

$167.20

$0.00

$142.12

$1,098.50

$444.75

$183.92
$275.88
$334.40

$1,672.00
$3,344.00

$48.49
$117.04
$83.60
$8,024.76

$50.16
$167.20
$217.36

$375.00
$300.00
$575.00
$75.00
$1,325.00

$9,567.12

Ham Lake
3.95%

$26.66

$39.50

$0.00

$33.58

$259.52

$105.07

$43.45
$65.18
$79.00

$395.00
$790.00

$11.45
$27.65
$19.756
$1,895.80

$11.85
$39.50
$51.35

$375.00
$300.00
$575.00
$75.00
$1,325.00

$3,272.15
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Agenda Item:

Ice Arena Management Contract

EE S i S i i i b b i i i i i i i i
Requested Action:

Consider approving the proposed ice arena management agreement effective August 1, 2011
through July 31, 2014.

EOE S b S I i b b i I I S i i I I I i I I I i i i i I I S i S
Background Information:

Prior to 2006 the City of East Bethel managed the total operation of the Ice Arena. Beginning
with the 2006-2007 season, the City contracted with the National Sports Center for management
services under an agreement that ran for two years ending in June of 2008. The National Sports
Center gave notice in March 2008 that they did not intend to exercise their option to extend the
contract for another two year period.

The City solicited other management proposals from several vendors including the current
vendor, Gibson Management Company, LLC. Gibson Management Company, LLC was
selected as it offered more service and had staff with experience at our arena. The initial contract
was for a one year period ending July 31, 2009. The current contract was approved by City
Council for a two year period and expires July 31, 2011.

City staff has been satisfied with the execution of the contract management. Net operating
income has increased from $57,328 in 2006 to $82,404 in 2010. The cash deficit in the arena
fund has been reduced from $345,850 to $192,134 between December 31, 2007 to December 31,
2010 . The arena has been maintained satisfactorily and any issues that have arisen have been
addressed in a cooperative manner. Gibson Management worked with the City to repaint interior
walls, re-fit locker rooms with rubber floor coverings and install energy efficient lighting in the
arena area.

The contract rate remained constant at $83,000 per year for the first three years with this
contractor. An increase to $88,000 per year for the next three years is proposed in this new
contract with incentives and guarantees on improving advertising revenue. Minimum amounts
required for advertising sales have been included in the contract and these requirements will net
the city at least $10,000 over a three year period. Sales over this amount are proposed to be split
50-50 between the City and Gibson Management. The potential affect of the advertising sales
could negate the cost increase of the new contract.



Overall, the management company has been responsive to requests from the City and complaints
from customers regarding the arena have been reduced. City staff is pleased with the
performance of Gibson Management Company, LLC.

The City Attorney has reviewed this agreement for the current contract period.

EE i S S e S i S S S i i S R S i i S i S i i S S
Fiscal Impact:

As noted above.

EOE S b S i i i b i I S i I S
Recommendation(s):

Staff is recommending approval of the Management services agreement with Gibson
Management Company, LLC for management services at the City’s ice arena effective August 1,
2011 through July 31, 2014.

ECE I I i R i i e i i O e i S S S S R I I R

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



CONTRACT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF EAST BETHEL
AND GIBSON MANAGEMENT COMPANY, LLC.

This Agreement, effective the 1% day of August, 2011, is by and between the City of East Bethel,
2241 — 221% Avenue NE, East Bethel, Minnesota 55011, a Minnesota municipal corporation,
hereinafter called the “City,” and Gibson Management Company, LLC, PO Box 18, East Bethel,
Minnesota 55011, a Minnesota corporation, hereinafter called the “Contractor.” City and
Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. The Agreement

1.1  The Contractor will perform the following management services for the City:

The Contractor agrees to furnish management services for management of the
East Bethel Ice Arena and perform the following functions, duties, and
obligations in connection therewith:

Provide an on-site manager, all necessary operational part time staff, and
provide worker’s compensation insurance covering all its employees.

Ensure that the manager will be at the Arena full time September 1 through
March 31. The manager will be at the Arena as necessary for the adequate
performance of this Agreement April 1 through August 31.

Market, sell, schedule, invoice, and ensure collection of all payments for all
ice rental and dry floor events. All payments will be made directly to the
City. Copies of all invoices will be provided to the City immediately upon
preparation by the Contractor. All executed contracts, insurance paperwork,
and payments must be provided to the City at least 10 days before a client is
allowed to enter the Arena.

Provide commercial general liability insurance coverage in the amounts of
$500,000.00 per claim, $1,500,000.00 for any number of claims per
occurrence, with the City of East Bethel named as an additional insured on the
policy.

Manage all concessions activities, including purchasing all concession
merchandise and supplies. All payments and collections will be forwarded to
the City on Mondays and Fridays during the period of this agreement. On a
monthly basis, a report will be provided to the City showing concession
revenues, product costs and the gross margin for each month. Monthly
inventory counts will be conducted and the resulting inventory reports will be
provided to the City by the 10™ of the following month.

Market, sell, manage and ensure display of all advertising including interior
and exterior signage. All executed contracts and payments will be forwarded
to the City before signage is installed.

Manage the budget for all operations, revenues, and costs.

Prepare an annual budget with assistance from the City. Budget must be
prepared and provided to the City Administrator on the forms provided by the



1.2

Director of Fiscal and Support Services. The draft document must be
provided no later than May 31 of each year for the following year’s
operations.

e Manage all short term maintenance projects and activities.

e Provide guidance and planning to the City for current and planned capital
improvements.

e Provide, on a monthly basis, a detailed statement to the City that includes all
expenses that are to be reimbursed by the City to the Contractor. Statements
must be received by the City by the 5" of the following month. Invoiced
amounts shall follow the budget format and include copies of invoices paid for
services, supplies and materials. Copies of time cards for all employees must
be included.

e Maintain the interior of the Arena, the ice surface, and the exterior walkways;
all emergency exits must be kept clear of ice and snow.

e Secure and protect the artificial turf from the elements in a visually attractive
manner when it is not installed in the arena. When the turf is installed, all
protective tarps and lumber will be stored in a visually attractive manner.

e Secure all buildings when not in use. Contractor will be liable for any
damages, thefts or costs resulting from failure to lock the compressor building
or from failure to arm the Arena alarm system when the Arena is unoccupied.
Contractor will take full responsibility for the actions of clients that are
allowed unsupervised access to the Arena.

e Provide maintenance and mechanical staff on an as-needed basis.

e Ensure that any costs incurred for maintenance of the outdoor rink are fully
covered by related revenues or approved in advance by the City.

e Meet quarterly with City staff to discuss and resolve any issues.

The City will be responsible for the following:

e Maintain the building exterior and the property grounds including snow
plowing the parking areas and mowing the grassy areas adjacent to the
facility.

e Finance capital improvements necessary to ensure continued, uninterrupted
operation of the Arena for all user groups.

e Provide space in the City newsletter for Arena advertising.

e Maintain insurance coverage at the statutory limits for property, boiler /
machinery, business interruption, and commercial general liability.

e Assist the Contractor with preparation of an annual operating budget.

e Pay all necessary Arena operating expenses. Expenses initially paid by the
Contractor will be reimbursed on a monthly basis upon receipt of the detailed
monthly statement from the Contractor. Specific labor expenses to be
reimbursed will include:

o0 The manager’s annual salary, related employment taxes, and worker’s
compensation insurance coverage.



o All hourly wages, related employment taxes, and worker’s
compensation insurance coverage for operational and concessions staff
employed at the Arena.

o All hourly wages, related employment taxes, and worker’s
compensation insurance coverage for maintenance / mechanical staff
employed on an as-needed basis.

ARTICLE 2. Contract Price and Payment

2.1  The amount to be paid for the Contractor’s management fee, all wages, payroll
taxes, worker’s compensation costs and any other payroll-related costs, including
all travel, meeting and training expenses will not exceed $88,000 for each year of
this agreement. Reimbursement for necessary operating expenses will be made in
accordance with Article 1.2. Advertising revenue must be secured in the
following amounts each year or the annual contract will be reduced by the same
amounts:

e 1%Year $2,500

o 2"Year $3,750

e 3“Year $3,750

Advertising revenues collected in excess of the amounts listed will be shared
equally between the Contractor and the City.

ARTICLE 3. Term

3.1  The term of this Agreement is August 1, 2011, through July 31, 2014. This
agreement may be extended for an additional three year subject to performance of
the Contractor and with the written agreement of the City.

ARTICLE 4. Contractor’s Representations

4.1 In order to induce the City to enter into this Agreement, the Contractor makes the
following representations:

4.1.1 The Contractor has visited the East Bethel Ice Arena and become familiar
with and is satisfied as to the Arena conditions that may affect
performance of this Agreement.

4.1.2 The Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and
local Laws and Regulations that may affect performance of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 5. Fair Employment Practices Required
5.1  The Contractor will comply with Section 103 and 107 of the “Contract Work

Hours and Safety Standards Act” (40 USC 327-333) as supplemented by
Department of Labor Regulations contained in 29 CFR Parts 3, 5 and 5a.



5.1.1 Section 103 of the Act provides that laborers or mechanics of the
Contractor will receive compensation on the basis of a standard work
week of forty hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is
permissible, provided the worker is compensated at a rate not less than one
and one-half times the basis rates of pay for all hours worked in excess of
forty hours in any work week.

5.1.1.1 In the event of a violation, the Contractor will be liable to any
affected employee for unpaid wages as well as to the appropriate
government agency for liquidated damages.

5.1.1.2 Section 5 of the Federal Labor Standard Provisions, Housing and
Urban Development Form 4010 sets forth in detail the Section
103 requirements.

5.1.2 Section 107 of the Act provides that laborers or mechanics of the
Contractor will not be required to work in surroundings or under working
conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to their health
and safety, as determined under construction, safety, and health standards
promulgated by the Secretary of Labor.

5.2  The Contractor will comply with all Federal and State anti-discrimination laws.
To this end the Contractor agrees to comply with Section 202 of Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, in which the Contractor will not discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to
ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
Such action will include, but is not limited to the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment; advertising; layoff or termination;
rates of pay or other compensation; and selection of training, including
apprenticeships.

5.2.1 The Contractor will send each labor union or representative of workers
with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding a notice advising the labor union or workers’ representative
of the Contractor’s commitment under Section 202 of Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, and will post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment.

5.2.2 The Contractor will state, in all solicitations or advertisements for
employment placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

ARTICLE 6. Miscellaneous



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Assignment of Agreement

6.1.1 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in this
Agreement will be binding on another party without the written consent
of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation,
moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this
restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under
this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns

6.2.1 The City and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors,
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners,
successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants,
agreements, and obligations contained this Agreement.

Severability

6.3.1 Any provision or part of this Agreement held to be void or
unenforceable under any Law or Regulation will be deemed stricken,
and all remaining provisions will continue to be valid and binding upon
the City and the Contractor, who agree that the Agreement will be
reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing
the intention of the stricken provision.

Insurance

6.4.1 The Contractor will maintain during the entire term of this Agreement
the following insurances with at least the indicated amounts of coverage
and provide the City a certificate of insurance showing such coverages
before providing any services under this Agreement: (1) commercial
general liability insurance coverage with a policy limit of at least
$500,000.00 per claim and $1,500,000.00 for any number of claims
arising out of a single occurrence; and (2) worker’s compensation
insurance. The Contractor’s insurance provider shall provide the City
with written notice at least 30 days in advance of any changes to the
insurance coverage as provided for in the Certificate of Insurance
provided by the Contractor including but not limited to termination of
such coverage by the Contractor for any reason.

Independent Contractor



6.6

6.7

6.5.1

Default
6.6.1

The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is an independent
contractor and that nothing herein will be construed to create the
relationship of employer and employee between the City and the
Contractor. No employee related withholdings or deductions will be
made from payments due the Contractor. The Contractor will not be
entitled to receive any benefits from the City and will not be eligible for
workers’ compensation or unemployment benefits. The Contractor will
at all times be free to exercise initiative, judgment, and discretion in how
best to perform or provide the services identified herein.

The occurrence of any of the following will constitute default by the
Contractor and, if not corrected within ten days after the City provides
the Contractor notice of the default, will allow the City to terminate the
Agreement: (1) failure to adequately perform or deliver the required
services; (2) failure to follow the specifications or standards established
by this Agreement; (3) failure to perform or complete the services in a
timely fashion as established by the City; (4) bankruptcy; (5) making a
material misrepresentation; (6) persistently disregarding laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having
jurisdiction; (7) failure to satisfactorily perform this Agreement; or (8)
failure to perform any other material provision of this Agreement. The
City may lawfully terminate the Agreement if, after providing the
Contractor ten days notice of the default, the Contractor does not correct
the situation. Upon default of this Agreement by the Contractor, the
City may withhold any payment due the Contractor for purposes of set-
off until such time as the exact amount of damages due is determined.
Such withholding will not constitute default or failure to perform on the
part of the City.

Remedies

6.7.1

Default or breach of this Agreement by the Contractor will entitle the
City to seek remedies under law and as provided by this Agreement. In
the event this Agreement is terminated by reason of default by the
Contractor, the City may recover the necessary costs of termination,
including but not limited to, administrative, attorneys’ fees, and legal
costs, from the Contractor. Except when caused by uncontrollable
circumstances, if the Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the
specifications, terms, and conditions of this Agreement, the City will
have the right to purchase the services from other sources on the open
market. The City may deduct as damages from any money due or
coming due to the Contractor the difference between the Contractor’s
price and the higher price or the costs of replacement services.



6.8

6.9

6.7.2 Any remedies available to the City are cumulative and not exclusive.
The seeking or exercising by the City of a remedy does not waive its
right to seek or exercise any other remedy available to it at law, in
equity, by statute, or under this Agreement.

Indemnification

6.8.1 The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents
and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance
of this Agreement, provided that any such claim , damage, loss, or expense
(2) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury
to or destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting
therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Contractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the
Contractor, or anyone for whose acts the Contractor may be liable,
regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified
hereunder.

The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents and
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of this
Agreement, provided that any such claim , damage, loss, or expense (1) is
attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or
destruction of tangible property including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and
(2) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the
Contractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor, or anyone
for whose acts the Contractor may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Miscellaneous provisions

a. RECORDS - AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION.

The Contractor agrees that the City or any of their duly authorized representatives at
any time during normal business hours and as often as they may reasonably deem
necessary, shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, and
transcribe any books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to the
accounting practices and procedures of the Contractor and invoice transactions
relating to this Agreement.

Contractor agrees to maintain these records for a period of three (3) years from the
date of termination of this Agreement.

b. PROCESSING OF PAYMENTS.

Prior to the processing of any and all payments to the Contractor pursuant to this
Contract, compliance with East Bethel Finance Department regulations on the
completion and filing of W-9 forms and other IRS and Minnesota Department of
Revenue taxing forms is required.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have signed this Agreement in duplicate.
One counterpart each has been delivered to the City and the Contractor.

City of East Bethel Gibson Management Company, LLC
By: By:

Richard Lawrence, Mayor Its:
By:

Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G. 5
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Agenda Item:

City Attorney Selection

EOE S i S I i i b i I I S I I S i S
Requested Action:

Consider the appointment of a City Attorney

EE I S S i S i R i S i i S
Background Information:

Council solicited RFP’s for the position of City Attorney and selected three firms to be
interviewed. The interviews were conducted on May 12, 2011. The three firms interviewed were
1.) Smith & Glaser, LLC;

2.) Knaak & Associates; and

3.) Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs, Wolff and Vierling PLLP

EOE S b S I i b b I S i i b i I i I i I S S I i i I I I I I i i i i I I S S
Fiscal Impact:

Funds for these services are provided for in the General Fund Budget.

EE I S i S S i S S S i S
Recommendation(s):

Council will consider the appointment of the City Attorney from those firms interviewed on May
12, 2011.
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City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:
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Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G. 6
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Agenda Item:

Prosecuting Attorney Selection

EOE S b S I i i b i I S i I S i
Requested Action:

Consider the appointment of a Prosecuting Attorney

EE i S S i S i S I S i S i i S S i i S i S R i e i
Background Information:

Council solicited RFP’s for the position of City Attorney and selected four firms to be
interviewed. The interviews were conducted on May 12, 2011. The four firms interviewed were:
1.) Smith & Glaser, LLC;

2.) Knaak & Associates;

3.) Eckberg, Lammers, Briggs Wolff and Vierling PLLP

4.) Carson, Clelland and Schreder

EE i S S i S i S S R I S
Fiscal Impact:

Funds for these services are provided for in the General Fund Budget.

EOE S b i I i i b i I S b i I I I I I I i i I I I I I i i i i I I S i
Recommendation(s):

Council will consider the appointment of a Prosecuting Attorney from those firms interviewed
on May 12, 2011.
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City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:
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Date:

June 1, 2011
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Agenda Item Number:

Item 8.0 G.7
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Agenda Item:

ERU Reduction Policy

E i S i b S i b i b i i i i i i i i
Requested Action:

Consider adopting an ERU modification policy for existing businesses that will be served by the
City water and sewer project

EOE S b S i i i b i I S S i b i I I I i I I
Background Information:

In order to properly charge the users of the water and sewer services for the Project 1 Municipal
Utilities Project, assessments are based on Equivalent Residential Units (ERU’s). The basis for
determining an ERU is an equivalent to one single family residential unit’s use of water. The
amount of water used for this calculation is 274 gallons/day. ERU units are assigned for different
types of property use based on the MCES Service Availability Charge Procedure Manual. The
proposed charge for an ERU is $17,000 with $8,000 of this cost being an assessment fee, $5,600
a charge for City SAC/WAC costs and $3,400 for the MCES connection fee.

In order to fairly evaluate the overall connection cost for municipal services for existing
businesses it is proposed that some latitude be granted in determining the number of ERU’s per
connection. The City’s Special Assessment Policy permits ERU calculations to be modified at
the City’s discretion. However, to avoid arbitrary decisions on a case by case basis it is
recommended that the City adopt a policy that would consistently apply a standard methodology
for a reduction of ERU apportionment.

This policy would only apply to locations of existing business use in the Project 1 area, the
Village Green Mobile Home Park and the existing businesses along the frontage road east of
Hwy. 65.

City of East Bethel
Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) Determination
Summary Policy (Draft No. 1)
May 24, 2011

Where it is necessary to determine the number of ERU’s associated with units to be connected to
the City’s municipal sewer and water system, the following methodology will be utilized.



(Please note this methodology applies only to the charges to be collected by the City of East
Bethel and will not apply to other applicable non-City charges including those to be collected by
the Metropolitan Council for its SAC Charges.)

New Units:

Newly constructed units to be connected to the City’s municipal sanitary sewer and water system
will be charged ERU’s based on the following methodology:

o All residential property that is used exclusively for permanent human living space,
including single family homes, attached homes, townhomes, condominiums, and
manufactured homes will be charged one (1) ERU per dwelling unit with no exceptions.

e All non-residential property (commercial, industrial and institutional properties) will be
charged the appropriate number of ERU’s in conformance with the latest edition of the
“Service Availability Charge Procedure Manual” (hereinafter ““Manual’”) published by
Metropolitan Council Environmental Services with no exceptions.

Existing Units:

Existing units to be connected to the City’s municipal sanitary sewer and water system will be
charged ERU’s based on the following methodology:

e All residential property that is used exclusively for permanent human living space,
including single family homes, attached homes, townhomes, condominiums, and
manufactured homes will be charged one (1) ERU per dwelling unit with no exceptions.

e All non-residential property (commercial, industrial and institutional properties) will be
charged the appropriate number of ERU’s in conformance with the latest edition of the
Manual.

For non-residential property only, the City may, completely at its discretion, consider a
reduction in the number of ERU’s prescribed by the Manual based on actual water use in
accordance with the following:

1. Receipt of a written request from the property owner to evaluate the ERU’s
assigned to the property in accordance with the Manual.

2. Receipt of a written summary of all building use(s) and other pertinent
information requested by the City required for the City’s evaluation from the
property owner.

3. One year of complete water use data for the property from a verifiable and
accurate source. If no water use data is available the owner can install at their
expense a meter approved by the City and collect water use for their facility for a
period of one year. At the conclusion of the metering the ERU’s for this facility
would be adjusted accordingly.

4. For calculation purposes, 274 gallons per day of water use will be considered one
(1) ERU.



5. In no case, will the number of ERU’s be reduced to less than 50% of the ERU’s
prescribed by the Manual.

6. Upon a change in use or expansion of the building the number of ERU’s will be
reevaluated as per the new use and additional ERU’s can be assessed based on the
change in use of property.

7. Upon the change in ownership of the facility an automatic reevaluation of the
facility ERU’s will be completed and additional ERU’s based on a change in use
of the property can be assessed to the new owners .

8. In general, the City will not entertain requests for ERU determinations for
facilities having less than two (2) assigned ERU’s based on the Manual.

9. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all requests for a reduction
in ERU requests.

EOE S b i i i b b i I S i I I I I
Fiscal Impact:
There are 12 existing businesses with current ERU assessments of 88 ERU’s within in the
assessed project area. Three of these uses have only a single ERU designation so they would not
be eligible for reduction, leaving 85 ERU’s for consideration. One of the parcels is the proposed
East Bethel Water Treatment Plant with an assigned ERU of 40. If this parcel were eliminated
from the proposal for reconsideration that would set the total number of ERU’s at 45 that would
be eligible for review under this policy. If all the eligible parcels ERU’s were reduced the
maximum loss would be 23 ERU’s. While every ERU is critical for the financial feasibility of
this project, this may be a useful tool in enticing other existing businesses to connect to the
system, reduce the burden of connection costs and provide a policy for consistent application of
requests for ERU reductions.

The loss of one ERU is $13,600 to the project. A reduction of 23 ERU’s would result in a
revenue loss of $312,800. The project cash flow analysis would have to be re-evaluated
reflecting these figures to determine if this loss could be absorbed within the bond payout
schedule.

EE I i i S S i S S S S e S i S i i
Recommendation(s):

Staff is seeking direction from the Council in regards to this policy.
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City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:

No Action Required:



City of East Bethel
City Council
Agenda Information

e
”ﬁast |
""Bethel \

Rk i I I

Date:

June 1, 2011

RO S b S I i i b i I S S i I S
Agenda Item Number:

Item8.0G. 8
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Agenda Item:

City Hall Security System

E i S i b S i b i b i i i i i i i i
Requested Action:

Consider approving bids for a security system for the East Bethel City Hall

EE I S S i S i R i S i i S
Background Information:

The East Bethel City Hall currently has no security system. A security system is one of the
essential methods to protect City records and pose a deterrent to potential acts of vandalism
within the building.

The system that is proposed is a split system. City Hall offices and the Council Chambers would
be protected with a key pad controlled alarm system and the common hallways and Booster West
Conference Room and garage would be covered by cameras. The split system is required due to
the fact that groups utilize the Booster West Conference Room at times when staff would not
available to secure an alarm system. The split system would permit continued group use of the
conference and rest rooms without having to provide access codes to alarm keypads or having
staff return to the building to arm the system.

EE i S S i i i i S i i i R S S i i I R I i
Fiscal Impact:

The cost for this system is $4,740 for equipment, installation and a one year monitoring cost.

EE S i S i i i b b i i i i i i i I i i I I S i i i i i i I I I i i i i i i
Recommendation(s):

Staff recommends approval of the installation of this system.

ECE I I i S S S R i i e S i i I

City Council Action

Motion by: Second by:

Vote Yes: Vote No:



No Action Required:
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PUBLIC FORUM SIGN UP SHEET

June 1, 2011

The East Bethel City Council welcomes residents and property owners to the Public Forum. The purpose of the forum is to provide residents and
property owners an opportunity to respectfully inform the Council of issues they are concerned about.

The following guidelines apply to the Public Forum:

A resident/property owner may address the Council on any matter not on the agenda during the Public Forum portion of the agenda.

A person desiring to speak must sign up prior to the time the Council reaches the Forum on the agenda.

The Mayor will invite speakers up to the podium/microphone.

Once the Mayor has recognized the speaker, the speaker should state his/her name, address, and phone number.

Each speaker should attempt to limit their presentation to 3 minutes.

If a group of persons wish to address the Council regarding the same issue, the group should elect a spokesperson to present the group’s
issue to the Council.

7. The Council will listen to the issue but will not engage in dialogue or a Q & A session. If a majority of the Council would like to address
the issue in more detail, it can be added to the agenda or can be addressed during the regular agenda of a future meeting.
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	ag 060111 6.0 B Attach #1 051811 RM
	EAST BETHEL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	May 18, 2011


	ag 060111 6.0 C Attach #1 051211 Work Meeting Minutes
	May 12, 2011
	The East Bethel City Council met on May 12, 2011 at 6:00 PM for a work meeting at City Hall.

	ag 060111 6.0 D Attach #1 051711 Work Meeting Minutes
	May 17, 2011
	The East Bethel City Council met on May 17, 2011 at 6:30 PM for a work meeting at City Hall.

	ag 060111 6.0 E Attach #1 Engagement Letter
	ag 060111 6.0 F Attach #1 Bingo Application
	ag 060111 7.0 A.1 3.0 IUP Michelle Hess, 2740 Viking Blvd, IUP Home Occupation
	Date:
	Agenda Item Number:
	Item 7.0 A.1
	Agenda Item:
	Interim Use Permit (IUP) Request for a Home Occupation by Michelle Hess
	Requested Action:
	Fiscal Impact:
	Not Applicable
	Recommendation:
	City Council Action

	ag 060111 7.0 A.1 Attach #1 Site Location Hess IUP
	ag 060111 7.0 A.1 Attach #2 Application Hess IUP
	ag 060111 7.0 A.1 Attach #3 City Code Hess IUP
	ag 060111 8.0 A.1 S.R. Weidema Pay Estimate #1
	Pay Estimate #1 for the Phase 1, Project 1 Utility Improvements
	Attached is a copy of Pay Estimate # 1 to S.R. Weidema for the construction of the Phase 1, Project 1 Utility Improvements.  The major pay items for this pay request includes mobilization, erosion control, traffic control, bituminous removal, delivery...
	MCES   $552,866.91
	City   U$120,468.53
	Total Payment  $673,335.44
	Staff recommends Council consider approval of Pay Estimate #1 in the amount of $673,335.44 for the Phase 1, Project 1 Utility Improvements.
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	ag 060111 8.0 C.1 Attach #1 res 2011-17 Adoption of the 2010 AFR
	CITY OF EAST BETHEL
	EAST BETHEL, MINNESOTA
	RESOLUTION NO. 2011-17
	WHEREAS, City staff has prepared the 2010 Annual Financial Report of the City; and
	Adopted this 1PstP day of June, 2011 by the City Council of the City of East Bethel.
	CITY OF EAST BETHEL
	Richard Lawrence, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator
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	ag 060111 8.0 D. 1 Attach #1 Map
	ag 060111 8.0 D.1 Attach #2 Class V Bids
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	ag 060111 8.0 G.1 Attach #1 Administrator Employment Agreement
	ag 060111 8.0 G.2 2012 URRWMO Budget Proposal
	ag 060111 8.0 G.2 Attach #1 2012 URRWMO draft  budget
	Sheet1

	ag 060111 8.0 G.3 SRWMO 2012 Proposed Budget
	ag 060111 8.0 G.3. Attach #1 SRWMO Proposed budget
	Sheet1

	ag 060111 8 0 G.4 Contract Gibson Management Co
	ag 060111 8.0 G.4 Attach #1 Contract Gibson Management Co.
	CONTRACT AGREEMENT
	BETWEEN THE CITY OF EAST BETHEL
	AND GIBSON MANAGEMENT COMPANY, LLC.
	This Agreement, effective the 1PstP day of August, 2011, is by and between the City of East Bethel, 2241 – 221PstP Avenue NE, East Bethel, Minnesota 55011, a Minnesota municipal corporation, hereinafter called the “City,” and Gibson Management Company...
	ARTICLE 1. The Agreement
	1.1 The Contractor will perform the following management services for the City:
	1.2 The City will be responsible for the following:
	ARTICLE 2. Contract Price and Payment
	2.1 The amount to be paid for the Contractor’s management fee, all wages, payroll taxes, worker’s compensation costs and any other payroll-related costs, including all travel, meeting and training expenses will not exceed $88,000 for each year of this...
	 1PstP Year $2,500
	 2PndP Year $3,750
	 3PrdP Year $3,750
	Advertising revenues collected in excess of the amounts listed will be shared equally between the Contractor and the City.
	ARTICLE 3. Term
	3.1 The term of this Agreement is August 1, 2011, through July 31, 2014.  This agreement may be extended for an additional three year subject to performance of the Contractor and with the written agreement of the City.
	ARTICLE 4. Contractor’s Representations
	4.1 In order to induce the City to enter into this Agreement, the Contractor makes the following representations:
	4.1.1 The Contractor has visited the East Bethel Ice Arena and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the Arena conditions that may affect performance of this Agreement.
	4.1.2 The Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect performance of this Agreement.
	ARTICLE 5. Fair Employment Practices Required
	5.1 The Contractor will comply with Section 103 and 107 of the “Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act” (40 USC 327-333) as supplemented by Department of Labor Regulations contained in 29 CFR Parts 3, 5 and 5a.
	5.1.1 Section 103 of the Act provides that laborers or mechanics of the Contractor will receive compensation on the basis of a standard work week of forty hours.  Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible, provided the worker is compensa...
	5.1.1.1 In the event of a violation, the Contractor will be liable to any affected employee for unpaid wages as well as to the appropriate government agency for liquidated damages.
	5.1.1.2 Section 5 of the Federal Labor Standard Provisions, Housing and Urban Development Form 4010 sets forth in detail the Section 103 requirements.
	5.1.2 Section 107 of the Act provides that laborers or mechanics of the Contractor will not be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to their health and safety, as determined under c...
	5.2 The Contractor will comply with all Federal and State anti-discrimination laws.  To this end the Contractor agrees to comply with Section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, in which the Contractor will not discriminate against any...
	5.2.1 The Contractor will send each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice advising the labor union or workers’ representative of the Contractor’s commit...
	5.2.2 The Contractor will state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employment placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or n...
	ARTICLE 6. Miscellaneous
	6.1 Assignment of Agreement
	6.1.1 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in this Agreement will be binding on another party without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due...
	6.2 Successors and Assigns
	6.2.1 The City and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obli...
	6.3 Severability
	6.3.1 Any provision or part of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation will be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions will continue to be valid and binding upon the City and the Contractor, who agree that the...
	6.4 Insurance
	6.4.1 The Contractor will maintain during the entire term of this Agreement the following insurances with at least the indicated amounts of coverage and provide the City a certificate of insurance showing such coverages before providing any services u...
	6.5 Independent Contractor
	6.5.1 The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is an independent contractor and that nothing herein will be construed to create the relationship of employer and employee between the City and the Contractor.  No employee related withholdings or d...
	6.6 Default
	6.6.1 The occurrence of any of the following will constitute default by the Contractor and, if not corrected within ten days after the City provides the Contractor notice of the default, will allow the City to terminate the Agreement: (1) failure to a...
	6.7 Remedies
	6.7.1 Default or breach of this Agreement by the Contractor will entitle the City to seek remedies under law and as provided by this Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is terminated by reason of default by the Contractor, the City may recover the...
	6.7.2 Any remedies available to the City are cumulative and not exclusive.  The seeking or exercising by the City of a remedy does not waive its right to seek or exercise any other remedy available to it at law, in equity, by statute, or under this Ag...
	6.8 Indemnification
	6.8.1 The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of this Agreement, prov...
	6.9 The Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of this Agreement, provid...
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have signed this Agreement in duplicate.  One counterpart each has been delivered to the City and the Contractor.
	City of East Bethel Gibson Management Company, LLC
	By: __________________________  By: ________________________________
	Richard Lawrence, Mayor        Its:
	By: __________________________
	Jack Davis, Interim City Administrator
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